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¥ The Strategic Report on pages 10 tp 49, 85, 86 10 87, 89 and 9) has been approved by the Board of
Directors and signed on their behalf by Mark Selway, Chief Executive, on 28 February 2019.
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» Results ahead of market expectations %

» Good growth across all Precision Engineering verticals §

» Critical Engineering sales growth despite continued ©
New Construction Power weakness

» Hydronic Engineering margin recovery delivered -

» Bimba integration progressing well %

» Adjusted Basic EPS increased 12% @

» Further reduction of global pension liabilities 3

» 3% increase in the full year dividend recommended
» Roy Twite to succeed Mark Selway as Chief Executive

All figures are stated on an adjusted basis excluding the effect of adjusting iterns in the income statement. For other
statutory measures see Consolidated Income Statement on page 84,

" 0n an c1ganic basis, atter adjusting foi the impact of dispesals and acquisitons and mevements in excl:ange rates,
see Section 2.1.1 on page 93.

“ Operating Cash Flow before adjusting items as described in the commentary to the cash flow statement on page 91.

‘Adjusted measures are defined in Section 2.1. o1 page 93.

B
Turh to page Us

Ml eco-system

e e
s I S
“ﬁ‘"“%‘i s
B LA yae] | [P

el ¥ s [




02 IMI ple

Chairman’s statement

Annual Report and Accounls 2018

2018 - another year of
important progress

Vedo el

Lord Smith of Kelvin
Chairman
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Ve ovr strateay effectively,

Continuous improvement now
firmly established

As we enter the final year of our five year plan it is
an appropriate time fo reflect upon the significant
progress that has been made 1o date and the work
that remains 1o he done.

Qur culture has been transformed, M1 s now a
husiness that, as a matter of course, strives for
continuous improvement and recognises the
significant oppertunities that flow from ever
increasing operational efficiency and productivity,
This mindset is fundamenially important and,

now embedded throughout the Group, it will support
the defivery of our overall strategic goal - the
creation of long-teim, sustainabile value for our
shareholders, employees and other stakeholders.

During the year we improved our health and safety
performance in a number of areas. The total number
of LTAs (lost time accidents) reduced more than 20%
and following the faunch of & targeted campaign,
the Group defivered a reduction in hand irjuries

in the year of over 40%.

The Chisf Executive's review on page 12 and the
operational reviews on pages 28 to 33 provide more
details on the recent progress made in each of the
Group's three divisions. Yhilst some of the markets

we serve did offer some support to our performance
during the year, elsewhere we did face a numger of
economic and traging chaltenges. Strengthening our
husiness, and in particular our market compelitiveness,
to make the Group more resilient regardiess of market
conditions, continues to be a key priority,

I refation to geopolitical uncertainty, we have
developed a number of Brexit related contingency
plans, including building long 'ead-time inventories
to mitigate supply chain interruptions in the event
of Increased bordear controls, o defays in obtaining
clearance to and from the UK.

Our people and culture

Gur people around the warld remain key o our
success and they have contributed significantly
1o the progress we have made during the vear.
On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank all
of our empioyees for their continued hard work
and commitment.

Throughgut the year the Board has had the
opportunity to spend time with our employees on
a number of occasions. in April | participated in our
senior management canference. This is an annual
event gver 2-3 days involving 300 of our buginess
leaders from across the Group and is a valuable
opportunity to discuss ali aspects of the business
with them, Later in the year we also held our October
Board meeting at Bimba's University Park facility
near Chicago. Although Bimba joined the Group onfy
in January, the team there has embraced our
continuous improvement cuiture with great
enthusiasm and our Ledn processes are already
becoming apparent throughout the business.

The Board also took the opportunity to visit M} CCI
ASM in California. During ol visit we toured the site
ana learned about the continuous improvements
being made across the business as well as its plans
ta expand the prockict offering 1o gain market share.
We were also shown remote ingpection technologies
rovided by IM! and increasingly accepied by
customers as a means by which the product
approval process ¢an be made even more efficient
hy reducing unnecessary site visits by engineers.

Board and Governance

During the year two new non-executive directors
joined, bringing considerable and relevant
experience as well as fresh perspectives to the

IMI Board. Thomas Thune Andersen joined the
Board on 1 July 2018 and also became a member
of the Nominations and Remuneration Committees.
Thomas has extensive knowledge and experience
in some of the key sectors we operate in, including
oil, energy and critical infrastructure. Katie Jacksen
alsc joined the Board on 1 July 2018 and became
a member of the Nominations and Remuneration
Committees. Kalie has deep knowledge of the
internationat Oil & Gas market, and significant
corporate finance and business development
experience. Further information about Thomas

and Katig, and the other members of the Board,

Is set out on page 52 to 53.

We acknowiledge the introduction of the 2018
UK Corporate Governance Code and during the
year we took appropriate steps to prepare for
sompliance with the new requirements which
came into effect from 1 January 2019.
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In November 2018, we announced the
appointment of Birgit Nergaard as non-executive
director with responsibility for workforce
engagement, This important role, which is in

line with the revised Code's recommendations,
will build on the various mechanisms we
already operate 10 ensure we continue to
engage effectively with our peaple.

We have also revised our corparate governance
framework and the husiness cycles for the Board
and its committees to reflect the 2018 Code and
appropriate training has haen provided to the Board.

Chief Executive succession

Mark Selway will be stepping down as Chief
Executive at the Annua! General Meeting in May
and retiring from the Board on 31 July 2019.
Ha will be succeeded by Roy Twite, currently
Divisional Managing Director of (M| Critical
Engineering.

Under Mark's leadership IMI's market position
has been significantly enhanced. The Group's
infrastructure has heen modernised, its
operational performance radically improved
and its custemer offering rafreshed. As a resuit.
IMlis now a much more robust and sustainable
business. On behatf of the Board { would like

to thank Mark for his leadlership, drive and
commitment, He has made a significant
contribution to the Group, and whilg fully
respecting his decisicn to return home to retire,
We are very sorry to see him go. We wish him
well in his retirement back in Australia.

Roy was appointed follewing a comprehensive
global search process that included both internal
and external candidates. Roy joined Ml in 1988
and has been a member of the Board since
2007. He has held senior management roles

in all parts of the Group including President

of iMI Hydronic Engineering, President of IMI

Precision Engineering and. since 2011, Divisicnat
Managing Director of IMI Critical Engineering.
The Board is delighied to appoint Roy as IMI's
next Chief Executive, He is a strang and
experienced successor who has been pivotal

to the Group's continued success. He has
extensive operational experience, deep
knowledge of our core markets and

outstanding leadership qualities.

Dividend

Reflecting the centinued confidence in the
Group's prespects, the Board is recommending
an Increase in the final dividend of 3% to 26.0p
(2017:25.2p) making a toial dividend for the
year of 40.6p, an increase of 3% over last
year's 39.4p.
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Critical Engineering

IMi Critical Engineering is a world-leading
provider of criticai flow contro! solutions
that enable vita) energy and process
industries to operale safely, cleanly,
retiably and mare efficiently.

Ervergag
Markets
f4%

Number of emp

|> l IMI Critical Engineering operational review
Turn to page 28

IMI

Revenue by geography

T Westen

o : . ?COW Fu;[é;:e
Precision Engineering £4153.2 e
. . . o 5 u m 6%
iMi Precision Engineering specialises L v
in developing motion and fiuid control mgg;gs Avrg(rzéa
technologies for applications where 9% e

precision, speed and reliability
are essential.

Mt Precision Engineering operational review 6 ) 1 00

Turn to page 30

Revenue Revenue by geography
£309m o
Row w

el
Hydronic Engineering

>

" Western

Adjusted cperating profit 3% Europe

£52.0m
IMI Hydronic Engineering is a leading 19%
globat supplier of products for hydrenic e
distributicn systems which deliver optimal and Ameriua

energy efficient heating and cooling systems to

tha resigential and commercial huilding sectors.
Number of employees

>| l IMI Hydronhic Engineering operational review 1 ,800

Tumn 1o pase 32
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Key brands

IMI Bopp & Reuther, IMI CCI,
IMIFiuid Kinetics, IMI InterAtiva
IMIEH, (841 Orton, IMI Remosa,
IALSTL IMETH Jansen, IMI Trufto
Marine, IMI Trufig Rona, IMI Trufle
ftaly, IMI Z&J, IMI Zikesch

Main markets

Qil & Gas, Fossil Power, Nuclear
Power, Patrachemical, lron & Steel,
Desalination and Process Industries

Major operational locations
Brazil, China, Czech Repulilic,
Germany, India, ltaly, Japan, South
Korea, Sweden, Switzeriand, UK

and USA

Key brands
I Norgren, IMI Buschiost, IMI FAS,
IMI Herion, IMi Maxseal, Bimba

Main markets

Commercial Vehicle, Energy, Food
and Beverage, Industrial Automation,
Life Sciences and Rail

Major operational locations
Brazil, China, Czech Republic,
Germany, Ingia, Mexico, Switzerland,
UK and USA

Key brands
M| Fiow Design, IMI Heimeier,
IMi Pneumatex, IMI TA

Main markets

Water based healing and cooling
syslems for commercial buildings,
and temperature control for
resigential huildings

Major operational locations
Germany, Poland, Slovenia, Sweden,
Swilzerland and USA

©

Power

Qil & Gas

O

Petrochemical
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Actuation

We are the world leading
supplier of engineered to
order turbine bypass valves
for critical apphcations in
conventional and nuctear
power plants — helping to
provide the safest, most
refiable and efficient nower
generation.

2018 revenue: £266m

Industrial Autormation

We supply anti-surge valve
and actuator systems to
the world's largest LNG
compression fasilties,

Our systems are capable
of ultra-fast response to
maximise LNG production
while protecting the
COMPressor,

2018 revenue: £224m

e

Commercial Yehicle

We design and manufacture
integrated flow control systems
for critical applications in Fluid
Calalytic Cracking. We also
supply bespoke valves into the
ethyiena. polypropylene and
delayed coking production
processes.

2018 revenue: £117m

A

Qil & Gas

We focus on the design

and prodiiction of complete
actuation systems to operate
industrial valves for the mest
demanding applications and
processes in terms of forces,
speed and accuracy and
harsh environments.

2018 revenue: £25m

@

Life Sciences

We supply high performance
products including valves,
valve islands, proportional and
pressure monitoring controls
and air preparation producis,
as well as a comprehensive
range of pneumat; acluators.

2018 revenue: £525m

e

Balancing & Gontrol

We design and manufacture
4 range of cab chassis

and powertrain solutions
which deliver fuel efficiency.
emissions reduction and
faster assembly times for the
world's leading commercial
vehicle manufacturers.

2(18 revenue: £196m

Thermestatic Control

We offer a comprehensive
range of preducts which deliver
precision control in even

the harshest environments,
including staintess steel

valves and regulators, nuclear
class valves and emergency
shutdown controls.

2018 revenue: £77m

e

Pressurisation

We supply precision flow
cantrol selutions used in
medical devices, diaghostic
equipment and biotech and
analytical instruments. Qur
products help to reduce

the size of equipment,
while enhancing accuracy,
throughput and fluid control
performance.

2018 revenue: £77m

0

Water Quality

Our hydronic bafancing and
control solutions enable
buildings to keep comfort at
the right level while Improving
HVAC efficiency by up to 30%.
Our expertise covers constant
and variable flow and both
static and dynamic balancing.

2018 revenue: £151m

We design and manufacture
thermostatic control systems
which guarantee direct or
automatic control of radiators
and underfloor heating
systems to perfectly control

individual room temperatures.

2018 revenue: E9Bm

Reliahle pressurisation is a Basic
requirement for a trouble-free
operation of heating. cooling
and solar systems. Our robust
range of pressure maintenance
systems with compressors or
pumps and expansion vessels
maintains the right pressure m
the systern at all times.

2018 revenue: £32m

The single most important
component in any fiydronic
system is the water itself. When
campromised, the effects can
be felt throughout the system.
Our dint and air separators

and pressure step degassers
protect the installation

by keeping water free of
microbubbles and sludge.

2013 revenue: £10m
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Refinery

we keep the world moving
from petro! to diesel and jet
fuel. our specialist valves
refine crude oil to provide

a wide range of products.

DK
[ 11 ] =
-
Mh
: Conventional E e
controf vahves ~—I 7,
Specialist
tripie ecoentric H
butterfly valves |I'ld u Stl’lal SOLine™ actuator

100DMT choke valve Automation . .
! We develop solutions for our -
customers in the machinery; | e

Offshore platform e food and beverage; printing; and
ohiro

factory automation industries.
We design andA ;_)rowde \_falvgs valves
for the most critical applications
including offshore.

Excelon®
preparati

Biwba
ttellisense

Specralist
ball valves




Data centres

We ensure stable pressure and Pressurisation
clean water for high cooling intensity
applications, preventing premature
equipment failure and costly downtime

Dirt separation

m
aaanoog

Hospitals

Our products help to deliver
quality, energy-efficient HVAG
systems, which ensure optimal
patient comfort.

Differcntial
pressure
confrols #

Balancing valves

Thermopsatic
controls

Medical MICROSOL MS—-€
devices and
instrumentation
We help OEMs increase
performance of ther
systems, enabling cutting

edge devices that improve
health and the environment.

Cadent 3 pymp

Briwba versagrip™
seleneid piach valve
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Triple cctentric
butterfy valves

LNG

We provide the control and
safety systems to ensure
safe delivery of liquefied
natural gas to power cilies
across the world,

solation
crybgenrs
baill vaives

Family house ﬂf'?;ﬂ.

We provide a comprehensive

Cc

Aunti-surge vaives

Our balancing and control solutions
combine highly precise mechartical valves

range of thermaostatic control - . Our
products, ensuring optimal ft‘.“ m s0lu
temperature contrel and - . redu
energy efficiency,
9 Y Underfipor M
Heating +
K b 0 wanifolds o
'3 i A
H . 5y (- -
: ! : A -
Radiator valves %
wrth automatic :
THerWOSTaric  figeg comprol Multipurpose
confrels commercial building

.- . . Pressure
and digital actuation allowing complete wndependent
electronic integration and greater efficiency wodulating
in complex heating and cooling systems. control

Combined A

controf &

balancing .
Digrtal
actuation
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nercial Vehicle

: of cab, chassis and powertrain "

deliver fuel efficiency, emissions
and faster assembly times.
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Valve arrays

Engine control
walti-valve blpck
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We offer customised solutions for ¥

all types of rail applications.

Pantograph e )
control systems  Door control
valve systems
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Combined cycle
power plant

Products designed te cope with high
pressure and temperature differences

in the most critical applications ensures
power is available when needed.

Turbine bypass ¥
valves }

Desupervicaters
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Chief Executive’s review

An increasingly
robust portfolio
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Mark Selway
Chief Executive

Overview

It is pleasing to report the continuation of the
progress achieved in the first half of 2018

Our strategic plan to drive sustainable long-term
growth continues to make a real difference across
all parts of the Group. Our new product pipeline

is developing well. our manufacturing operations
have further improved and the new systems

and processes being embedded throughout

the business are delivering gains in efficiency

and competitiveness.

Integration of Bimba Manufacturing
Company {‘Bimba’)

The acquisition of Bimpa for a total consideration
of £138m (US$198m) was completed on

31 January 2018, The transaction has increased
our US revenues while extending Ml Precision
Engineering's presence in its core Industrial
Automation segment. Good progress has been
made with the integration of Bimba into Precision
Engineering's North American operations. We have
also accelerated some of our plans for Bimba

to improve its operations and IT infrastruclure

in readiness for the opportunities for growth

and margin improvement.

Trading environment

Trading conditions across our three divisions
continued 1o be mixed throughout 2018 with
growth in IMI Precision Engineering's end
markets offsefting declines in New Construction
Fossil Power and Energy markets in M
Critical Engineering.

For IM! Critical Engineering, the Petrochemical
market again produced some encouraging
opportunities which reflect the division’s success
at extending its reach inte a broader range of
applications, The impraving outlook in some
parts of the Oil & Gas sector again contrasted
with the challenging outlook for coal-fired

power generation.

in IMI Precision Engingering, a!l of the division's
verticals and regions showed further gaad
nrogress in the year. This was achieved despite
tougher comparators and increased market
volalility, particularly in Industrial Automation,
through the fatter part of 2018.

Within IMI Hydronic Engineering where Eurcpean
construction represents over 79% of the division,
markets were marginally stronger than the
previous year. Although less significant for the
division overall, the North America and China
construction markets also continued to grow.

White we have a broad internaticnal manufacturing
footprint and less than 5% of sales in the UK,

it would be remiss not 1o mention the potential
impact of Brexit on the Group's operating
performance. Despite prevatiing uncertainty,

the Group has developed a number of Brexit
related contingency plans, including & programme
of building long lead-time inventories to support
customers in the event of increased horder
cantrols or defays in getting clearance 16 and
from the UK. While we hope that these increased
inventionies will not be required, it is essential that
we do as much as we can to minimise potential
supply chain disruption and ensure our customer
delivery commitments are met.

Results overview

2018 was another year of important progress for
IML. A now well-established culture of continuous
improvesnant, both within our operations and in our
product offering, further enhances our competitive
position, irrespective of the market environiment.

Adjusted Group revenues were 9% higher at
£1,907m {2017: £1,751m). Excluding adverse
foreign exchange and the acquisition of Bimba,
Group revenues on an organic basis were 5%
tigher when ¢ompared 1o the pricr year. Adjusted
segmental operating profit was 11% higher at
£266m (2017: £241m). Excluding the impact of
adyerse foreign exchange and Bimba, segmenta)
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operating profits werg 9% higher on an organic
basis. The Group’s operating margin was
14.0% against 12.8% in 2017 and adjusted
earnings per share were 12% higher at 73 2p
(2017: 65.3p).

Adjusted operating cash flow of £222m (2017
£218m) follewed a strong performance last yvear
and reflected higher working capital to support
growth in Precision Engineering and
comparatively higher advanced payments
recelved by Critical Engineering in 2017.

Both debtor and inventory days showed modest
improvement while creditors reflected the impact
of lower pre-payments in Critical Engineering.
Net Cebt of £405m (2017: £265m) reflected

payment of the cansideration for Bimba and
resulted in & Net Debt to adjusted EBITDA ratio
of 1,3x against {.9x at the end of 2017,

We continue to he proactive in our efforts to
manage the Group's pension fiabilities and in
2018 successfully completed the transfer of a
further £439m of liabilities to insurance partners.
This brings the total value of pension schemes
remaoved from gur balance sheet over the last
two years to £838m. The UK schemes remain

in surplus and the overseas deficit remained
constant at £80m in the year.

Good strategic progress

Our strategic plan to drive long-term sustainable
growth is making a real difference across ali
parts of the Group. Significantly improved
operational performance, new systems ang
processes that are helping us operate more
efficiently and a new product pipeline all
continue to enhance our competitive position.
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1 iMI's Board visits the Bimba University Park
site in Winois,

2 Lamp lighting a the Precision Engincering’s
new India manufacturing site opening.

3 The IMI Board receive a safely bricting
ahead of a tour of IMI CCIRSM in Califorh.

4 Mark Setway greets employees al the ndin

site opening.
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New product pipeline
For each division targeted New Product
Development initiatives remain a key focus.
We launched a significant number of new
products during 2018 covering a range of
applications, Al three divisions have ambitious
plans to continue thelir focused product
development strategies in 2019 and beyond.

Improving our operational
performance

During 2018 each of our divisions further
enhanced their operational performance,

Al the year-end the Group’s average Lean score
increased to /5% compared to /1% at the same
poirt in 2017. Scrap rates, on-time-delivery and
inventery management all improved and the
benefits were evident in the Group's results

in the year. Most importamtly, this improved
performance provides an important foundaticn
for our increased competitiveness and
responsiveness to customers.

By increasingly combining New Product
Cevelopment initiatives with Value £ngineering
processes, we have continued to expand our
addressable markets and are competing in
segments that were not previously accessinle.
Positioning our businesses

for growth

In the past four years much has been done
to simplify the way our businesses operale
and make them more efficient.

Business development

Alongside our crganic growth initiatives, targeted
acquisitions that meet cur clearly defined and
disciplined criterta continue to represent a core
part of our strategy. We seek opportunities that
are culturally aligned and have the polential to
deliver sustainable long-term profitable growth.
As was the case with the acguisition of Bimba
in January 2018, we aim to engage early with
potential partners with the ambition of securing
preferred buyer status ahead of any formal
process being started.

We have invesied heavily in new systems

and processes which are essential if the Group

s 10 defiver long-term sustainable growth.

An increasing number of our businesses

are upgrading their core IT systems to modern
divisional platforms that automatically manage
business processes to deliver consistent,
accurate data. As a result, we have better visibility
across the production process and we are able
to manage our day-lo-day operations more cost
and time effectively and make our product and
service offering more competitive.

Our people

This is my final IMi Chief Executive's review.
Choosing 1o leave IMI has been a tough
decision, hut the time is now right to hand
over to a successor to continue the Group's
development. Roy will do a great joh leading
the business through its next phase cf
development and growth.

Across all of our cperations we have embedded
disciplined and efficient processes, including
New Product Development and Value Fngineering.
These consistent processes support our
continuous improvement cutture and help
ensure that our investments ultimately deliver
an earlier and greater return.

I 'am very proud of what the team at IMI has
delivered and | would like to thank our employees
for their hard work, commitment and passion.
They have contributed significantly to the
progress we have made in recent years.

| am confident that the schid foundations put

in place in recent years pasition the Group

well for the future and | would like to wish ali
our employees around the worid much success,

OQOutlook

In the first half of 201G we expect arganic
revenues to he lower than the same period

in 2018 dug to the phasing of Critical
Engineering's order bock and slewing market
demand in the industrial Automation sector in
Precision Fngineering. Margins are expected
to be broadly similar, supporied by cur operationat
initiatives and an improved performance from
Hydronic Engineering. Resuits for the full year
will also reflect the benefils of restructuring
and our normal second-half bias.
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Our strategic model

Cifid f

Expanding our addressable
markets through targeted
acquisitions
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Increasing investment in

New Product Pevelopment
How we gcnerate
Work together as one pur revenue
Strategic growth
priovities
Strateqic enablers



T Collaboration between divisions
ensures best practice share
across sl functions.

2 VWorid-class sngineering in IMI
Remosa, ally redies on the best
1ools and processes.

3 Enginesning éxpertise through
Value Engincering has
nelped transform iMI Critical
Engineering's compatitiveness.

Strategic growth
enablers
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Maintaining financial discipline
As we execlte our strategy to deliver accelerated
growth, we continue to maintain financial
discipline. Capital is allocated to drive organic
growth, maintain a progressive dividend policy
in line with earnings and to fund acauisitions.
Whilst retaining flexibility to develop IMI's full
potential, we continue to focus on maintaining
an efficient balance sheet and, in the event of
us having cash in excess of the Group's current
neads, we wilt return this excess capital to
shareholders. Threugh the life of our five year
plan we will work to maintain net debt to EBITDA
of no mere than two times through the cycle.

Net debt to adjusted EBEITDA
2017 0.9x 2018 1.3x

Working together as one
simplified IMI

To harness the Group's full potential we remain
determined to maximise the opportunity that
our scale provides us by acting as one M.
Establishing core processes has provided

a strong platform that underpins a framework
for creating consistent Group—wide standards
and behaviours. The impact goes far beyond

manufacturing with industry best practice

now consistently adopted across back-office
functions. The Group intranet is a catalyst for
knowledge and best practice transter and the
conferences and Leadership Programmes help
build a strong and collaborative environment
across the whole of M,

Investing in Group-wide IT and
infrastructure

Since 2014 we have significantly enhanced

our [T enabled husiness capabilities. We are
standardising the ERP systems, business
processes and reporting in cur Divisions 1o
provide us with access to accurate and consistent
data. As a result, we have better visibility across
the production environment, can manage our
day-to-day operations more efficiently and

makea our product and service offerings

more compelitive.

[MI Hydronic Engineering rolled out new systems
across its sales and service offices in Spain, italy.
Switzertand, Austria, Czech Republic, Austrahia
and the Netherlands and alse installed a new
system at its plant in Fuliinsder in Switzerland.
Today 50% of the division's plants and over
40% of its sales and service offices share

a common [T system.

Over the past three years, the Group has also
aestablished a solid foundation of IT security
capahilities and controls across the business.
This invesiment will continue to identify and
remediate new and emerging threats through

a 24/7 Security Operations Centre. The Group
policies include a requirement that all businesses
maintain a rebust backup of ali critical cperating
data so business continuily can be maintained
even in the event of a system failure.

The delivery of standardised ERP sclutions in each
of our divisions continues to e a high priority in
termis of major systems investment. In IMI Critical
Engineering, implementations have taken place in
China, Germany, Switzerland and Haty. IM| Hydronic
Engineering has rolled out new systems in its
Swiss factory and its saies offices in Switzerland,
Austria, Netherlands, Czech Republic, Spain and
Itaty. W{ Precigion Engineering has finalised ERP
soiutions at its core US sites and will commence
ERP implementations in Asia during 2019.

IT infrastructure investment extends far beyond
manufacturing. In Engineering and New Product
Development, IMI Precision Engineering’s

new AutoDesk capability allows engineers to
collaborate on product design and specification
ragardless of where they are located, enhancing
our service through driving out complexity.

This globalisation of the division's design capability
generales several benefits including making the
design process more efficient and cost-effective.
Most importantly, it also makes it easier to develop
tha optimal product for a specific market and
localise the manufacturing process accordingly.

Innovative marketing campaigns and digital
commnunication tools in hoth IMI Precision
Engineering and IMI Hydronic Engineering are
improving the quality of contact we have with

our customers and allowing them better access to
our products and services, much mare efficiently.
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Strategic growth
priorities _
Our strategic plan to

accelerate growth is focused.
on four key growth prigi “

A

Capitalising on Improving
significant organic operational
growth opportunities performance

Our priority s 1o capitalise on Qur seii-help Lean jouiney
and-markets where we already is underninned by the

are, o have the poleniial 1o be, engageinent ol mshagement
i a teading position, and ciiployees al all levelis.

> , b ]
Turn ta pageé 20 Turn t0 page 22



Increasing investment
in New Product
Development

Al thies divisions are
ineteasingly delivering on

our pronuse to introduce greast
new producis and solutions fo
ol customers, more (quickiy
and more effectively than

ever helote,

{J
Turn to page 24

Expanding our
addressable markets
through targeted
acquisitions

Beyond ou existing bisiness
portfolio, we have the potential
i expand throuah the careiui
excoution of value enbancing
SO SIONS,

(o
Turn to page 26
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Strategic growth priorities

Capitalising on
significant growth
opportunities
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New facility - Japan

Gver the last four years IMi Critical Engineering has
successiully repositioned iis business. In particular,
its global footprint has been realigned and today F
the division has world-ciass manufacturing facilities f
in the heart of the industry's fastest growing
markets. Bullding on the success of its new facilities f
in China, India and Scuth Korea, in 2018 the division \
committed to refocating its existing Taclory in Wast
Kobe, Japan 1o a new purposa-built facility near
Kobe Airport. Aside from oftering a much more
efficient layout, the new plant will focus on the
design and manufacture of farge valves and
fydrautic actuating systems — products that the
existing facility is not equipped {0 manufacture.
This investment will enhance IMi Critical
Engineering’s offering in the attractiva
Petrochemical market in Japan.

Strengthening our position in
growing markets

IMt Precision Enginsering is continuing to
strengthen its presence in growth markets around
the world. During 2018 the division completed
the relocation of its plant in Noida near New Delhi
10 a new purpose-built facility, nearky. The new
tacility, which is three times the size of the old
plant provides a core low cost manufaciuring

and engineering capability to Precision
Engineering’s, already competilive Asian
aperaticns. Our New Delhi operations inciudg safes
and customer service, preduction, distribution and
a technical centre, and provides increased
production capacity to meet the growing demand
for IM! Precision products in the Indian market.

Capitalising on growing
market demand

The global underfloor heating market is expected
to grow at a compound annual growth rate of
nearly 5% over the next five years, driven by

a number of factors including increasing legislation
aimed at reducing carbon emissions. M Hydronic
Engineering's product portfolio includes a range
of products that control undertloor heating
systems, including manifolds which incerporate
the division's Autornatic Flow Control ('AFC)
technology. This urtique AFC technoiogy ensures
that the corract fiow rates of water are delivered
to each room thereby ensuring precise
temperature contral. in the last 12 months the
division has won a number of significant contracts
to supply its underfloor heating products and
technology o both new build and refurbishment
orojects across Europe. In particular a number
of municipal and sociat housing authorities across
central Curope, including Austria & Germany,
have installed IMI Hydronic Engingering’s AFC
technology solution 1o help save energy across
their building stock,
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1 Pregision Engineering's new Indian
manufacturing facility e Nowda, India.

2 IMI Crlical Engineering’s new Lean (aclory
n Japan will support regionul growth,

3 Hydronic Engincering’s leadmg underiioor
heating maniteld, Dynacen Eclipse, not only
helps to save energy in homes, but is also
euny to install.

4 Cardboard engimeering m actign, with o
scale replica of Precision Engmeering’™s
nevy Incdion manufactening taciblily,

L Hydromie: Engineering's underloor healing

solubions are providing comfent o home
owners and tenants across Centrad Europe,




22 IMI ple Annual Report and Accounts 2018

Strategic growth priorities

3

Improving operational
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Better operational Enhancing Bimba's Embedding the voice of the
performance enhances operaticnal performance customer in our operational
customer offering processes

Across the Group we have continued to optimise the | We completed the acquisition of Bimba in IMI Hydronic Engineering's facilities in Olkusz

use of Obeya, the visual tool which facilitates project | January and shorlly thereafier launched & Lean Poland, and Brezice, Slovenia were two of the
management by hringing together multiple work implementation programme 10 begin the process first plants in the Group to achieve world-ciass
streams and encouraging collaborative working of transforming the operational performance cperational benchmark performance. The division's
practices. The IMI Remosa team in Italy is now using | across Bimba's eight sites. The first assessment effective application of Lean within iis production
Obeya to manage its aftermarket business more process started in March where Bimba’s facilities is now being extended across its sales
effectively. In particular, current and future field operations achieved a 19% Lean score. At the offices and distribution hubs to ensure that
service workload, togetner with field engineering end of 2018, this score had improved significantly customer requirements are consistently delivered.
capabiiity and availabllity, 1s now clearly mapped to I 27%. In particular the business' accident Additionally, the IM! Hydronic Engingering senior
ensure that the appropriate engineering service is rates have fallen by 86% and more generally a operations taam now meet regularly with sales
available when required, As a result, the time taken confinuous improvement culfure is naw becoming | teams and customers out in the field, to hetter

to identify and match the appropriate service embedded across the Bimba business. Bimba's understand their needs and coflaberate an projects
engineer 1o each job has reduced by 62% and University Park site underwent an accelerated to address any customer issues or epportunities
service engineers, spares and {ools are more transtarmation and improved thelr assessment which might arise. One such project focussed
effectively utilised. scorg from 20% to 44% in under 10 months. on improving our quality processes to drive

down average response times and has reduced
unresolved compiaints by 85% in the final
quarter of 2018.

74% 75% 78%

Lean score up 50% Lean score up 42% Lean score up 41%
from first assessment from first assessment from first assessment




1 Individual valve quality check at Hydronic
Engincenng's plant in Ljung, Sweden,

2 |MI Remosa’'s wotld-class Hydraulic Pawer
Control Units enable remote montoring
to ensure optimised plant perfarmance
for our customers,

3 Bimba's IntelliSense is an industry
4.0 product that integrates directly into
pneumatic syslems, enabling predictive
intelligence.

4 Five Hydronic Engineering siles now have
a Lean seore abaye 70

5 IMI Remosa has produ-ed leaner designg
enabling their praducts to deliver significant
reliability and operational improvements,
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Strategic growth priorities

Increasing investment
in New Product

Development
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Value Engineering delivering
competitive advantage

Value Engineering is a core component of the
division’s New Product Development activities and.
over the last two vears, our enhanced skills and
capability in this area have significantly improved
our competitiveness. Despite challenging market
conditions, since 2016 M Critical Engineering has
won nearly half a billion pounds ¢f new contracts
through the appiication of Value Engineering tools
and processes. On average, a 15% cost reduction
for gur customers has been delivered. Included in
the division’s 2018 contract wins was an order for
IM! Remosa to provide & package of products for
installation in a Spanish oil refinery which was
being refurbished. The product package included
control systems, actuators and slide valves, which
operate together in extreme temperatures of up to
980°C. These products control and shut down the
flow of liquids and gases during the critical “crude
oll 1o liquid fuels™ conversion process. Using Value
Engineering, IMI Remesa was ahle to re-develop
its products which significantly reduced welding
and other manufacturing costs and created

a compelling solution for the customer at a
competitive price,
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Industry 4.0 at the centre of
New Product Development

Digitisation s at the centre of IMI Precision
Engineering's New Product Development
process where investment i$ being focused
on product control and data monitoring.

This in essence, alicws our products to be
used as integrated components in a customers’
connecled application.

During the year the division expanded ils portfolio
of high perfarmance, platform and bespoke
products which offer enhanced digital capability
and cennectivity. New connected products include
a range of electric actuators which are expected
to launch in Spring 2019 at Hannover Messe,

the world leading technology trade fair,

Digital technaiogy is providing a competitive
dynamic in IM| Precision's commercial activities,
The division’s IMI Norgren Express™ App, which
enables customers to find and buy products
quickly and easily using their smartphone,

is now avariahte worldwide. This efficient and
effective digitised customer service, which
provides access 1o over half a million paris,

is enhancing our customer support offering.
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Maintaining our position at
the forefront of innovation

In the last five years IMi Bydronic Engineering
has launched numerous new products, many

of which incorperate software that allows them
to he dightally enabled and connected to other
compenents and systems. This software is
developed by the division's dedicated in-houss
Electronic Research & Development team which
focuses on creating solutions to satisfy customer
demand and maintain IM! Hydrenic Engineering's
lgading position at the forefront of innovation.
During the year the division continued to expand
its digital product portfolio. In December we
extended our existing market leading TA-Slider
actuator range fo include a number of new
products suitable for smalier applications such
as ceifing coofing. These new actuators, which
open and close valves to control the flow of
water in HYAC systems, connect to building
management systems and gather large amounts
of data ullimately used o drive energy and

cost efficiencies.




1 Discipline in design with operator input
ansures successiul competitive products.
2 IMI FAS launched the new Microsol MS-E
at the Medica 2018 tarr in Disseldorf,
3 IMI Critical’s strong reputation means
customers work with our businesses
to develop products that improve
Jheir processes.
The extended TA-Slider digital actuator
range was developed across four different
‘sites by Hydronic Engineering R&D teams.

£ 5 IMI Norgren's new electric actuator will be
5 Camonchod in 2019,

. Since launch, TA-Slidars have been installed
Jn hundreds of buildings world-wide,

o Il Norgren Express app.
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Strategic growth prlorltles

Expanding our
addressable markets
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Our acquisition strategles for the divisions are:

IM! Critical Engineering

Within IMI Criticat Engineering, focus remains on
extending the division’s reach into new, adjacent
markets and applications 1o capture & greater share
of customer spend. Such an expansion might
incltude severs and semi-severe applications and
could also involve extending our geographical
footprint. IMI Critical Engineering's capabilities in
Value Engineering and New Product Development
wolild support value creation in any completed
acquisition. Mary of the potential acquisitions in
this segment are small and mid-sized businesses
with a specific market niche and would fit well into
the IMI global network and culture.

o b opet gt

it

IMI Precision Engineering

As IMI's largest division, IMI Precision Engineering is
also the division that offers the greatesf potential for
a more significant acquisition, A number of petential
partners in the market are of a larger size and
match our Criteria of cutturat fit and combination
logic. Given the size of the market and IMi's strength
of process and market expertise, we are confident
in our abiiity to successfully deliver valie from an
acquisition in this industry. The advancement of
the Bimba integration in 2018 provides further
confidence of the significant potential achievable
through consalidation in this market.

This feedback from one of our customers attests
to the success of the acguisition and integration
of Bimba:

“The acquisition of Bimba by IMI plc brings
together hoo of the most recognised brands
in the industry. Bimba is very well known as
a leader In actuators with extensive product
options and «¢ willingness to create unique
solutions for even one customer. Combining
the Bimba and IMI brands solidifies IMI as

« market leader in the pneumatics industry
as well as in electric and hydraulic, This
acquisition has put the industry on notice that
TMT is serious about being a solution provider
Sfor pneumatic and overall motion products
on a global level.”

Brendon Connelly
Air Inc, US industria! distributor

__Annual Report and Accounts 2018
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IMI Hydronic Engineering

Fur IMI Hydrenic Engineering, we believe that
an effective way to expand the business in

new geographies is to acquire husinesses in
our desired locations that have similar strengths
to thase we enjoy in our awn, core regions.
Those targel businesses tend to be smaller,
often privately-owned enterprises. The most likely
value to be generated from such a combination
would be derived from the synergies available
by sharing complementary routes to market
and product ranges.



1 The Bimba brand holds slrang proninence
among the North Amencan make for
Industriad Automation

2 Party are checked for quality s they puass
through wroduction at Bimba's University
Park, Hlinows Dacility in the USA

3 Manufactured componenls undergo strel
fuahty control measures at Bimba,

4 Bimba ~ PncuMoment™ pncumatc
actuator s designed 1o move heavy loads.

S A machmist chechs pneumatic Jctuator
rod guides for dimensional confarmance
at Bumlz,
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Operational review

Ml

Critical Engineering
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Up 5%

N

Adjusted revenue

£682m

Adjusted operating profit

£88.3m

Key achievements

» Value Engineering secured £180m of
new arders and underpinned excellent
order win-rates

» Further success in securing new
business in adjacent markets

» Profit growth supported by successful
restructiring programme

» On-time: and on-budget ERP
implementation across fourteen sites

» Increased average Lean score 10 74%

r__]J: Fuid out more wwwiimi-critical.com

Performance

In 2018 the division continued o experience a
mixed trading envirenment in some of its most
irnportant markets. Value Engineering and New
Product Development programmes continued
to provide competitive levers which have enabied
us to outpace the market. Our continuing high
order win-rate indicates that we have been
capturing more of the available projects than
our competitors.

Ful year order intake at £652m (2017: £658m)
was Tlat on an organic basis and, as expected,
included a strong second half recovery. The
Value Engineering process, which is now fully
embedded within the division and used on ali
New Construction quates of scale, supported the
delivery of £180m or 60% of New Construction
orders in the year.

Strang order growth fram Water contrasted with
softer market conditions elsewhere. HIPPS orders
were also ahead of 2017, partially offsetting lower
Upstream and Midstream orders, Aftermarke!
orders were 11% higher and reflected a 22%
increase in upgrades and a 6% increase in parts,
when compared to the prior year. At the vear-end,
the order hook was £474m {(2017: £510m) with
margins slightly higher, compared with 2017.

Revenues of £682m (2017: £648m) were 5%
higher on an adjusted basis and, after excluding
£6m of adverse foreign exchange and £3m from
disnosals, were 7% higher on an organic basis.
Segmental operating profit of £88.3m {2017
£84.0m) was 5% higher on an adjusied Hasis and
6% higher on an organic basis. Margins were flat
versus 2017, reflecting the division's ongoing work
to counter softer markets with the benefits from
restructuring and Value Engineering,

Lean scores improved significantly in the year
from 70% to 74% and our core customer
satisfaction metrics also showed centinued
progress. The division progressed iis long-term

footprint recrganisation which has resulted

i the clusuré or ransfer of thirteen fower growth
operations. These Initiatives delivered £12m

of benefit in 2018 and have strengthened the
division's competitive position by realigning its
manufacturing footprint with customers in higher
growth markets.

In addition to the product and operational
investments, the division continued its programme
of ERP roll-out. This system is now fully embedded
in fourteen of iMI Critical Engineering’s sites.

Outlook

Based on current arder bock phasing and the
comparatively large Petrachemical deliveries in
early 2018, we expect first half organic revenues
and profits to be lower when compared 1o 2018,
Results far the full year are expected ta reflect

a more favourahle second half phasing and

the henefits from restructuring.




World-class engineering expertise,
innovative technologies and reliable
cost effective solutions are at the heart
of IMI Critical Engineering's customer
offering. During the year these key
aftributes were key enablers to the
division’s success at winning a diverse
range of significant contracts.

tn September. IMI Truflo Haly and IMI Crifical
Ghina won a new order to supply pneumatic
actuated ball valves for a petrochemicat piant
in Dalian, China. The plant, which is owned
by Henagli Petrochemical. processes purified
terephthalic acid CPTAY), which s used

to produce a range of materials including
textiles and food and drink packaging.

Previpusly Hengli Petrochemical ad avearded
contracts to other businesses within the

M1 Critical Engineering division including

iMi Z&J and IMI Remaosa. Prior knowledge

and experignce of IMI's technical engineering
capabilities. our products and customer service,
helped IMI Trufio Italy secure the Dalian contract.

Warking closelv with Invista. the company that
ficenses the PTA technology to the Dalian plant,
{MI Truflo Naly developed customised balt valves
capable of operating with extremely viscous and
corrosive fluids. The technical specification and
know-how associaled with the product’s design
were originated at IMI Truflo Rona's plant in
Belgium. and then transferred to IMI Trufln itaty.

Henglvs plant tn Dalicen. China.
is one of the world's furgest
Petrochemical operations.

new quotey
procedures. OFeat new
products at lower costs

has increased our success
rates which protect product
margins.”

Roy Twite
Divisional Managing Director
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£153.2m

Key achievements

» On-time and on-budget completion
of world-class facility in India

» Commercial Vehicle contract wins
support growth

» Improved underlying margin despite
cost pressures

» Increased average Lean score
1o 75%

» Bimba integration progressing o plan

):j Find out nwore” www.imi-precision.com
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Performance

IM! Precision Engineering had ancther year of good
progress and delivered solid growth across all
verticals and regions. Revenues of £916m (2017
£791m) were 16% higher on an adjusted basis and,
after exciuding £10m of adverse foreign exchange
and £88m from the Bimba acquisition. were 6%
higher on an grgamic hasis.

Strong Industrial Automation sales in the first half

of 2018 slowed in the third quarter and declined
slightiy in the fourth, ieaving the fulf year up 2%
when compared to 2017. Commercial Vehicle related
sales of £196m reflected stronger than anticipated
markets and were 8% higher in the year. despite
£8m of contract completions, European Commercial
Vehicle revenues were slightly higher whilst North
America grew by 15%. Energy sales were 16%
higher than 2017 while Life Sciences and Rail
were 12% ang 14% higher, raspectively.

Segmental operating profit of £153.2m (2017
£133.5m) was 15% higher on an adjusted basis and,
after excluding £2m of adverse foreign exchange and
£7m from the Bimba acquisition, was 11% higher on
an ofganic hasis. Operating margins ¢f 16.7% (2017:
16.9%) reflect the impact of the Bimba acquisition

in the year, Excluding Bimba, underlying margins
compared favourably to fast year at 17.7%.

Good progress has been made with the integration
of Bimba into Precision Engineering’s North American
operations. We have also accelerated some of our
plans for Bimba to improve its operations and iT
infrastructure, in readiness for the opportunities

for growth and rnargin improvement.

Operationally, the division continued to make solid
progress and the combination of Lean, New Proguct
Development and cost-reduction itlatives all
contributed to a good performance in the year.
We also completed the relocation of our Ingian
operation to a new and larger facility in New Dethi
which was officially opened in October. This new
plant expands Precision Engineering's low-cost,

«

worfd-ciass manufacturing and engineering
capabilitios and enhances the division's ability
to serve Gur rapidly expanding market positions
arross Asia,

The implementation of Lean threughout the division
has continued to make exceflent progress. At the
end of 2018 Precision Engingering’s Lean scarg
increased to 75% compared to 79% at the end

of 2017,

Our focus on New Product Development (o enhance
our market competitiveness gathered momentuim.
The addition of integrated intelligence and
conneclivity across our product range remains

an important element of that strategy. In 2018,

new products were introduced across the entire
ranye and represented an increase in the vitality
index (sales from new producis intreduced in the
iast three years) to 12%.

In-sourcing actions already completed combined
with improved market conditions have helped
increase utilisation in the year. Localisation and
lowr-cost manufacturing translers conlinue lo
reduce lead times and improve customer service
and competitiveness.

In addition to product and operational investments,
the division continues to implement its new ERP
system and now has a world-class, fully integrated
IT systemn which is now planned to be rolled-out

in ur Asian operations.

Qutlook

The industrial outlook has become more voiatile
with leading indicators pointing to continued hut
slower growth in the Industrial Automation and
the Commercial Vehicle markets in 2019,

Based on current market conditions, we expect
first half organic revenues to be slightly higher,
with tiroadly flat margins, when compared o

the first half of 2018, The benefits of new product
launches and operational improvements are
expected to support improved results for the full year.



The Rail industry is highly competitive.
Reliability, safety and cost control are vital -
and the need to maximise operational
efficiency is a key priority. IM| Precision
Engineering, with more than 30 years'
experience in the rail sector, provides a
range of products and technologies which
enable rolling stock to operate effectively.

In particular the division’s innovative and
patented AMT air dryer system removes
moisture and impurities from compressed air
ensuring that pneumaticalty operated systems,
such as doors. suspension and brakes operate
reliahly and safcty. The AMT system offers
market-leading levels of perfermance

and reliability.

During 2018 demand for the AMT system
continued to grow and IMI Precision Engineering
won a number of new orders including a
contract to supply Metro Trains Melbourne Pty
Ltd in Australia with 270 AMT air dry systems
and a major OEM crder covering approximately
90 new Metro trains from Biaoding in China.

A conslanily improving production process
has heen required o hetp the division meet
increasing demand. clhiciently At the Leeds
facility where the: AMT system is manufactured,
a fully engaged team and their passion for
continucus /mprovement and Lean have
delivered the required improvements.

Lead times have becn reduced, inventory
management improved and standardisation
of the build process has reduced the
production cycle time.

Metvo Prains Moelbowrne Ply Lid in

Awstralion e it be supplied with 270
AMT aie diyg systems,

"2018 was a year of further
suceess for IMF Precision
Inginecring. Great newe
products. improved
operational performance and
the addition of Bimba were
all highlights in the year.”

Massima Grassi
Dhooznst Maging T oy
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Hydronic Engineering

] Performance | Outlook

Adjusted revenue IMI Hydronic Engineering's 2018 perfermance Based on current market conditions organic revenue

£3°9m was a tale of twa halves with the first half is expacted to grow in the first half of 20719 with
heing focused on the actions necessary to marging slightly improved when compared to the
deliver significant improvemenis in the second [ first halt of last year. Results for the full year are

Adjusted operating profit ha!f of the year. The actions taken successfully ( expected to reflect the benefits of our 2018

£52 om recovered margins and consolidated the restructuring and our normal second half bias.

L division's posttion as a market leader in

our care geographies and sectars.

Recovering substaritially from the decline
Key achievements | experienced in the first half of the year, revenues
on an adjusted basis of £309m (2017: £312m)
were 1% |ower than 2017 and, after excluding
£3m of adverse foreign exchange, were flat on

» Second half margins improved to
18.4% (2017 15.9%)

» Successiully re-established an organic basis. The result was affected by
foundations for sustainable and the actions taken to return lo satisfaclory
profitabie growth margins, including the closure of & loss-making

service business and the decision 10 avoid
product and project sales that generated
unacceptable margins,

» New product launches continue
to buiid sustainable competitive

advantage
» Maintained excellent | ean score Segmental operathg proft of £52.'0m (201.7:
N £49.7m) was 5% higher on an adjusted basis and,
of 78% . )
after excluding £1m of adverse foreign exchange,
» On-time on-budget implementation 6% higher on an organic basis, Margins improved
of divisional ERP to 16.8% (2017 15,9%) for the full year, with

a significant improvement in the second half
10 18.4% {2017:15.9%).

In our core territories market shares have remained
strong. Our key distributors, installers and specifiers
have responded positively 1o our refreshed produst

offering, constantly improving custemer service

and ongoing commitment 10 customer support.

New product investment continued and contributed
£60m, or 22% of sales, in the year. The division also
maintained its excellent Lean score of 78%, with the
Polish plant once again achieving the highest Lean
score in the Group,

The roll-out of the new JD Edwards ERP system
continued throughaut 2018 with the system now live
in three manufacturing businesses and thirteen of the

f ' l division's sales offices,
Find out mcrs. www.imi-hydronic.com




IMI Hydronic Engineering has a long and
successful track record of working closely
with designers and consultants to create
some of the most energy efficient and highly
successful commercial and residential
developments in the world.

These credentials. including the division's work
on the Maracana Stadium in Brazil, which
hasted the 2014 Vorld Cup final. helped IM)
Hydrenic Engineering win contracts 1o design
and install temperature control systems in
four of the World Cup 2018 stadia. The systems
instatled at each stadium, including the

St. Petersburg Stadium which has a seating
capacity of 67,000, incorporated products from
IM! Pneumatex. IMf TA and tME Heimeier, three
of the division’s market leading brands. In
addition, through efiective cross-divisional
collaboration with iMl Precision Engingering.
Norgen solenoid valves were also incorporated
into each temperature control system

Four Ruseivn 2oaé World Cip
stefinams weere fitiedweel Hpdvonic

Fargioes vinieg peasfucts (o pinoeide
greal lenperature condiol,

“Our in depth hydronic
experience in many varied
projects around the world
and our ability to share the
knowledge across thedocal
market and enginy

teamns, givesgp
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gt and Account

Corporate
responsibility

Our ambition is for IMI to become a world-class
business - a truly great company that leads its
marketplace, that thinks long-term, that delivers
sustainable value to all stakeholders and operates
all aspects of its business in a responsible way.

To help ensure we achieve this ambition we focus on:

Creating a positive Attracting the best
and collaborative people and developing
place to work and engaging with

our empioyees
We e conundtted 1o creating Oy performance s dependent
a positive and coliaborative on developing, relaining and
workplacs wihiere our cullure is rechuiling the besit people with
underpinned by cote values and the most relevant skills and
behaviow s which promoie fair experience who are aligned
and ethical working practices, with our values and behaviours

and who can contribute to
delivering our strategic ambitions.

J J
Turm to page 368 Tum to page 38



Prioritising health
and safety

The health and salciy of o
empioyees, contractors and
visitois is a primaty priciity for
thie Group. Cur combined Leat
aha Health and Safety audits
wnderpin Group-wide rigour
and continuous improvemaont
throughout our operations.

J
Turn to page 10

Members of IMI Reposa’s b
where IMIs investineni togother
with tadented emplogecs s
erented arweorld-closs busmess,

e

Ensuring that
we minimise our

environmental impact

We have a responsibility o
tainimise the environimersisl
impact of our day-to-day
opcrations. CGur products help
Gt customers operale e

systems and processes sately,

cleanly and cost etfectively.

0
Turn to page 42
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Corporate respons&bllnty

Creating a positive and
collaborative workplace

Vi Spe canetbrod B0 o enting o peedtive s
- .t
webvictos e cribbored by irroer e e vy e v i
R N Lk PO - N [ | . R N R L . L
P spnobe Tab cd cibioa) vronkig o ecline s D Be ol oA CONVIGL RO
Thov oroni b s nlbor o e the it ih”a; Lo iéfy TR ] R S Y S TR R
foroprer ot oo sffoctivelv, whitte stitaodo s s oo tobatninio ayeal peaple
Culture
We have a clear purpose and a well-established
set of values and behaviours that help shape
our culture and ouiline the standards and conduct
expected of everyong across the Group. Our values
anc behaviours are embedded in all our intermna
processes and procedures, inciuding our
Coge of Conduct, and they are integra! to the
“The IMI Way”. which detines how we do business.
Qur purpose \]
‘e deliver GREAT solutions for our
We employ around 11,000 people around the world } customers tackling the world’s most
! demanding engineering challenges.”
Breakdown of employees by geography Breakdown of employees by division ) Our m indset X
RoW B V-\T - )
2" ‘aslern Eurape S T Ty A N . F 4
U§nﬂ 514, M Creal Engincering GREAT togetier.
' 29 . - -
I;me;*;ﬁ;;‘ { \f\éﬂ Prazision
Maricets ey Our values
. l’M;HydmniG )
MNarth Enginggring \\l
America 146%
245
f Infegrity Excellence lamovation Collaboration
UK Gender Pay Gap Sumrmary for the year ending 5 April 2018*
Human rights, equality, diversity
UK Gender Pay Gap 2018 2017 and inclusion
Mean Gap 32.6% 36.5% We are commitied to creating a diverse and
Medlian Gap 21.7%  251% inclusive working environment where everyone
o ) is treated fairly and with respect.
* As highlighted in the graphic above, we are a global business employing around 11,000
people around the world. The above summary only covers our 1,046 UK employess. We are a signatery to the UN Glcbal Compact
ESST;LQ?TJ?:? Z‘r’:z‘ f“:;’;ﬁ?”der pgvgap, "’ge"‘z' _‘{”“h an *’?‘F}‘?Ta""” of which establishes standards for human rights,
1 W Cl i 7 N | K . . . .
9 AICLIATE0, 8 proviCed on our Wehsile: wwwImiplc.com labour practices and anti-corruption. We alsa
deploy our own policies and procedures, which
set out how people should be treated and how

we should conduct our business.
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We believe it is essential that across all parts

of our business we emplay people from different
backgrounds and cultures {¢ serve our global
footprint and our diverse customer base.

To ensure that our workplace is inclusive and
that all empleyees and workers are treated fairly
in an environment which is free from any form
of discrimination, we cperate a Group-wide
Diversity and Inclusion Pelicy. We implernent this
policy using a number of mechanisms including;

» the principles that underpin our Diversity and
In¢lusion Policy are embedded in all our humnan
resource processes and procedures which
are regularly reviewed for both appropriateness
and competitiveness;

we run diversity awareness training
pregrammes, including an E-learning moduse
{translated into core languages) which
EMpioyees can access via our global intranet;

- when creating shortlists for internal and external
vacancies, we insist that external recruiters
provide diverse shortlists;

w

as part of our internal management
perfermance process, each Divisional Managing
Director is set and further cascades objectives
and local metrics aimed at improving diversity
and inclusion in their division;

- we are commitled to emplaying and developing
locat employees in our geographies to align with
our customers and the communities in which
we work. As a result, we have a very small
and focused expatriate poputation; and

]

we have piloted workshops to promote diversity
of thought across key areas of our business
including in relation to product development
and innovation.

Gender mix across the Group”

Female Female % Male Male %
All 3.281 28%  BB1T T2
employees
Managers 237 20% 921 80'e
Senior 124 197 518 81
managers
Board 3 339, & 67

* Including agency and contractors.

The WISE campéigﬁ =

!-Ia'ving a diverse workforce Is essentia) -
to delivering our business goals. During .
* ‘the-year the Group joined the WISE "

- Campaign, a UK inifiative that is focused .~

on increasing the pai‘ticipatiun,-cnntribution.
.and success of women in science,
technology, engineering and mathematics

- (‘STEM'). Being part of WISE helps
to demonstrate our commitment to - .
encouraging gender diversity and we

. aim 1o be a preferred employer for anyone

- looking to build a career in engineering.

Ethical behaviour

It is essential that we run our business in an ethical

way with the highest standards of integrity.

As part of their indugtion, every employee who
joins the Group receives training in relation to
the IMI Way and our Code of Conduct which
covers, amengst other things, anti-bribery and
antl-corruption. Refresher training on our Code
of Conduct is provided regufarly. and is reinforced
through cur annual IMI Way Day, as well as
face-to-face and on-fine training sessions.

During the year, 7,000 employees undertook an
online traming module in anti-bribery and around
4,000 participatad in a sirilar programme
covering competition law. In addition, we have
a series of policies and procedures including
regutar on-site fegal and compliance reviews,

which are designed 1o help instil the highest ethical

standards and regulatory compliance. These are
embedded in our risk assessment processes,
further details of which are provided on page 46,

We encourage all employees to report fo their
manager any incident that is not in keeping with cur
values and behaviours. We operate a confidential
independent hetling in 12 languages, which atlows
anonymous reporting. Hotline activity is reviewed
each menth by the Group’s £thics and Compliance
Committee. An overview was presented 1o the Audit
Committee in 2018 and will go to the full Board in
2019, All reports are investigated thoroughly and,
where required, appropriate action is taken ta
resolve issues fully and quickly. During 2018, 49

cases were raported via the hotline which compared

052 in 2017 and 48 in 2016.

We conduct advanced due diligence on our
business partners including our agents and
distributors, We do this using a software 1oc!
that covers a range of areas including initial
and ongoing background checks, screening
against sanctions lists, a compliance certification
process and the signing of a formal agreement,
In addition, all our husinesses carry out checks
{including sanctions screening) to understand
potential customers and to identify risks that
may be involved in supplying to them,

Managing our supply chain

Qur commitment to human rights extends across
our supply chain. We conduct regular audits to
make sure that chiid or forced labour is not used
in our supply chain and that suppliers' werkplaces
are safe. If suppliers arg unable 10 comply with
our strict responsible business requirements

we terminate our relatienship with them.

We use a comhination of general corporate
responsibility pelicies and specific supply chain
compliance actions to avoid any potential for
modern slavery in our supply chain. Cur full
statement on the Modern Slavery Act and detail
about the steps wie take to ensure that slavery
and human trafficking do not take place within
our supply chain or any part of our business
is available on our website at: www.imiplc.com.

i
i

Community activities

We recognise our responsinility to the communities

around the world in which we operate. We support
a range of local charities and contribute funding
to organisaticns who provide emergency support

in crisis situations. During our annual ' [MI\Way Day’

our employecs across the Group spend ime
supporting a local community charity or project.
These initiatives contribute to the local community,
help build trust and reinforce our team building
and collaboralive approach,

Some of our IM| Way Day
2018 activities

» Planting trees in SriCity, India to
coincide with World Environment day.

» Donating blood in India / raising
funds for medical equipment for a
care home for the elderly.

» Donating bicycles to a charity which
supports neglected and disadvantaged
children, {Farmington, USA).

» Developing an outdoor space to
be used by schoof children and their
families (Birmingham, UK).

Promoting science,
technelogy and engineering
excellence

During 2018 we entered into partnerships
with three museums located near our
headquarters in the Midlands, They all
have links to our engineering heritage
and they are also aclively promoting
Science, Technology, Engineering and
Manufacturing. In the year we supported:

—  ha Dert y
Museum

The Derby Museum of Making’s new
Midland Maker Challenge Prize which will
be launched in 2019, Schools and higher
education providers will compete 1o design
solutions to address environmental and
societal challenges;

The redevelopment of the lronbridge Gorge
Museum Trust's Enginuity centre which is
a national design and technology centre
and interactive museum; and

ThinkTank in Birmingham's restoration of
The Smethwick Engine, the world's oldest
working steam engine.

Smigthwich
Engine m achon

Croul Barminghan' Muse s Tt
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engaging the best people
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Recruitment

Our performance and ahiiity to execute our
strategy relies upon recruiting the best people
with the most relevant skilis and experience who
share a passion for our vaiues and behaviours and
are afigned with our sirategic ambition. We operate
a robust process for selecting and integrating new
employees. We follow the principles embedded

in cur Recruitment Policy which aims to ensure
Our process is fair, transparent and consistent
with our ambition to develop our own talent

and leaders for the future.

Development and succession
planning

At M} we have a strong talent pipeline and training
and procedures which enable our employees to
enhance their skills and progress their careers.
We operate a wide ranging platform of training
and development programmes designed to
increase employee skills across a number of
discipfines. During the year the infernationally
renowned Branden Hall Group awarded our
"Leading the Way 1o Engineering GREAT"
programme a gold award for excellence

in leadership development.

In addition t¢ our training and development
programmes, all employees are provided with
on-the-job training and where appropriate,
personal mentoring. We also operate a
Performance Management Process 1o ensure
that all emplayees are appraised in a fair and
congistent way, This process provides employees
with regular opportunities to discuss their
objectives and personal development plans
during the year.

in ling with our ambition to develop our own talent
for future leadership roles we set and achigved
our target ot 40% for our 2018 leadership group
internal succession rate {32% in 2017). For 2019
we are aiming to improve thig further,
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Overview of our development and
training programmes

“| eading the Way to Engineering
GREAT” programme

Delegates: our leadership group

Ohjective: to ensure we have leadership skilis
across the Group capable of supporting our strategy
and growth

Number of participants:

since launch in 2015 arcund 230
pecple including 70 in 2018,
Target for end of 2019 — 300,

“Being a GREAT IM! Manager”
Delegates: newly promated and existing managers

Objective: to build a pipeline of management latent
capable of supporting cur strategy and growth

Number of participants: since launch in 2015
around 1,150 people including 400 in 2018.
Target for end of 2019 — 1,450.

“IMI Learn” - our Group-wide
E-training platform

Delegates: all employees across IM

Objective: to provide accessible and effective on-ling
training to support training and development across
) glabally

Number of participants: we have 8,000 registered
users on our learning management system
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“IMI Lean”- the key to operational
excellence

Delegates: senior organisational leadars

Objective: to equip site teaders 10 accelerate their
lean improvements

Number of participants: 300 people have completed
the training and taken the learning back to their sites.
Target for end of 2019 — 480.

', . \m.v-

e, g;%x.nflikw thie

RO R N A IR AT

bl

cviclipinent

Our graduate programme

Each year around 30 graduates, predominantly
with engineering backgrounds, join our business.

| Recruited from around the world, our graduates

participate in a twe-year structured programme
which includes different rotations and involvement
in live projects across the Group.

| ‘Our apprenticeship schemes

We operate our apprenticeship schemes in many

of our Eurcpean based businesses including

in Germany, UK and Sweden, Around 50 new
appreniices jein us each year and for each of them
we create a career development plan which covers
on and off the job training across a range of relevant
technical skills.

Here some of our apprentices explain
how their careers have developed

NAME AND GCURRENT ROLE:

Maria Collins
Apprentice, Jurior
Applications Engineegr,
IMI Precision Engineering
Fradley.

WHY [ JOINED:

| wanted to gain workplace skills and experience
that | could put into practice while studying and
my interests in science and problem solving led
me to choose a career in engineering. | wanted
to work at IMI for several reasons, including the
continuous improvement culture which provides
lots of opportunities for me to get involved in
really interesting projects.

MY EXPERIENCE:

| have gained so many skils including machine
operation, computer aided design, Jean and
ergonomics. | have also worked on a number of live
assignments including several factory improvement
programmes and a project to design a large-scale
model for use at a trade fair in Germany. At the
same time, | have gained further qualifications and
have also been able to promate engineering to
pupils at local schools and careers fairs.




Engagement

Given how important people are 1o our success,
maintaining an active dialogue with them is
essential. We keep them informed about the
Group’s performance and development as
well as specific matters that affect them as
employees. And we listen to their feedback

to identify the key issues that matter to them.

To facilitate this dialogue we operate a number
of regular and ad hoc mechanisms, some of
which are detailed on this page, In addition.

in November 2018 Birgit Nargaard, one of our
non-execulive directors. was designated as the
Director respensitle for undertaking Board level
workforce engagement. in this role Birgit will
parlicipate in our Group management conferance
and our European Communications Forum as
well as other events invelving employees.

NAME AND CURRENT ROLE:
Nils Nesladek
Trainee Production

Designer, IMI Z8.J,
Germany

WHY | JOINED:
IME has a reputation for being a good employer
that offers an excetlent training programme.
And because the Company recruits quite a
number of apprentices, | knew there would

be a good support network and lots of
opportunities to share experiences.

MY EXPERIENCE:
fam currently a frainge production designer.
My role covers both product design and
production engineering. Every day we're
focking to imprave our customer offering which
means always evolving what we do and moving
forward, | am impressed by the future focus
of the company and the emphasis on
continuous improvement. | am pleased

to feel part of a secure, yet constantly
improving work environment.

from the
+ 2018 intake
attend induction meetings

at IMI HQ.
Wt 2y vesting in and developing

gople s key to future

How we engage with our employees

Forum Engagement

Ml Way Day All employees participate In this annual event. Senior management
provide a business update, and employees then have an opportunity
to ask questions and discuss a range of issues. During the day
employees complete an employee engagement survey which covers
therr views on a number of mpertant business subjects, Survey results
are recorded and the data ig shared with employees, Action plans
are developed and used to measure and track progress, Further and
ongoing survey work 1s conducted where appropriate to mantan
positive momentun.

Group Conference 300 senior employees from across the Group meet for an update
on strategy and initiatives for the coming year. The agenda includes
a Q&A session with the Executive Directors and Divisional Managing
Directors and the Chairman also addresses participants. Feedback
is gathered during and after the event with the conference’s key
messages and outputs then communicated 1o all employees.

Eurcpean Employee representatives from around ten European countries meet
Communications regularly with senior management to discuss strategic progress and
Forum ("ECF™) performance compared to our key performance objectives.

The discussions cover updates on key initiatives such as IT security.
New Product Development, Lean and Value Engineering. Foliowing
the meeting, minutes and newsletters are produced and used by the
employee representatives to share information with their colieagues.

Town hall meetings  Our Divisional Managing Directors hold guarterly online town hall
meelings covering recent results and current initiatives. Employees
are invited to ask questions and provide feedback on their own
concerns and‘or share best practice on current initiatives.

Pulse surveys Where required we use quick and effective localised real-time surveys
to gather specific insights from employees. We use the findings to
inform our plans for improvement.

IMI Eve Qur cross-divisional magazine is published twice a year and covers
news stories and best practice sharing from around the Group.

Group-wide and Our global and divisional intranets are used to communicate key
divisional intranet developmenls and share best practice across the Group quickly
and effectively.

In 2018 over 8,900 employees participated in our IMI Way Day
survey. Results were consistent with the encouraging feedback
from previous years. In particular, 71% would recommend IMI
as a good employer to family and friends and 87% are clear
about the key priorities their division is focused on.
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Corporate responsibility

Prioritising health
& safety
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Progress during the year

Health and safety is our key priority and monitoring and improving our performance is a core metric which During the year we improved our health and

1s embedaed in olr reparting systems at multiple |evels across the whole of IML All areas of our business | safety performance in a number of areas:

cofnt;n uoii;:y ?ssess The!r operahcsns; ?nd tmie ytt;arly we undenake [a farr;wa\ Grioitrjf-::f)lvds heatlth in: -+ During the year the total number of LTAs reduced
safety audit at every major operalion to monitor the progress against our formal improvement actions, more than 20% 1o 18 against 23 in 2017.

Details of this review process are outlined below. The 2018 figure includes 3 LTAs recorded by

Bimba, which was acguired in January 2018,

Our bi-annual review process The Precision Engineering division s currently

Timing Activities Objectives and outputs executing a range of plans and initigtives to
integrate fully Bimba into their North American
November/ Local assessment of key » Audit current benchmark scores. operations and our key priority is to embed the
gfgembe’ gfeirf“%é"ffsi’f Ofﬁ;ﬁ’gmesg » ldentify business-critical issues, IMI health and safety culture and supparting
May/June" perormance issues and rate  JEVelop improvement actions to procedures across Bimba's entire business,

progress and track KPI trends.

of improvement. Undertaken tiom

by ingepen dent Ml Group  Agree further improvement activities » Tl1ere has been a slight reduction in the number

or divisicnal specialist health  with local and divisional leadership, of sites reporting zero LTAs (79% compared

and safety experts. » Monitor improvement activities. with 83%.\n 2 ?).Th!s reflacts the restructuring
of I Critical Engineering's manufacturing
footprint and the acquisition of Bimba.

January and July Publication of Lean - HSE » Idertify cornmonly recurming » The LTA frequency rate improved considerably
benchmarking data on Group-wide hazards. (26%) in 2078 and across IMI there was 0.8

Group intranet, o
P » Develop remedial plans to address. L TAs for every miltion hours worked comparad

0 1.1 in 2017,

in 2017, we launched a Group-wide campaign
1o prevent hand injuries which were the largest
volume of injuries reported in 2017, In 2018 IMI
Critical Engineering delivered a 65% reduction
in hang injuries and IMI Preciston Engingering
and IMI Hydronic Engineering reported reductions
of 35% and 56% respectively.

» Share best practice.

* Combined with semi-annual Lean benchmarking reviews.

In line with our established policies and precedures we strive to ensure 1hat accidents are aveidad and
that our operations are risk assessed to be as safe as possible. All employees, as part of their induction,
receive health and safety training relevant 1o their role in line with health, safety and environmental
compliance principles. Further on-site training in refation to hazard identification, risk assessment

and action planning is provided to employees engaged in manufacturing operations.

We report, record and investigate every incident requiring first aid, or medical intervention and in addition,
a full rool cause investigation of every Lost Time Accident ("LTA") is presenied to the relevani Divisional
Managing Director. Following a formal review at divisional level, a remediation plan is agreed and
implemented, and safety alerts are issued to share lessons learned and increase safety awareness
across the Group.




2018 Health & Safety initiatives

Our passion 1o continue 16 Improve our health
& safety performance resuited in the launch
of a number of new procedures and fraining
initiatives during the year including "Learning
to See” and "Lock Out Tag Out”.

“Learning to See”

In all our manufacturing operations
management routinely undertake “Gemba
Walks” ~ a Lean term used to describe the
detailed observation and identification of
potential hazards and risks. During 2018
we launched our “Learning to See” training
programme which equips our operationaj
management with further knowledge ang
skilis to make their Gemba Walks even
more effective, The two-day training
programme fakes pface on sife and
provides practical instruction on taking
the process beyond completion of health
and safety checklists to a more interactive
discussion with employees. This process
allows questions to be asked, encourages
suggestions for improvement and creates
meore effective and preactive engagement
on health and safety issues, During the
year over 600 employees based at our
manufacturing sites participated in

the Leaming to See programme.

“Lock Qut Tag Out”

Lock Out Tag Out is a safety procedure
used to ensure that machines are properjy
shut off and not able to operate during
maintenance and repair work, Prior to
2018 every Ml business operated its own
Lock OQut Tag Out procedure and as a result,
standards of protection varied across the
Group. In an affort to reduce the risk of
seripus injury in the high-risk shutdown
procedure, we introduced a new and

more stringent Lock Out Tag Out procedure
which all our operations are required

to adopt.

[y
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Ensuring that we minimise
our environmental impact
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Our operations

Wa operate globally with manufacturing facilities
in more than 20 countries, We are committed to
operating these faciiities in a sustainable way
and to minimise their impact on the environment.

We monitor and report our erwironmental
performance at the monthly Executive meetings
with a view 10 delivering continuous imprevement
and reducing our £0, emissions year-on-ysar.

Energy efficiency

Given the nature of our praduction processes,

our main focus is energy efficiency and our
Group-wide energy efficiency programme telivered
a number of improvements during the year. Details
of some of the key projects are set cut bejow:

» |MI Critical Engineering installed a new
award-winning heating system in three of the
manufacturing hafls at Ml Z&J's facifity in Otiren,
Germany. As a result, gas consumption in the
three halls has been reduced by 30%.

» IMI Precision Engineering introduced a
renewable power system in parts of its facility
in Alpen Germany, Following the installation
of solar panels and heat pumps the facility’s
€O, emissions and energy consumption
have reduced.

» IMI Hydronic Engineering instalied new LED
lighting throughout its Swedish plant in Ljung
which has helped reduce CO, emissions and
electricity consumption.

We support the Carbon Disclosure Project ("CDP™
climate change initiative and submit annua! CDP
reports which cover our risk management approach
to climate change and our emissions performance.

Since 2015, on a like for like hasis {excluding
Bimba), we have reduced our CO, emissions by
over 4%. In fine with our continuous improvement
culture and investment in our operations, we are
committed te further reducing our emissions

in the future,

ot geren

cobtitiene thet e
ENATHES
iy and Gon b e tiviety,
Pragnpine e the m':;::.'s: [
CO, emissions
‘000
tonnes
‘1
“2008 2018 2047 2018

Reduction in waste and scrap

As outiined on page 22, iniproving operational
performance is one of our key strategic priorties,
By running our business more efficiently we
enhance our competitiveness, save costs and

reduce wagte and scrap levels. Each of our divisions |

has made significant progress in this area including:

» IMI Critical Engineering: at IM! Z&J's facility
in Germany, Lean methedology probiem solving
lechniques were used to identity three main
areas for improvement, including welding errors.
Processes in the plant have been adapted and
improved and as a result scrap levels have
reduced by 5% year on year.

IM1 Precision Engineering: since 2017, IMI
Precision Engineering Fradiey’s scrap levels have
reduced by 67%. driven by the implementation
of Lean process design and the Fradley team
undertaking regular problem solving and Kaizen
continuous improvement activities. Lead times
and inventary levels have shown radical
improverment as a result.

IM! Hydronic Engineering: the division's facility
at Erwitte, Germany has continued to reduce its
scrap. Building on the 50% reduction achieved

in 2017, the piant reduced ifs scrap levels by

a further 10% in 2018. The application of Lean
methodology and protlem solving to identify

the root cause and implementing improvement
actions underpinned the improvement.
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Our products

Our products and technelogies help our customers
operate their processes safefy, cleanly and
efficiently and help address some cf the biggest
global challenges facing the world today including
climate change and resource scarcity. Below are
some of our products that help reduce emissions
and energy consumplion.

» IMI Crifical Engineering's EEEasy-Seal™:
this innovative sealing system for control valves
prevents the leakage of emissions in oil refineries
and petrochemical plants.

» IMI Precision Engineeting’s PET
blowing blocks:
this market leading product reduces the amount
of air, and as a result energy, required to
manufacture plastic bottles.

» |MI Hydronic Engineering’s Halo:
launched in 2018, this thermastatic radiator
head, which has a huilt-in sensor, controls the
temperature of individual rooms by autormatically
adjusting flows, depending on ambient
temperature. Compared with a manual radiator
head, it can reduce energy consumption by as
much as 28%.
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1 JIV'II Precision Engineering’s new plant in
"L - . Noida near New Delhi has its own sewage
g . treatment plant which converts sewage inte
- bipdegradable waste. The fucility also has a
A rgin water harvesting system which colfects
Tain and feeds it back into lthe ground.
» #Fupther information about the new plant can
v be'(ognd on page 20.

A

e

.y

2 Hydgronic Engineening’s now thermosiatic

? head Halo not endy helps 1o achieve encray
avings for homeowners, it also has o

"styhsh modern design.

ol

3 Mew chnergy efficient and environmentally
frionelly LED lighting in Hydromc
- Engineering’s plant in Sweden.

"4 IMI Norgren PET hiowing block.
5 PET hotte manufacturing

6 EEEasy-Scal™ wili ensure a significant
reduction in valve leakacgus.
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Measurements and targets
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Organic revenue growth | Segmental operating profit
Y _ Milions .
i = +5% o -
0% _
) 5% o
£227.7Tm £240.9m £266.3m
2016 2017 “2018 Tapie BT 2018
Organic revenue growth excludes the impact In 2018, Group segmental operating nrofit was
of acquisitions, disposals and foreign exchangs £266m compared to £241m representing an
movements, The revenues from acguisitions are increase of 11% on an adjusted hasis, On an
only included in the current year for the period organic basis, after adjusting for the impact
during which the revenues were also included in of exchange rates, acquisitions and disposals,
the prior period. In 2018 the Group's continuing segmental operating profil increased by 9%,
husinesses delivered 5% organic revenue growth,




Skilled explovees Lelp cnsure
warld-class guality products
Jor our customers,

Health & Safety lost time
accident rate

Par 100,000
aurs

NN

0.07 0,11 0,08

2016 2017 2018

The health and safety of all our employees is
paramount. We measure our progress in this
area by tracking our >1 day lost time accident
frequency rate ('LTA rate"). In 2018 qur LTA
rate reduced to 0.08, reflecting the Group's
continued focus on identifying ard reducing
workplace hazards.

Lean assessment

66% n%
Yea;-_e_na Ea:e:d Year-end
206 2017 2018

During the year we continued to improve our
operational performance and Lean scores.

Our six monthly benchmarking procass is now
fully embedded, and scares continue to reflect
the improvement which is being achieved across
all Group operations. Our highest score is now
95% and the average has increased from 31%
when we first benchmarked the business in
2014 1o 75% at year-end 2018.

Return on capital employed

12.6% 12.4%

2018 2017 2018

Return on capital employed (‘ROCE'") is defined
as segmental operating profit after tax divided
by capital employed. Capital employed is defined
as nat assets adjusted to remove net debt,
derivative assetsiabilities, deferred tax and

to reverse histarical impalrments of goodwill
and amortisation of acquired intangible assets.
In 2018, ROCE was 12.8% which compares

to 12.4% in 2017 and reflects the Group's ability
to deliver improved profitability despite mixed
market conditions.
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How we manage

rlsk |
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Our risk management framework

The Board has overall responsibility for ensuring that we manage our

risk exposure appropriately to achieve our strategic objectives and buiid
~sustainable shareholder value.

| Our risk appetite .

In determining our risk appetite, the Board considers a number of factors
including our strategic opportunities, the risks that could affect our business
and our ability to mitigate their impact. Our sk appetite, the nature and level

of risk we are prepared to accept to achieve our sirategic objectives, is dwvided

The Beard determines our risk appetite and monitors and reviews the risk o three categories: prudent, balanced and receptive.

management processes we operate. The Board delegates responsibility for
implementing and monitoring inlernal controls and other elements of risk
management to the Chief Executive and the Executive Committee. The Board
has also tasked its committees with responsibility for key areas of risk, as follows:

Risk appetite

Balanced Receptive

Prudent 1l

» pversight of financial reporting. internal financial controls and assurance
processes — the Audit Committes;

» succession risk - the Nominations Committee; and

» ramuneration and ingentive structure risk - the Remuneration Committee

Further information ahout the roles and responsibilities of the Board and each
Committee is set out on pages 52 to 79.

How we approach risk management

Across the Group we operate a “fop-down, bottom-up approach” to risk management which is illustrated in the graphic below. This approach allows the Board
and the senior leadership team to actively assess strategic risks and monitor the measures used to mitigate, transfer or avoid such risks. It also ensures that
operational risks are identified and managed at muttipie levels and that key risk information is communicated effectively across the Group.

Qur risk management pracess is embedded in ali our businesses. It provides guidance on how to identify, evaluate and manage risks which coudd impact
our performance and our ability to implement our strategy.

STRATEGIC RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS OPERATIONAL RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS

- Delermines risk appelite Board » Revisws bi-annually a detailed anabysis of the Group's nsk profile including supporting divisional
+ Reviews principal risks data and the actions undertaken to ensure compliance wath the UK Corporate Governance Code
- Moritors and reviews risk management processes + Reviews annually the effectivengss of the Group's internal Lonttyls
» Responsiole for ensuring risk management culture is integrated Divisional » Davelops bi-annually e detailed Group and divisional risk profila which is based on information
across their division and aligned to the Group's objectives. and uploaded 1o the Group infranet by each manufacturing operation. This protile analyses each
» Determines principal risks and mitigation strategies (E:xecutll;e division’s most significant Hsks and outiines mitigation stralegles.
ommittee
» Montors changes in the risk profie,
» Monttors quality and effectiveness of busingss level risk
mManagement processes.
» Operates and menitors an active and effective risk Operating » Mantaing an up-1o-date nsk profile which entifies the key risks facing the business, assesses
management process companies mitigating processes and controls, operates key nerformance indicators to validate the
« Updates operaling companies on principal risks and effactivenass of those controls and dentifies areas far improvement,
ritigation strategies. » Pubitishes dsk profifes for éach manufactuning eperation to the Group intranet twice a year.
= Dperates reporting systems that ingrease management J/ - Prowides monthly updates on key rigks, mitigation and contrals through incorporation of risk

ownership and accountahvity. profile data in monthly management réperting process.
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Our principal risks

STRATEGIC
Capitalising on significant organic
GROWTH grovsih opportunities
The principal risks facing the Greup are shown in order of pricrity in the tabte below, :E"PR'“ES ‘
This analysis covers how each risk could impact our strategy and explains what we 9 L"Qmé“’n geperatlonal
are doing to monitor and mitigate each risk area,
o . b . Increasing investment in
The Group is also e)};‘)osed o broader financial market risks, in particular, currency @ New Prodkct Development
exchange rate volatility following the Brexit referendum. A description of these risks
and our centralised approach to managing them is described in Section 4.4 of the @(g;’ Expanding owr adtressable markets
financial statements through targsled acquisitions
STRATEGIC GROWTH
PRINGIPAL RISKS PRIORITIES THAT WHY WE THINK THIS HOW WE ARE MANAGING
- CHANGES DURING 2018 GOULD BE AFFECTED IS IMPORTANT THE RISK
GLOBAL EGONOMIC » The threat of a ‘no-deal’ Brexit is te sk » Build flexibility to respond to market conditions and
OR POLITICAL INSTABILITY @ of both Bt and UK ports net coping with the potaatial impact assouiated with Braxit

0

+ The possibitty that the UK leaves the EL with
neither a transition period nor a free trade
agresment in place continues to pese a risk
1o the supply chains, engeing operations and
profitabiity of the Group.

= IMI Critical Engincenng continuied to tace highly
competdive markets and an ongoing slow-down
in the New Construction Fossil Power sector.
The impact has been managed thraugh ongoing
restructuring actions including expanding the
divisian's Value Engineering activines and
entering new less severe market areas.

= Whilst remaining in a strong competitive
positian, IMI Precision Engineering has alse
experienced volatility in some geographies
and sectors.

= IMI Hydronic Engineering markets remained
stable with stcady growth in most markets, and
nght-sizing actions were underlaken lo ensure
the busmess could respond to market changes.

QO

@gj

the additional velume of customs work
which could smpact our supply chain
and sales dolvory,

» The Group operates in diverse global markets
and derand for our products is dependent on
economic and sector-specilic environments.

= A downturn in a global or regional economy
or political instability could impact end market
demand, negatively impacting revenue and
our ability to deliver our strateay and achieve
market gxpeutations,

- Dvisienal priject tzams formed to dertf; 'no-deal’
Brexit nsks and huild mitigatan contingency plans
EU-Lk cross-border transactor flows have besn
mapped, and cnitical supply cham nsks wientiliee b,

customer and pan with specific action plans put in place,

Qur main ofective and the tacus of our contingency
panming i to mirimise interrupnons o oar suprl, chain
and ensure our customer defivery commitments are met
= Maintain a halarce:d portfol-o operaling across a
range of ma-kets, sectors and gecgraphies with
no single degendency
+ Monitar key customers and resnend quickly 1o changes
n their deniands,

= Ltilise core forecasting processes that easure
operational oulput can e nght-sized 10 market
drmani,

- Undertake gnhancen stress testing and senstivity
analysis of business plans and regulariy review key
market and sector mighics

» Focus on 2nhancing sompzslitiveness by incieasing
investmant in New Product Development and Valug
Engineenng and improving operational performance.

» Davelop robust contingency plans to ensure agiity
tu realige the cost base a5 required.

FAILURE TO DELIVER MAJOR
TRANSFORMATIONAL PROJECTS
ON TIME AND ON BUDGET

[ @

= Suctessful ERP implementations across the
Group in 2018 continued to demonstrate the
proficiency of cur system Implementation teams
and proven effective control.

= IMi Critical Enginesning has successfully
managed a number of significant restructuring
projects over the course of 2016 — mcluding
several plant closures — on time and fo hudget.

= The Graup 1s continually evalving, bolh in
response to exiernal market pressures and
ta achigve our strategic goals.

» Change projects include business
reorganisations and implemantaliens
of complex new IT systems.

» Failure to delver these change projects on
time and en budget, and failure to respond to
changing market conditions. coulet adversely
impact our financial performance.

» {perate rehust systems and procedures to manage
and manitor business projects, ncluding clear and
measurable milestones, which are reviewed reguiarly
iy Divisional Managing Cirectors.

= Review major project progross ot monthly Executive
Committez meetings

» Contiiue to enband e risk assessment processes and
mitigation action plans

» Undertake specialist IT and Group Assurance reviews
of major T projgcts.

= Develop detailed cantingency plans.

» Hold monthly operational and ERP steering commtez
megtings which rigorously reéview projec! progiess

= Post ga-lve audits 1o reviess pregress on
implementation plans

QUALITY ISSUES LEADING TO
PRODUCT FAILURE, REGALL,
WARRANTY ISSUES, INJURY,
DAMAGE OR DISRUPTION TG
CUSTOMERS’ BUSINESS

LISK TAINVE AL

N0 CHANGE

» Qur gperational performance continued to
improve aver the course of 2018, Details of key
developments can be feund on page 22,

» During the year, we successfully launched a range
of new products, maintaining our high standards
for quality and customer satisfaction. The level of
risk has remained the same year-on-year due to
the strength of the procedures and controls in the
New Product Development process.

Q@

0o

» Developng sale, innovative and techmcally
advanced products is at the heart of what
wa (o,

= Failure to deliver the quality required
coukd result in negative financial and
repulational damage.

» Estabbshied Group-wide slandard for Advanced
Proguct Quality Planning process (APOP) which
gvery business renors on weekly and monthly
This 1dentifies improvements in the early phases
of the development process.

» Continued focus on Quality Management Systems
and augits.

= Test finished products and secure custemer sign-off
on the most critical products.

- Deploy targeted Lean events 1o improve guality,
including implementation of Obeya reviews.
Reviewed every 6-months with Group-wide
Lean assassiment progianmme,

» Gontinug to uggrade talent with & focus on quality
and praduct development expertise and expengnce.

LONANRCAU| ‘

7]
=
s
&
=S
o
g8,
8
b
a
=
©
£

aouBtIeAOt) 3iRIodion)

SIUBLISIEIS [BIOVBLIY |



48 iMI plc

Our principal risks

Annual Report_a__l]_t_:l_Accounts 2018

STRATEGIC GROWTH

PRINCIPAL RISKS PRIGRITIES THAT WHY WE THINK THIS HOW WE ARE MANAGING
- CHANGES DURING 2018 GOULD BE AFFECTED 1S IMPORTANT THE RISK
FAILURE TO INTEGRATE » An integral part of our strategic plan is to make - Undertake annual review 1o identify potertial target

AGQUISITIONS SUCCESSFULLY AND
DELIVER THE REQUIRED SYNERGIES

S ®

» Qur post acquisition integration process, which
deploys a mix of divisional and Group resources,
ensures that the right people across al disciplings
are avallable to successiully project manage
acquisition integration.

» Successfully deployed the integration process to
monitor and manage Bimba Manufacturing post
acquisition, Pregress has been tracked using a
structured integration plan with key milestones
and responsibiliies,

vaiug enhancing acquisitions.

» Failure 1o deliver the post-acquistion strategy
could reduce the vaiue of acquired busmnesses.

@@‘

acquisdions that align with cur strategy.

- ldentity hard and zoft synergies within targeted
acquisshion apportunilies

- Acdhere te fermal acquisition approval, duc diligenue
and post-acquisiion integration processes

- Deploy a rigorous 100-day process to effectvely

monitor and manage post acquisition ntegration.

FAILURE TO GOMPLY WITH
LEGISLATION OR A BREACH OF OUR
OWN HIGH STANDARDS OF ETHICAL
BEHAVIOUR

[
[ET LA

» We do not engage with cuslomers, suppliers
or any other third parties who are nat afigned
with our own code of conducl and strong
ethical slandards.

= During the year we intraduced internal controls
and procedures to ensure compliance with the
EU General Data Protection Regulation,

= Prior to the November 20718 deadline, we clesed
down all trading activities with Iran following the
re-imposition of US sanctions.

» The challenging territories in which we operate
make the risk of regulatory breach a continued
area of focus. As such, our risk profile remains
unchanged.

» The glohal markets and regulatory envirenmeant
demand the highest standards of senduct and
adherence to comphiance rules and procedures.

» Failure to comply with legislative requirements or
a breach of our Code of Conduct could resulf in
sigmificant financial and reputational damage.

» As we expand our operations 1o achieve growth it

is essential that we maintain our high standards
of conduct and compliance procedures.

= Legisiative requirements in relation to tax,
anti-bribery, fraud and compctition lave include
rigrous menitering and training of new and
existing employess.

- Commimed 1¢ fostering a positive cufture underpinned
y oore vakaes and hehavim s that premote fair and
ethical working practices

- Contnue a robust iternal contiols declaration
process.

- Established dedicated complianee 1eseurces at Group,
chvigional and focdl levels. Each division have specific
complighee plans in place which are executed over
ihe course of the year.

All employees are provided wath casy access to
palicics. manual3, guidelines ond standard operating
procetlures via our glehal intranet,

Undertake 1eqular employee training focused on hey
rigk areas such as fraud, antbnbery and corruption
and how 10 apply the M1 Way in evervday situations,

- Operate a confidential independent hotling to
report CONCerns.
Undertake rigarous due diligence and approval

procedutes on third party agents, Terminale all
non-compliant agents.

= Operale sirngent procedures and processes for
dealings with tugher risk territones, Inciuding formal
training for relevanl employees,

Actwely monitor and manage trade sanctions,

FAILURE TO MANAGE
THE SUPPLY CHAIN

NS EATRIFY
LSO

» The possibility that the UK leaves the EU with
neither 4 transition period nor a free trade
agreement in place continuges 10 pose a risk to
the supply chains, engoing operations and
profitability of the Group.

» Growth in our M Precision Engineering markets
has placed pressure on our supplisrs, in some
cases impacting on eur delivery performance
in 2018. In response, the division upgraded its
supplier management processes and is executing
specific improvement plans for critical suppliers.

it

e

= We depend on a significant number of suppliers
[\ wha provide essential products and servicas.

= Failure to manage our supply chain, especially
in respect of guality or an-time delivery to our
customers, could have a material impact en our
financial performance and reputation.

10

*
“m"

= Aulhotise the puichase and manufacture of long lead-
time components to and from our UK/EU supply base,

= ExgoUte our contingancy plans in the case of a ‘na-
deal’ Brexit and continue to monstor the situatien and
react accordingly.

Monttor risks on a regular hasis and develop
cantingency plans to mitigate the impact of supplier
fallie, increased pricing of any othér supplier
associated risk.

- Assess speclfic Supplier Code of Conduct nsks avruss
divisional supply chaing and audit tugh-risk suppliers for
all aspects of supply chain risk inchiding Modern Stavery.,

» Onerate prefarred supplier lists for all major materials
and compenents, Where appropriata, certain suppliers
are operating under a framework agreement,

» Regular review meetings with key suppliers and,
as required, deploy escalation meetings.

- Mendor key supplier performance using
supplier scorecards.

= Carry adequate safety stock and/or maintain
dual supply seurces for critical components.
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5 TEGIC Capitalising on significant organic
GROWTH growth opporiuniies
PRIORITIES
KEY Improving cperational
performance
Increasing investment in
New Produrt Development
@g Expanding our addressable markets
through targeted acouisiions
WHY WE THINK THIS HOW WE ARE MANAGING
1S IMPORTANT THE RISK

STRATEGIC GROWTH
PRINCIPAL RISKS PRIORITIES THAT
— CHANGES DURING 20718 COULD BE AFFECTED
UNAUTHORISED AGCESS TO
OUR IT SYSTEMS

°

- The digital and security threat enwirenment in
relation 10 our [T systems and infrastruciure 1s
constantly and quickly evolving, We continued
ta invest in strengthsning our IT systems
and protecting our data, alongsde raising
awareness of cyber security across all parts
of our business.

010

~ During 2018 the Group significantly upgrated
pur anti-malware, intruder detection, USB
device conirol and internet liltering capabiities.
In addition, we have deploved laptop encryption
and completed a sigmificant number of firewall
replacements to reinforce our infrastructure
against new and emerging threals

» A securty awareness campaign, 'Be Cyber
Sale’ commenced roll out during 2018 and
will continue to run threughout 2019,

- While we have a well-developed strategy to
keep ahreast of new threats and continually
improve the Group's IT nfrastructure. we
cannot guarantee that our actions are keeping
pace with the constantly evolving threat
environment.

= Unapproved access 10 our [T systems could

resull in loss of intellectual property, fraudulent
activity, theft and business inferruption

» Continug cur {1 Security Improvement programmé
atross the Group This includas 2247 network
montering wia a secunty operations centre

» Centralized secunty sotwarg in place, Centinued
emptiasis un upgrading and strengthening oul
exisling hardwarz and soflware aganst new and
emeraing threats

- Monthly rewseves with Divisicnal Managing Eirectors
to assess pregress and monitor fuiure actions
antl priorres.

» Centinue te raise awarenzss al cyber securily hrough
regllar employee communications

+Instigated disaster recovery plans on all essential
IT assels, ncluding stringent system back up
pracedures at all of our husinesses

INGREASINGLY COMPETITIVE
MARKETS

1 MIOVERTE LT

Q
)

= Market dynamics continues to be & significant
consideration for the Group and impacts all
three divisions. We have experienced increases
in material, 1abour and other costs which
impacted our business over the course of 2018.

0o

= Value Engineenng processes enabled IMIE
Critical Engineenng to wir £180m of new
orders :n 2018,

» Divisional restructuring activities continue to
efficiently manage our fixed cost base and
will remain an ongoing focus over the

» Ingreased competition could lead to foss
of customers and/er pricing pressures
resulting in lost sales, reduced profits and
rmargin deterioration.

» Canirue to emhed effective New Prociuct Development
processes including competitor tear down testing,
benchmarking competitorn produects and Value Enginezeng

» Aclive parldipation in inlerralional frade fairs and shows.

» Lnilise nur mediics to track performance and dentify
areas for improvement

+ Comtinug to review site capacity to ensure best
utilisation and improve productivity,

» Develcped standard costings to ensure thorough
urderstanding of product cost and internal procasses
o frack and manage cost increase appeopriately.

- Continie 1 eahance cperational performance. quakty

delvery and service standards through Lean implernentation.

- Undartake reqular custemer feedback performance
survays and implement action plans where
improvements are required.

» Continue Value Engmesring activities in all three
divisions to deliver better, mare cost-effective products
to the customer.

- (perate market specific pnenig strategies to
mainta'n margins and continually review supply chamn
nerformance 10 mitigate or deler input cost inflation

course of 2019.
NEW PRODUCT
DEVELOPMENT @

PESK IIFIIENT
RO GHAHGE

» Our end to end Advanced Praduct Quality E

Flanning (APQP) and New Product Development
processes have successiully delivered
competitivedy priced new products to market.

» During 2018, processes covering design,
prototyping, 1esting, costing and launch
to markets, were embedded across al
\hree divisions.

= A New Product Develepment and Future
Innovation strategy was put in place for
each division in 2018,

» Further information about our New Product
Devetopment activities are detailed on page 24.

= Qur sustainable fong-term growth is reliant
on delivering a pipeline of innovative
new preducts,

= Failure to defiver market leading products
on time and on burdgat will impact our ability
lo grow.

» Embed New Product Development inte strategic
planning pracess wilh technology and product
roadmaps included in each division’s fve-year plan

- Continue to invest in research and development to
ensure we target the most profitable opportunities,

» £statihshed centres of design and
technolagical excellence.

» Track new product introduction plans and actions
on both a weekly and monthly basis.

» Track key performance metrics including sales
frem new products and research and development
spend against sales

= Continue competitor product tear down and testing.
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Board of Directors

Lord Smith of Kelvin
Chairman (74)

Naticnality
British

Committee membership

Nominations Committee — Chay

Date of appointment
2015

Expertise
Significant UK and internatior al
board experience

Extensive knowledge of both
enginearing and manutacturing

Strong track record in private
oguity. mergers and acauistions

Speciakst capabilty in tnance

Key external appointments

Non-executiva Charman of
Alllance Trust pic

Non-executive Chairman of the
British Business Bank plc

' Roy Twite assumes Chief Execubve role from Mark Selway on 9 May 2019,

Mark Selway
Chief Executive™ (59)

Austrahan

Executive Comimitiae

2013

Experenced and proven

Chief Exocutive

Sold track record running
internatonal engneering
businesses

In-depth knowledge of relevant
end-markels including oll &8 gas
energy and automotive

Roy Twite
Executive Director' (51)

Britistt

Executive Commitlee

2007

Proven erganisational and
engineenng expertise
Management capability having
run all of IMi's diisions
Extensve knowledge ot
end-markets and

customer base

Non-executive director of
Halma plc

[D: Find out mmore; wwwi.imiple.com/about-imifieadership-and-governance/board.aspx

Finance Director {51}

American British

Executive Committee

J
?
l Daniel Shook
l
|
|

2015

Exlensive financial
management experience

Extenene knowledge of complex
ProCess Manufaciunng across
arange of industual sectors

Sheng international
perspective, having worked n
a number of key geographics
during his time with two leading
global businesses

Annual Report and Ac_counts 7201 8

Carl-Peter Forster !
Senior independent
non-executive director {64)

German

Audit Commttes
MNatrirations Conimittes
Remuneration Commities

2012

Experienced nlernational
business leader

In-depth knov.ledge of
the automotive sector

Expert in operational excellence
and Lean manufacluring

Significant experience in
techrology managemem

Non-exceutive director of Geely
Automobile Holdings, Hong Kong

Chairrman of Landen
Taxi Company

Non-executive director of
Volve Cars Corporation

Chairman of Chemring Group plc

Member of the PWC
Advisory Board
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Birgit Nergaard
Independent
non-gxecutive director {80

Mationality
Danish

Committee membership
Remuneration Committes
- Char

Audit Commitlee
Nominatiens Commitice

Non-executive director for
employee engagement

Date of appeiniment
20z

Expertise
Expenenced ron-Gxeculivc

Held senior executive positions
N eNgIneenng Consultancy
Wade ranging sectoral
expanence including energy,
waler, nfrastrusture andg
bulding ndustries

Experience in stralegy as wel
s finance and acsounting

Key external appointments

Non-executive dirasctor of
DSV A/S and NCC AB
Non-exectiive director of
WSP Glotal inc.

Isobel Sharp
Independent
non-executive director (63)

British

Aucit Committeg — Chair
Nominations Comnmattes

2015

Considerable sccounting, audit,
governance and transactions
expenence including time as the
Senicr Techrical Pariner at
Deleitte in London. President

of the Instrtute of Chartered
Accountants of Scotfand

ang membership of the UK
Accounting Standards Board
dand the Reporting Rewve s Panel

Non-executive diractor and
Audit Comrettee Charr of The
Bankers Investment Trust PLC
Nen-executive director and
Audit Cormmiiltee Chair of
Winton Group Limited
Henorary Professor at
Edinburgh University
Business Scheol

Thomas Thune
Andersen

Independert
non-executive director (63)

Darush

Nommnations Comimittee
Remuneration Cormimities

2018

Experienced nterhational
business leader in seclo's
including ol energy, rmanne
and critcal infrastructure

Broad experience as a non-
executive director of various
publc companies

Chairman of Lloyds Regrster
Group, Non-ecxeculve director
of BW Oftshore Lirmited and
Chairman of Orsted A/S
Member of the Danish
Comimittee for Good
Corporate Governance

Katie Jackson
Independent
nen-executive director (45)

Buitish

Naminatons Comimittes
Rerruneration Comnittee

2018

Senior executive expenence
in major ol companies and
investment banking

Specialist knowladge of the oil
and gas sector and excellent
corpotate inance experignce

Executive Vice President

of Commercial and New

Business Development at
Royal Duteh Shell

Board
experience

International
business
responsibility

Engineering

Pubilic
company
board

Finance

Regulatory &
legal

Mergers &
acquisitions

LONNPOIL| |
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Chairman’s

Governance letter

Dear Shareholder

PRI S FRITTE SR TCE N U FEALI OIS PIN SR S
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Leadership

I'am now in my fourth year as Chairman and very much enjoying my role,
During the year two new non-executive directors joined the Board bringing
considerable and relevant experience as well as fresh perspective.

The Board is fully engaged, able to both support and challenge the executive
team, and has the skills and experience to oversee governance, financial
controls and risk management. The quality of debate at meetings is high
and we get valuable input from all of our non-execytive directors, | benefiy
from a strong working relationship with the Chief Executive and we keep
in close contact on a weekly and mare frequent hasis as necessary.

Culture

The Board sets the fone at the top and has established clear leadership values
and behaviours which are underpinned by a comprehensive Code of Genduct and
governance framework, The IMI Code of Cenduct is given to every employee
and features in induction and other training and the annual IMI Way Day.

Our values and expected hehaviours are built into our leadership development
programmes and performance assessment processes. Excellent leadership
behaviours are a pre-requisite for satistactory performance and career
advancement in the Group. We have also embeddsd policies and processes

10 set clear standards for compliance and doing business in the right way.,

During 2019 the Board will commence an increasingly formal review of the
Group’'s culture by reference 10 a range of key indicators including Group-wide
employee survey data and other stakeholder fesdback.

Annual Repart and Accounts 2018

Governance highlights

» Following a rigorous selection process supparted by Russe!l Reynolds that
included both internal and external candidates, the Board agreed to appoint
Roy Twite as IMI's next Chief Executive.

» The new chairs of the Audit and Remuneration Commiittees were fuily
inducted and have made an excellent start in their roles,

» Following wide ranging search processes led by the Nominations
Committee, Thomas Thune Andersen and Katie Jackson were appointed
to the Board as non-executive directors.

» A review of the Directors’ Remuneration Policy was completed by the
Remuneration Committee following stakehalder consultation and the
resulling proposals were approved by the 2018 Annual Genaral Mesting.

» We continued to refing the detailed plans behind the Group's strategy and to
oversee progress in the implementation of the strategy at a business level.

. » We completed the significant, complementary acquisition of Bimba

Manufacturing Company for £138m and following the Bimba acquisition,
the Board visited the principal manufacturing site near Chicago.

» An audit tender process was run by the Audit Committee which resuited
in a decision to reappeint Ernst & Young LLP as auditor subject to
annual shareholder approval at the Annual General Meeting.

» We continued to maintain good investor relationships and the
directors met with major shareholders as part of our ongoing
investor relations programme.

Compliance with the 2016 UK Corporate
Governance Code (the “2016 Code")

| am pleased to report that iMI complied with the principles of the 2016 Code
throughout the year. We also complied with the 2016 Code provisions save
for a period when our Remuneration Committee membership was reduced
to two while we brought other nen-executives on board following the sad
death of Bob Stack late in 2017.

We acknowledge the introduction of the 2018 UK Gorporate Governance
Code {the “2018 Code") and during the year we took appropriate steps to
prepare for compliance with the new requirements which came into effect
from 3 January 2019, In November 2018, we announced the appointment
of Birgit Ngrgaard as non-executive director with responsibility for workforce
engagement. We have also revised our corporate governance framework
and the business cycles for the Board and its committees to reflect the
2018 Code and appropriate training has been provided to the Board.

Yours faithfully

Lord Smith of Kelvin
Chairman

28 February 2019
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Governance Report

=
et o bolov bothe BosrdPa termabreport onn oo b g
governsnce ared =eparate 1enoic from the Aot g
Wotnmtiobions o Beminneration Commnintecs,
2016 Code - Compliance statement Non-executive / Gender Nationality

executive directors*

The Board is committed to maintaining good governance and confirms that
throughout the vear-ending 31 December 2018 the Company has applied
the principles contained in the 2016 Code and complied with its best - v
nractice provisions save for a temporary shortfall in the membership of the . ° £ & : 3 ;'%
Remuneration Committee, The 2016 Code provisions reguire a Remuneration ' ) 1
Committee 10 have at least three members and there was a period of six §
months when the membership was reduced to two following the sad death " ‘f‘dwf' jt’*:'"‘_{jtt‘j'f FFemae « Dnteen 2
of Bob Stack in December 2017. Two new ron-executives joined s on o e e nere
1 July 2018 and became members of the Committee. ' ‘

i * Under the 2018 Code, the Chairman is excluded when considering

Further details of how we have applied the 2016 Code appear below, in the the indepencent non-execulive composion of the Board,

Directors’ Report and other cross-referenced sections of this Annual Report,
all of which are incorporated by reference into this report, A cescription of the

main features of the Company's internal control system and disclosures on Dates of appointment for the Chairman and §
other regulatory matters including Statements on going concern and viabilty | non-executive directors 2
can be found in the Directors' report on pages 139 to 142, A summary of our T
risk management systems and information ahout the risks and uncertainties Length of tenure at 31 December g
that relate 1o our business is detalled within the 'How we manage risk’ '5'3
settion on pages 46 to 49. Information o corporate responsibility can Thomas Thune Andersen %
be found in the Corporate Responsibility section on pages 34 to 43. Carl-Pater Forster ®
Katie Jackson
Board composition Birgit Norgaard

Isobel Sharp

Seven directors served on the Board throughout 2018: the Chairman; the 2

. e . . . . . Lord Robert Smith ]
Chief Executive; three independent nen-executive directers; the Finance ‘ 3
Director and one operational executive director. in addition, two new non- 7 %
executive directors were appointed with effect fram 1 July 2018. The Board %
now comprises ning directors. All continuing directors stand for re-election ]
at each Annual General Megting. 7

Date of appointment Date of current latter of
appointment

Independence of non-executive directors Thomas Thune Andersen 1 July 2015 12 Decenber 2018
The Board considers that all of the non-executive directors are free from Carl-Peter Forster 1 Ortaber 2012 12 Decemizer 2018
any business or other relaticnship which could materially interfere with Katie Jackson 1 July 2018 12 Decennber 2018 —
the exercise of their independent judgement and all meet the criteria Birgit Nergaard & Novernper 2012 12 Derember 2016
for independence under the Code. Al of the non-executive directors are Isobel Sharp 1 September 2015 12 Docember 2018
regarded by the Board as independent, The Chairman was aiso regarded Lord Robert Smith 7 Muy 2015 12 Doconiser 2018
as independent at the date of his appointment to the Board,
Board diversity Share ownership for the Chairman and
The non-executive directors are a diverse group frem different backgrounds non-executive directors
and nationalities and bring with them a wide range of skills and experience The Chairman and non-executive directors are encouraged to hald
in commerce, finance and industry from around the world. More than haff the some shares in IMI within a reasonable period after their appointment.
Board are non-British and there are five different nationalities on the Board. As at 31 December 2018, the Chairman and non-executive directoss
Three of the nine directors are female {i.e. 33%). Our approach to diversity all held IMI shares as set out in the table on page 77.

is set out in more detail in the Corporate Responsibility section on pages
341043 and in the Nominations Committee Report on pages 64 and 65.
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Meetings and use of Board time

The Board met on six cccasions dunng the year including two results
reporting meetings, a day dedicated fo strategy discussions and regular
review meetings at which updales are provided as appropriate covering health
and safety, operational and financial matiers, investor retations, risk and legal
affairs, In addition, there were several days spent on Board site visits and
attendance at other gvents.

2018 Board cycle

in addition to the regular agenda items for operational matters, busingss
performance and corporate affairs, the foliowing matters were dealt with
at Board mestings in the year:

February

Approval of the preliminary results announcement and Annual Report
Approval of the final dividend recommendation

Approval of the notice of Annual General Meeting

Review of the first monthly phased forecast {the "1 Forecast”

Review of a significant possible acquisition

May

Review of trading and other updates

Approval of the interim management statement
Preparation for the Annual General Meeting
Strategy update

Review of the Q2 Forecast

Bimga integration update

Bopp & Reuther post-acquisition review

IT update

July

Appraval of the half year results announcement
Approval of the interim dividend

Interim risk review

Review of the Q3 Forecast

September
Strategy review

Five year business plan review

October

Site visit to US operations
Corporate Governance Update
Review of the Q4 Farecast

Approval of the interim management staternent

December

Budget for 2019
Annual risk review
Board evaluation
Strategy update

Board evaluation report

FPost-invesiment reviews

J Board attendance

Director Board % attended where
meetings eligible

Thomas Thune Andersen' 4/4 100
Carl-Peter Forster 6/6 100
Katie Jackson’ 4/4 100
:  Birgit Nergaard &6/6 100
Iscbel Sharp &/6 100
Lord Smith 66 100
Mark Selway 66 100
Danvel Shook 66 100
Roy Twite &/6 160

“Lpined the Board on 1 July 2018.

in 2019 10 date the Board has met once with all members in attendance.

Board roles and reserved matters

A description of Board roles and reserved matters is included in the IMI
Corporate Governance Framework (which can be found on the Company
website) and is summarised in the Directors” Report on pages 139 to 142,

Induction and continuing development programme

A formal induction process for new non-executive directors is well estatlished
and is the responsibility of the Chairman with support from the Chief Executive
and Company Secretary,

Business familiarisation is at the core of induction and continuing development
for non-executive directors at IMl and is centred around gaining an
understanding of the business and getting o know the wider management
team. The two new non-executive directors appainted in July 2018 have had
induction meetings with all of the members of the Executive Committee and
the auditor. In addition, all new non-executive directors will attend a corporate
induction day for senior managers held at head office. There is also

a committee induction process designed to brief new commitiee members

on the relevant committee and the issues it faces.

Non-executive directors are required Lo visit business units around the Group
and to mee! face-lo-face with senior operating management and key corporate
staff, There is reqular contact between management and non-executive
directors during site visits, formal meetings and other company events,

During 2018 ali of the non-executive directors made site visits and the whale
Board visited US operations including IMI CCl in IMI Critical Engineering and
Bimba in IMI Precision Engineering. Feedback on Board and individual site
visits is discussed by the Beard.

Appropriate training and other continuing professional development is available
to all non-executive directars and regular updates are giver during the year
where relevant to the business arising at Board and committes meetings.
For example, appropriate best practice updates were provided to the
Remuneratian Committee and to the Board during 2018 including training
on the 2018 Code. Non-executive directors are encouraged to undertake
additional training and several did attend external training during the yaar.




Board visit to US operations

Sie visits are an important, regular feature of the Board calendar.

In Octaber 2018 the Board visited IMI CCl in California and Bimba

in lllinois where it held meetings and toured the manufacturing sites.
IMI’s core processes were seen 10 be well embedded at iM| GGl and
the business has made excellent progress with its Yaiug £ngingering
programme, Bimba is progressing well a3 a business and has achieved
the integration milestones as planned.

LONANPOI] !

IMI has a substantial presence in the USA which is home te business units
in alt three divisions. In paricular, IMI Critical Engineering has four business
units in the country including, IMI CCl in California, and IMI Precision
Engineering has 10 business units inctuding Bimba in lllinois. IMI GGl is

a powerful brand for IMI Critical Engineering and offers a range of valves
for power plants and other severe service applications. Bimba is a key player
in the US Precision Engineering Industrial Automation markel which joined
the Group from January 2018,

mainay oibareng |

During the factory tours. management and staft had the opportunity to
showcase a wide range of improvements and lecal management made
business presentations. Senior managers from US businesses ioined
the Board for discussions over dinner. Each visit provided an excellent
opportunity for the Board to meel a wider group of employees and gain Q Q

amore in-depth understanding of the businesses. Bimba University Park, llinois

IMI CCI RSM, California
Board evaluation

The Chairman arranged an internalty facilitated evaluation process in 2018.
An externally facilitated evaluation was last conducted in 2017 with Egon
Zehnder. Based on that review Egen Zehnder's overriding conclusion was
that the Board is run in an effective manner. Following discussion of the
report by Egon Zehnder the Board noted some areas for development
including routine feedback on site visits, continuing deveiopment of strong
retationships among Board members and regular strategic progress
updates for the Board to be expanded. All of these development arcas
have received appropriate atlention during the year,
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The 2018 internal evaluation exercise was carried cut through a questionnaire EO]

process run by the Company Secretary and by the Chairman canvassing the

views of directors individually. While the findings of the internal evaluation e ooard Jisit Bimbate University

were overwhelmingly posilive, in keeping with the Greup’s commitment to —
continueus improvement, the Beard agreed that it will make it a griority to i ’ s : ’
allocate a generous properion of lime to strategy. In addition, external training
opportunities for directors will be expanded and participation encouraged.

As senior independent director, Carl-Peter Forster conducted & review of
the Chairman with the other non-execulive directors and sharad the results
with the Chairman. During the year the Chairman also met with the non-
executive directors individually for performance review and feedback
sessions and as a group to review the performance cof the Chief Executive,
The Chairman passed on fo the Chief Executive appropriate feedback

from the review of his performance.

The Chairman Is satisfied that the Board is fulfilling its responsibilities
appropriately and that the Board and its committees are effective and
that each director demonstrates a valuable contribution and is committed
to their role.
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Separale reports from the committees appear in this Annual Reporl as follows:
Audit Committee Reporl ¢n pages 60 to 63; Neminations Commitiee Report
on pages 64 and 65 and Remungration Committee Report on pages 66 10 78.

Standing committees of the Board

The standing committees of the Board are the Audit Comniitiee, the
Nominations Committee and the Remuneration Committee. Each of these

committees operates under written terms of reference which clearly set

out their respective delegated responsibilities and authorities. The full terms
of reference of these committees are part of the IMI Corporate Governance
Framework (which can be found on the Company's website). The commitiees
report to the Board on their work, normally through their respective chair,
following each meeting.

Audit Committee

Nominations Committee

Isobel Sharp Lord Smith of Kelvin
Chair Char
Membership Membership

Carl-Peter Forster Thomas Thune Andersen

Birgn Norgaard Carl-Peter Forsler
Kalie Jackson
Hirgit Norgaard

Isohel Sharp

Main responsibilities Main responsibilities

Financial reporting » Boaio and commuttee composition

» Qversight of succession plans for the Board and
the Executive Cominittee

» Oversight role n relation to financial statements

» Reviewing significant areas of jucgement and
accounting policies - Search for and recommendation of candidates
for appontment as non-executive directors, Chief

» Reviewing the proposed statements on ' i ’ o
Executive and other executive director positions

going concern and viability 1o appear in the
Annual Report

= Advising the Board on whether the draft Annual
Report s fair. bhalanceo and understandable

» Diversity policy, promotion of diversity and
maonitoring of progress

» Monitaring announcements in respect of
financial performance

Financiaf controf and risk

» Monitoring the eflectivensss of internal
financial controls

» Reviewing firrancial nisks meluding fraud risk

» Qversight of internal audit and other key processes
for monitoring internal financial controt

» Overseeing the external augit process,
its objectivity, effectiveness and cost with
responsibility for setting the audt fee

» Making recornmendations to the Board for the
appointment of the auditer including oversight
of the audit tender process

» Reviewing the system for confidential
whistleblowing and the reatment of reports
received {this became a Board responsibility
from 2019)

Remuneration Committee

Birgit Nergaard
Chair

Membership

Thomas Thune Andersen
Carl-Peter Forster

Katie Jackson

Main responsibilities

» Define and recommend the remuneration policy
for the Chairman and members of the Executive
Cormmittee

Determine the individud! remuneration packages
for the Chairman and members of the Executive
Committee within the policy approved by
shareholders

» Set annual and long-term ncentive metrics
and awards and determine the outcormes for
the mmembers at the Executive Committea

Repert on remuneration matters and constructively
engage with shareholders

Assess risk in respect of remuneration
and incentive structures in particular
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Executive Committee

The Executive Committee s chaired by the Chief Executive and the other
members are shown on page 15. The Committee meets monthly and more
often as may be required. Reguiar attendees at its meetings include the
Group Financial Controller. Director of Risk and Compliance, and the
Head of Investor Relations.

The Executive Gommitteg is the senior management hody and as part

of the hroad remit set by the Chief Executive it monitors and manages
business performance, reviews progress against strategic objectives and
formulates budgets and preposals on strategy and resource allocation for
consideration by the Board. The Executive Committee is a management
committee which takes its authority from the Chief Executive and is not

a committee of the Board.

The Executive Committee plays a key part in risk assessment, risk
management and monitoring processes and receives reqular reports

an investar relaticns, human resources, health and safety, internal audit,
compliance, legal and other caorperate affairs.

Investor relations

The Board oversees shareholder engagement and mairtaing a balanced
understanding of the issues and concerns of major shareholders. The Chief
Executive and Finance Director have primary responsidility at Board level
for investor relations and they, and the Head of investor Relations, report
to the Board on shareholder issues at every Board meeting during the
year. Financial analysts' notes are circulated to the directors and the Board
receives regular feedback reports from the Company's brokers and public
relations advisers as well as from management. Dialegue is maintained
with the principal shareholders and the executive directors meet regularly
with institutional investors. During 2018 there were over 130 such meetings
with institutional shargholders, The Chairman and the senior independent
director also are available 1o shareholders as needed and both have had
contact with investors during the year.

The 2018 Annual General Meeting was presided over by the Chairman
and attended by all of the serving directors. The Chairman and the other
directors met shareholders informally afterwards. Each substantively
separate issue was pui 1o the Annual General Meeting as an individual
motion. Notice of the Annual General Meeting was issued mere than twenty
working days in advance of the meeting and the level of votes lodged for
and against each resolution, together with details of abstentions, are shown
on the IMI website. The Board values the support of shareholders and the
poll resuits for all resolutions proposed at the Annual General Meeting
were well above 80% in favour in each case.

In addition to the Annual Report, the Company issues preliminary
results and half year results announcements, as well as two intarim
management statements between results announcements. The MI
webstte includes recordings of results presentations made by senior
management, recent annual and half year reports, interim management
statements, other corporate announcements and links to the websites
of the Group's husinesses,

The Company has arranged a dealing service for the convenignce of
shareholders with Equiniti {details are shown on page 164). A spenscred
Level 1 American Depositary Receipt programme has heen established for

which Citibank, N.A. acts as depositary (details can be found on page 164).

By order of the Board

John O’Shea
Group Legal Director and Company Secretary

28 February 2018
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Audit Committee

Dear Shareholder
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Composition of the Audit Committee

Birgit Nergaard, Carl-Peter Forster and | were members of the Audit
Committee throughout the year. All of the Committee members are regarded
by the Board as independent non-executive directors, | have chaired the Audit
Committes since 1 October 2017 and hecame a member on 1 September
2015. | spent my earlier career in the accounting and audit profession

and the Committee is satisfied that | have significant recent and relevant
financial experience, | alse currently chair the audit committee at The Bankers
Investment Trust PLC and Winton Group Limited. In my role as Chair | have
had significant interactions with key senior executives and reviewed in
advance selected papers and agendas for meetings of the Committee.

| also have met with our external auditor prior to Committee meetings.

My colleagues on the Committee also have experience at audit committee
level and collectively the Committee has the skills, experience and objectivity
to be an effective Audit Committee and to challenge constructively. During the
year, Committee members received updates covering changes in accetinting
standards, best practice guidance and other key topics. Furthermore, we each
attend as appropriate external training sessions to update our knowledge,

The Committee asks the following to join alt or part of its meetings: the
Chairman, the Chief Executive. the Finance Director, the Group Financial
Controller, the Director of Risk and Compliance, the Group Assurance Director !
and the external auditor, Ernst & Young LLP ('EY"). In addition, other non-
executive directors are welcome to attend.

The Committee hoids at least part of several meetings each year alone
with the external auditor and with the Director of Risk and Compliance and
the Group Assurance Director. The Committee has the power to call on
any employee to attend. The Secretary 1o the Committee is the Company
Secrefary, who is also the Group Legal Dirsctor.

Main areas of activity

The Audit Committee met four times in 2018. For two meetings the focus was
an the farthcominig resutts reparting and for the ather two the focus was an
planning and review matters,

The effectiveness of internal financial controls continues to be a key area for
the Commitlee which welcomes managament's continuing commitment to
improve the Group's internal financial controls. Based on its review of selected
key controls, EY agreed with management's assessment that the level of




control effectiveness at the locations assessed as full or specific in the audit
remains high at 95%. Nonetheless, the Committee continues to assess with
management opportunities for improvement, which has resulted in & number
of further control mitiatives being icentified for 2019, The [T investmant and
infrastructure programme is continuing and its implementation facilitates
improverments in the audit efficiency as well as in internal controls.

The Committes has reviewed reparts cn the six-monthty Internal Control
Deciarations which are submitted by €ach business unit and cover internal
controls on financial affairs. IT, human resources and other key areas. The
process is managed by Group Assurance, which follows up declarations with
on-site visits 1o review scores and track appropriate improvement actions.
During the year, the Committee has sought information on the accounting
systems and internal controls at Bimba and has been pleased to note the
progress achieved to date and the way in which its staff have responded to
the additional financial reporting requirements which come with being part
of a public company.

A presentation on tax policy and compliance from the Head of Group Tax
was received by the Committee. Treasury matters were discussed with the
Group Treasurer,

The Committee approved the proposed exteral audit approach and

its scope based on the size and level of risk of the entities concerned,
The Group and EY take a risk based approach to audit and other assurance
activity. The key audit matters identified by EY are set out in its repert on
pages 145 to 147 and were reviewed by the Committee in approving the
audit scope and plan,

The Cemmittee reviewed and approved for submission to the Board the
statements on going concern and viability, which are in the Directors’
Report cn pages 139 to 142.

The Committee advises the Board on the fair, balanced and understandable
requirernents for the Annual Report and half year results statement. The Committee
has made positive reports to the Board against these criteria. The Committee's
review included consideration by the Committee of alternative performance
measures and the presentation of adjusting items in accordance with the
Group accounting poficy. In respect of the Annual Repaort, the fair, balanced
and understandable criteria are also a review area for the external auditor,
in refation 1o which it did not reporl any exceptions, The statement of
Directors’ responsibilities on page 143 includes confirmation by the

Board that it considers the Annual Report, taken as a whole, to be fair,
balanced and understandable.

Oversight of financial reporting

The Commitiee acts in an oversight role in respect of the Annual Report
and other announcements with financia! content, all of which are prepared
by management. The Committee received reports en the annual and half
year statements from management and the external auditor.

Significant judgements related to the
financial statements

In preparing the accounts, there are a number of areas requiring the
exercise by management of judgement and estimation. These matters were
the subject of appropriate detailed analysis and commentary in papers and
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reports to the Committee by management and the external auditor.
The Committee reviewed the most sigmificant accounting areas involving
such judgements and estimales and these are described below,

Acquisition accounting for Bimba

Bimba was acquired on 37 January 2018 for a cash consideration of £138m.
The Group had a 12-month measurement period after the acguisition date to
finatise the accounting for the acquisition of Bimba. Management exercises
judgement on the types of intangible assets acquired and estimates were
made of the fair value of all assets and liahiiities. The provisional fair value
amounts recognised at the half-year in respect of the identifiable assets
acguired and liabilities assumed were included in the notes to the half-

year financial statements. As set out in note 3.4 to the financial statements
on page 108, one change in these provisicnal values was made at the

year end totalling £1.9m. The external auditor provided confirmation that

the judgements made in this connection, inciuding the agsumptions used

tc value the acguired customer relationships and the Bimba brand, were
considered to be acceplable.

Impairment of goodwill and intangibles arising

from acquisitions

The Committee considered the level of goodwill and intangible assets held
on the Group's balance sheet in respect of a number of past acquisitions

and whether, given the future prospects of these businesses, the carrying
value in each material case remained appropriate.

The year end halance sheet includes goodwill of £437m and intangible assets
arising on acquisitions of £79m. The Committee reviewed the assumptions
and calculations used by management in the agsessment of any impairment
of geedwill and intangible assets and agreed that an impairment of the £2m
gooawill held relating to the IMI Rydronic Engineering service companies CGU
was required. impairment was also a key audit matter for EY which reported
its findings to the Committee. Section 3.2 to the financial statements on page
105 provides details regarding the Group's intangible assels and goodwill.

Revenue and profit recognition

The Committee discussed the timing of revenue and profit recognition on
some of the Group's larger contracts. In addition. this is a key audit matter
on which EY reported to the Committee.

Having reviewed management’s process and EY's report, the Committee
concluded that revenues and profits were appropriately reflected in the
financial statements. Section 5.4 note C to the financial statements on
page 135 provides further information,

The Committee also reviewed management’s assessment of the impact of
IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers” which came into effect
from January 2018 and is discussed further in Section 1 on page 92,

Inventory valuation

The year end balance sheet inchides inventories of £273m after £33m of
provisions. The Committee reviewed the judgements applied to standard
costing valuations and provisions against excess and chsolete inventory and
concurred with management's assessment. This was a key audit matter for
EY, in respect of which it reported to the Committee that inventory valuation
across the Group is considered appropriate. Section 3.1.1 to the financial
statements on page 104 provides defails of inventory valuation.
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Audit Committee Repbrt

Other judgement areas

The Committee reviewed the appropriatengss of the accounting treatment in
respect of pension scheme liabilities, including the actuarial assumptions used
and the impact of one-off special pension events. The Committee also reviewed
reporting from the external auditor, which concurred with the aceounting for
pensions proposed by management. The Committee supported managemant's
on-going efforts o de-risk the Group's pension obligations which in 2018
included the buy-out by an insurance company of £409m of UK defined benefit
obligatiens. Further details can be found in Section 4.9 on page 122.

In addition the Committee reviewed the appropriateness of restructuring costs
disclosed as adjusting items, leasing arrangements and the impact of IFRS
changes, property sales and the adeguacy of taxation provisions. Further detalls
on these matters can be found in Sections 2.2 and 2.4 respectively, on pages
98 and 100.

Internal audit

The Committee received reports from and monitored the work of the Group's
internal audit functicn, known as Group Assurance. Group Assurance reports
through the Director ot Risk and Compliance to the Chief Executive. Group
Assurance aiso has a direct reporting line to the Committee. Group Assurance
work s primatily directed towards financial control sudds but also covers
other selected areas including project planning and implementation for major
business changes and interna! control declarations. The principal projecls
reviewed in 2018 were major computer systems implementations in each

of the three divisions and a review of the Bimba integration process.

During the year 46 internal audil reviews were completed with 42 of these
supported by divisional finance managers. Cenirally the Group Assurance
team is led by experienced, senior internal audit professionals and across
the Group there are over 70 staff trained to conduct internal financial ¢ontrol
audits. Locations to be reviewed each year are selected on a risk assessed
basis, discussed with the Audit Committes and co-ordinated with the external
auditor. The compietion of actions arising from infenal audits and reviews

is monitored by the Committee and the track record is excelient,

Group Assurance works closely with the divisions to implement monioring

and review processes to complement the internal and external audit coverage.

The annual plan and resourcing for internal audit were approved by the
Committee and take account of the enhanced monitoring and review activity
within the divisions. From 2017 the scope cf internal audits has been
extended to cover certain other operational and commercial risks,

To achieve this a co~sourcing model has been adopted, where experienced
financial managers from the divisions work with the Group Assurance team
on combined audits covering financial, operational and commercial matters,
Group Assurance has also trained divisional finance managers in financial
contre! auditing skills and provided a toolid! to enable them lo carry out
financial control audits at selected sites in the intemal audit plan. Finangial
control eviderice binders have been introduced across the Group in 2018.
These binders help internal audits become mare efficient and support
transiticn and confinuity in the event of the changes in finance staff,

The Committee welcomed management’s decision to introduce the
hinders as a further step to ensure rebust financial controls.

Annual Report and Accounts 2018

The Committee reviewed the effectiveness of Group Assurance with
management and received input from the external auditor, The Committee
was pleased with the further development of the co-sourcing model with the
Group Assurance Team and experienced financial managers from the divisions
working together to enhance the effectiveness of assurance processes.

An area for improvement which was identified is for Group Assurance

to do more to share best practice around the Group.

External audit independence and
performance review

The Committee approved the proposed external audit approach and its scope.
The Committee considered the independence and objectivity of the external
auditor to be satisfactory. In assessing audilor independence the Committee
had regard to the Financial Reporting Council’s best practice guidance for
audit committees. In aadition, the external auditor confirmed that its ethics
and independence poiicies complied with the requirements of the Institule

of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.

The policy on the use of the auditor for non-audit work was reviewed and
updated by the Committeg in 2016 to take account of developments in
regulatory requirements and ethical guidelines for the augit profession.

The policy requires approval by the Committee Chair for any non-audit
angagament which is morg than trivial. The Finance Director monitors any
proposed nen-audit engagements of EY and refers to the Committee Chair
for approval as appropriate. The pelicy does not aliow work to he placed with
the auditor it it could compromise audilur independence. such as functioning
in the role of management or auditing its own work. Non-audit fees paid to
the auditor were £0.1m (2017 £0.1m}, which represents 3% of the audit
fee and demonstrates the tight control which is maintained in this area.

Une non-audit engagement involved fees above £30,000 and the main areas
of activity were the interim results review and an operating risk assessment.
The Committee considers the level and nature of non-audit work to be
modest and not to compromise the independence of the external auditor.
We are satisfied that EY is fully independent from the management and

free of conflicts of interest.

Benchmarking of the audit fee was conducted in the context of the full audii

tender process described below and the fee is considered by the Committee

to be apprepriate. The Committee reviewed and approved the proposed audit
tee payable to FY.

To maintain the objectivity of the audit process, the external audit partner
responsible for the Group is rotated within the audit firm at least every five
years and the current Senior Statutory Auditor, Simon O'Neill, was appointed
following completion of the 2017 audit.

We formally reviewed the effectiveness of the exteinal audit process.

Asg in other years, & questionnaire was used to réview the external auditor’s
performance. In 2018 the Committee also received feedback on EY through the
audit tender process (discussed further below), As a resuit of the questionnaire
and audit lendler feedback, the Committee believes the external auditor's
performance has been good and effective. To enhance further the external audit
process, certain improvement actions were idenlified and plans have heen put
in place by EY to address these. These included action to improve continuity of
funier level staff on the audit and mare rigoraus structure in the audit process,
especially in relation to audit deliverable requests and progress meetings.



The audit tender process

Pursuant to the statutery requirement for audit tendering after ten years

{i.e. intime for the 31 December 2019 audity and as signalled in the 2017
Annual Repart. the Committee led an audit tender process during the year,
the result of which was our recommendation to the Board to select EY as
auditor for the 2019 year. The Board approved the recommendation and is
seeking sharehokders” approval to re-appoint EY as the external auditor at
the forthcoming Annuat General Meeting. The ferm of appaintment is annual
and there are no contractual restrictions on the Committee’s choice of
external auditor.

The audit tender process involved the following main steps:

Considering how the tender should be conducted and
agreeing how the firms should be assessed

The Committee agreed that three firms should be invited to tender, This
tlecision was reached after considering the needs of the Group, the existing
substantial refationship with one firm which currently provides tax services
to the Group and inftial soundings takeri from other first and second tier
international audit firms.

To suppart the Committee. the day-to-day running of the tender process was
managed by a panel which consisted of the Audit Committee Chair, the Chief
Executive Officer, the Group Finance Director, the Group Financial Controller,
the Chief Financial Accountant and the Glehal Head of Procurement,

To assist in evaluating overall audit guality, the key assessment criteria were
the capability and competence of the audit team: the approach to, and
management of, the audit; relationships and culiural fit with the Group:

ang quality of the proposal and management of fees. Throughout the process,
afl relevant staff were provided with the detailed assessment criteria and
asked to provide their feedback to the tender panel.

Running the process

The tender panel issued the Request for Propesal to the three firms and
made available, in a data room, information on the Group and its divisions
to assist the firms. After receipt of the praposals, meetings were held with
Group representatives in our major geographies and the firms' staff. This
was followed by individual meetings with divisional heads and with Group
representatives, including the Chief Executive, Finance Director and Audit
Committee Chair. The results were then collated and made available to
the Commitige,

In May 2018, the three firms were invited to mest with reprasentatives of
the Audit Committee and the Group Executive to present their proposals
for the audit.

Selecting the firm

At its meeting in June 2018, the Audit Committee reviewed the process and
the information and views gathered therein and agreed to recommend to
the Board that, subject to shareholders” approval, FY should be appointed
auditors for the year to 31 December 2019. The Committee believes that
a robust audit tender process was executed and that EY has the skill and
experience 1o ensure that a rigorous and challenging audit, led by EY’s Siman
O’Neilt who has just completed his first year as Senior Statutory Auditor,

is carried out.

Compliance hotline

During 2018 the Committee reviewed the operation of the independent
compliance hotline fer reporting concerns, reviewed the more significant
reports received and considered how these are investigated and foliowed
up. The Commuitee believes that the hotline process and investigations are
gffective and that propertionate action is taken by management in response,
In fine with the 2018 Code, this responsihility has been transferred to the
Board from the start of 2019.

Committee attendance and evaluation

Director Audit Committee % attended where

meetings eligible
Carl-Peter Forster 444 100
Birgit Nergaard 4/4 100
Isobel Sharp 4/4 100

The Committee reviewed its own performance and terms of reference
and received positive feedback from the evaluation exercise carried out
in relation to the Board and each of its standing committees. A a result
of the evaluation. the meeting cycle for future years been adjusled to
improve efficiency.

The Committee approved this repert on its work.

Yours faithfully

Isobel Sharp
Chair of the Audit Committee

28 February 2019
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| Composition

Carl-Peter Forster, Birgit Nergaard, Isahel Sharp and | were memhers of the
Committee throughout the year. Thomas Thune Andersen and Katie Jacksen

joined the Committee on 1 July 2018. For the purposes of the 2018 Code,

all of the non-gxecutive directors on the Committee are regarded as

independent non-executive directors.

Attendance
Director Nominations % attended

Committee where eligible
meetings

Thomas Thune Andersen’ 3/3 100
Carl-Peter Forster 4/4 100
Katie Jackson' 2/3 67
Birgit Mergaard 4/4 100
Iscbel Sharp 474 100
Lord Smith 4/4 100

' Joined the Committee on 1 July 2018, Katie Jacksan had a prot commitment on
appointment which prevented her attendance at one of the three meetings held since
Ber appowntmeant,

Main areas of activity

Chief Executive succession

Following & rigorous selection process supported by Russell Reynolds that
inciuded both internal and externai candidates, the Board agreed fo appaoint
Roy Twite as IM!'s next Chief Executive. He 1s a strong and experienced
successor who has been pivotai to the Group's continued success, He has
extensive operaticnal experience, deep knowledge of our core markets and
outstanding leadership gualities.

The Comimittee is also raviewing the succession choices for a new Divisional
Managing Director in the IMI Critical Engineering division, An anncuncement
on that appointment wil! be made in due course.




Board changes and recommendations for election and
re-election

The Committee commissioned Zygos Partnership to undertake 2 full search
process to recruit two new non-executive directors and recommended to the
Board the appointment of Thomas Thune Andersen and Katie Jackson. The
Committee also recommended the appointment of Birgit Nergaard as non-
executive director with responsibitity for employee engagement. All of the
directors standing are recommended for re-election at the Annual General
Meeting. The Board approved all of the recommendations made by the
Committee for the renewals of appointment for continuing directors,

Succession planning

The Committee reviews Board compasition and has formulated a struciured,

medium-term plan for Board succession.

As already highlighted, during the year Themas Thune Andersen and Katie
Jackson jolned the Board. Originally it was envisaged that they would join
all three Board committees. but in the interests of better balance of overall
commitlee memberships, it was decided that they would serve on two,
the Nominations and Remuneration Committees.

During the year we reviewed talent development and succession planning
for the top 220 roles in the Group with the support of the Chief Executive
and Group Human Rescurces Director. We were encouraged to see that
significant progress continues to be made in terms of cultivating a stronger
pipeline of high-calibre talent as demonstrated by the intemal appointment
of the new Chief Executive and the strong list of internal candidates for the
Critical Engineering, Divisicnal Managing Director role. Further details of our
leadership development and succession planning processes are set out in
the Corporate Responsitility section on pages 34 to 43,

Review of time commitments and contributions

The appointments of the Chairman and non-executive directors are made
on the basis of a formai letter of appointment including a stated minimum
time commitment judged appropriate by the Committee. The Committee
censiders that the time given to IMi by each non-executive director is
sufficient. The Board is satisfied that | have the necessary time to cevote
te my role as Chairman.

Diversity

The Board recognises the benefits a diverse pool of talent can bring te a
boardreom and remains committed to increasing diversity across IMI by
voluntary measures. We will continue to review the composition of our
management teams and the Board to ensure that we have the right

mix of skills and experience while maintaining our effectiveness and
exacution capabilities.

At Board level, more than half the Board are non-British and there are five
nationalities. Three of the non-execulive directors are female, representing

33% of the Board, and there is a broad mix of backgrounds and experience.

We are supportive of the need 1o improve Bender diverse representation
at Board and senior executive levels and are working hard to this end.
Further infarmation on workforce diversity matters is given in the
Corporate Responsibility section on pages 34 10 43,

i The Committee welcomes its respons;lmhty under ihe 2018 Code for
i promoting broader diversity at Board and senior management level.

Committee evaluation

The Nominations Committee reviewed its own performance and terms
of reference and received positive feedhack from the evaluation exercise
carried out in respect of the Board and each of its committees.

The Committee approved this report on ils work.

Yours faithfully

Lord Smith of Kelvin
Chair of the Nominations Committee

28 February 2018
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

L Annual Repoq and Accounts 2018
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Pay for performance in 2018

Our focus this year has been twolold: to ensure consistent application of

our Policy and to ensure our remuneration arrangements remain appropriate
in the context of the challenging ecenomic and market conditions we are
continuing to face in a number of our key markets.

At the heart of our Policy is pay for performance and a high proportion of
our executive directors' remuneration is closely tied to business performance.
The Committee seiect performance measures that align 10 strategy and
when setting stretching performance targets take into account a number

of factors, including the strategic plan, annual budget, analysts forecasts
and econemic conditions. Our objeclive is always 10 set slretching targets
while at the same time ensuring that strong underlying performance, which
can somelimes be obscured by external macro-economic conditions, is
recognised. When assessing the level of performance achieved the Commitiee
takes into account wider circumstances to ensure incentive outcornes are a
fair reflection of actual performance, Further information about the pracess we
follow when setting targets and assessing performance is set out on page 71.

2018 has been a year of good progress for IM! despite continued mixed
economic and market conditions. Group adjusted profit before tax has
increased by 12% to £251 .2m while organic revenue growth increased
5% to £1,907m on a constant currency basis, Cash conversion was §3%
in 2018. Subject to their approval at the forthcoming Annual General Meeling,
shareholders will receive a total dividend of 40.6p — an increase of 3%
from last year,

Our various strategic initialives, which are aimed at harnessing the Group’s
full potential, are progressing well. in particular we remain focused on building
both competitive advantage and shareholder valug by conlinuing to invest

in new product development and improving our cperational performance.

Our cost reduction: initiatives have been successfully implemented and our
integration plan for Bimba, the business we acquired in January 2018,

is now being executed.




How were pay outcomes linked to performance
in 20187

Annual incentives paid to executive directors in respect of performarce
in 2018 were based on strong financial performance and achigvernent
of strefching targets relating to Group adjusted profit before 1ax, organic
revenue grovth. cash conversion and strategic and personal objectives.
Further information about these incenfive arrangements is st oul on
page 71. The Committee is confident that the annual incentive outcomes,
which range between 56.8% and 75.0% of maximum, fairly reflect
business and individual performance in the context of cur ongoing
challenging operating envirenment.

2019 marks only the second year of vesting under the IMI Incentive

Plan {IIP"). Mark Selway, Roy Twite and Daniel Shook were granted a
performance share award under the [IP in 2016 and the awards will

vest at 29.2% in March 2019,

What decisions were made during the year?

The Committee reviewed the base salary fevels for executive directors
taking into account a number of factors including individual performance,
2018 business performance, prevailing economic conditions and wider
circumstances, the Group’s financial perfermance, and salary increases
for other employees. The Committee concluded that an increase of 2.2%
for Roy Twite and Daniel Shook effective 1 January 2019 was appropriate
and in line with the wider employee workforce. The Committee concluded
that Mark Selway would nct receive a base salary increase for 2019,

The Chairman and non-executive director fees were atso reviewed and
were increased by 2.2%, with effect from 1 January 2019,

Looking forward

Chief Executive, Mark Selway, has given notice to the Board of his wish to
retire. Mark will step down as Chief Executive at the 2018 Annual General
Meeting hefore retiring from the Board on 31 July 2019, Remuneration
arrangemenis relating to his retirement will be in fine with his service
contract and the shareholder approved remuneration policy. In respect of
2019, Mark will be eligible for a pro-rated bonus for time served paid wholly
in cash in accordance with the IIP rules. Full retrospective disclosure of
performance against largets set will be made in the 2018 Annual Report.
All'IP deferred bonus share awards will vest in accordance with policy.
Mark will nct be eligible for a base salary increase or an JIP performance
share award in 2019. Taking into account Mark's performance in the five
years he has been Chief Executive, and his departure heing for reason of
retirement, the Committee have agreed that all cutstanding IIP performance
share awards shall continue to their ordinary vesting date when performance
will be assessed against the targets set and any vesting wili be pro-rated.

Roy Twite wili succeed Mark Selway as Chief Executive at the 2019 Annual
General Meeting. Roy will be appointed on a base salary of £720,000.
Additionally, the pension cpportunity for Roy will reduce from the current
tevel of 36% of base salary to 11%". Roy Twite will participate in the annual
incentive bonus and IIP on the same terms as the previous Chief Executive.

' In order to align with the pension centributions of the majority of the giohal workferce,

Finally, the Committee welcomes the changes introduced by the 2018 UK
Corporate Governance Code and updated remuneration reporting regulations
published in the Summer of 2018. Supporting our strategy, premeting
long-term sustainahle success, transparency and independent judgment

are already at the core of our remuneration policy but alongside the Board
led review of the new Code requirements, the Committee has discussed

at length the implications for remuneration and taken steps in readiness

. for their application from 1 January 2019. | look forward to reporting next
. year on how the Commitiee has complied with the new Code ohligations,

Birgit Nargaard
Chair of the Remuneration Committee on
behalf of the Board

28 February 2019
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The Committee A summary of the Committee’s activities
Composition during 2018

The members of the Committee throughout the year were Birgit Nergaard The Committee had three formal meetings during the year; atiendance can
{Chain), Cari-Peter Forster, and from 1 July 2018 Thomas Thune Andersen be viewed in the table below. The principal agenda items were as follows:
and Katie Jackson. In accordance with the UK Corporate Governance Code,

R » gansideration of shareholder feedback and engagement with major shareholders
all of the non-executive directors are regarded by the Board as independent.

In refatian o the proposed remuneration policy;
= final approval of the new Directors’ Remuneration Policy ('the Palicy) for
submission to the Annual General Meeting in May 2018,

Responsibility
The Comniittee determines the remuneration policy and rewards for the

executive directors and other members of the Executive Committee and the » & review of total campensation packages of the executive directors and the most
{hairman. The Committee also considers the levels of pay and benefits across senior management of the Group as well as a review of workforce remuneration
the Group. A copy of the Committee's terms of reference, which has heen and related policies Lo ensure afignment with IMI's strategic growth plan;

updated to reflect the 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code, is inciuded

; ! } » approval of achievements and outcomes under the incentive plans;
in the IM! Gorporate Governance Framawork and available on the IMI website.

» consideration of the fees for the Chairman:

Internal advisers to the Commitiee » sefting the framework and target levels for the 2018 incentive cycle;
During the year, the Commitiee consutted the Chief Executive, regarding
the packages of the other executive directors and senior managers. It alse
received support from the Finance Director, the Group Human Resources
Director, the Head of Group Reward and the Company Secretary, who is
also secretary to the Committee. None of these individuals were involved
in determining their awn remuneration.

» approval of the granting of 2018 share awards Lo execulive diréctors and certain
other levels of management including a review of the Total Shareholder Return
comparator greup 1o ensure it remains appropriate;

» review of the performance targets in respect of the 2019 long term incentive
plan awards;

» revigw of IMI's gender pay gap results for the year ended 5 April 2018
External advisers to the Committee and ensured compliance with legislation (see page 36);

Independent remuneration consuitant, Willis Towers Watson, is formally » review of the UK corporate governance and requiatory enviranment
appointed by the Committee and provided advice on executive remuneration following issuance of the 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code and
ta the Committge in 2018. The Committee rigted that the firm ara actuaries updated reporting regulations;

and administrators for the IMI Pension Fund. The Commiltee is comfortable
that these activities do net represent a conflict of interest and that objective
and independent advice continues to be received by the Committee from

» roview of the engagement of the independent remuneration consullants
to the Commiftee; and

the cedicated team servicing it at Willis Towers Watson. » review of the Committee’s own performance, constitution and terms of reference.

During 2018, Willis Towars Watson has also supported management onl S0mMe Attendance

broader reward and human resource matters. The fees charged by Willis

Towers Watson in respect of advice and services to the Gommittee totalied Director o %ﬁmuﬂen’{til’n % attended \jf_fh_gge

£79,504 in 2018. Willis Towers Watson are signatories to tre Remuneration —_ ommitiee meetings sgole

Consultants’ Code of Conduct in the UK. Birgit Norgaard 3 100
Carl-Peter Forster 3 100
Thomas Thune Andersen’ 2 100
Katie Jackson' ? 1 50

* Joined the Committee on 1 Jufy 2018.

“ Katie Jackson had a griov commitrment on appointment which prevented her from attending
ong of the two meetings held since her appointment.
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Annual General Meeting voting cutcomes Voting outcome Votes for Votes against Votes withheld g
The following table summarises the details of votes cast for and : &
. . , ) . Directors 89.1%, 10.9% 0.1% S
against the 2018 directors’ remuneration policy, and the 2017 Remuaneration =
annual remuneration reporl resolutions aleng with the number of Palicy 2018
yotes withheld. The Committec will continue o consider the views of, Annual a4 go, 549, 0.7%
and feedback from, shareholders when determining and reporting Remureration
o remuneration arrangements. Report 2017
Executive single figure table (audited) _
[72]
Annual Long-term Other items in the nature §*
Fixed pay vanable pay variable pay of remuneration =
{£000) (£000) {£000) {£000) e
§,
All- Dividend
Taxable Annual incentive IMI Incentive employee share equivalent Total
Director Base salary Pension benefits bonus Plan (IIP} plans payments (E£000)
See page Page 70 Page 70 Page 70 Pages 7110 73 Page 74 Page 75
2018 ge2 247 &7 1,232 673 q 2 3,047 o
Mark Selway g
2017 801 240G 83 1,525 138 5 1 2,773 ]
F-4
2018 475 166 30 405 312 4 - 1,392 -
Roy Twite e
2017 463 162 27 541 64 4 - 1,261 g
)
2018 439 83 40 409 211 3 - 1,190 3
Daniel Shook »
2017 418 84 39 506 43 3 - 1,093

Earn share eptions on the date of grant in the relevant

financal yvear {applying & 10" discount as permitted
Taxzble berefits: the gross value of all taxable benefits (or benefits under the Save As You Farn Share Plar).

that would e taxable for a person tax residenit n

Roy Twite served or the Board of Haima pic during the year and received fees of £55,75C in respect of this appaintment which he tetained. %‘I
g
=]
o

These figures have been calculated as follows: All-employes share plans: the value of tree shares at award and dividends under 2]

the Employee Share Ownership Plan in the relevant %

Base salary: the actual salary recervatile for the year, finantial year and the intrinsic value of Save As You g
=2
o

Pension: the cash allowance paid n lieu of pension.

the LJK) recerved in the vear. Dividend payments: For the P an addtional number of shares
i o propartional to the dividends paid between the date
Annual incentive bonus: the value of the annual incentive payable for of the award and the date of \F/)esting are delivered on
perfermance in respect of the relevant financial year the vesting date ino further dividends are accrued *
fhalf of this is automatically delivered in the form ot after tha vesting date). This applies to both the
deferred bonus share awards when the executive nerformance share awargs and deferred bonus share
does nol meet the share ownership requirement). awards under the P, Dividend ecuivalent payments
IMI Incentive Plan {IIP} the value on vesting of the nil cost options that were anse from unexercised awards under the legacy PSP

subject to performance conditions over the three-
year period ending on 31 December in the relevant
financial year [see share price assumptions below).

Share price assumptions: for shares vesting in 2019, that related 10
pertormance in the three years to 31 December
2018, the average share price over the final three
months of 2018 {87120 pence) is used to estimate
the value of shares on vesting.
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Executive remuneration received in respect of 2018 | Benefits

Base salary During the year the executive directors received a number of benefits. These
Selaries effective 1 January 2018 were agreed taking into account a | are summarised below and amaunts less than £10,000 p.a. are combined.

rahge of tactors incluting the prevailing economic conditions, the financial

perfarmance of the Group and comparative salary increases awarded from Mark Selway Roy Twite Daniel Sheok
other refevant employee benchmarks. The average increase for employees in 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
2018 was 3.0%, compared to 2.6% for the executive directors. Mark Selway's Nom-cash oo » i3 1 6 o1
and Roy Twite's salaries were ingreased by 2.6% to £822,000 and £475,000 benetfits {£000] N

respeclively. As noted in Jast year's reporl, taking into account the progress

made during his three year tenure and taking into account relevant financial Company 20 20 17 L 14 14

car ahd fuel

dirgctor henchmarks Danie! Shook's salary was increased by 5.0% effective allowance (£000)

1 January 2018 to £439,000.

Allowances and 28 29 - - - 4
Pension reimbursement
The 'Policy' reduced the current maximum pension related allowance for new {£000)
hires from 30% to 25% of hase salary for a Chief Executive and 20% for any Total 67 63 30 27 a0 39

other exscutive director. The Committee considers this to be more closely
aligned with the wider employse pension provision al senior management

level within the Group and comparable with rorms. In addition 1o the above henefits and allowances thal are included in the

single figure table {refer to fable on page 69), the executive dircctors are
also beneficiaries of company policies that have no taxable value, including
directors’ and officers’ insurance, death in service caver, fravel fnsurance
and personal accident cover.

Uinder existing service agreements. executive directors received a taxable
cash allowance instead of pension henefits. Mark Selway recsives a cash
allowance of 30% of salary and Daniel Shook receives a cash allowance
of 20% of salary. Roy Twite receives a cash alfowance of 35% of salary
as a legacy obligation from his appointment as an executive director in
2007 which continues to be honoured.

Pension benefits for past service

Roy Twite was previously an active member of the defined benefit IMI Pension
Fund. He opted out with effect from 1 February 2007, before he hecame an
executive director and as a result, he refains past pensionable service up to
that date in the Il 2014 Deferred Fund {'the Fund”.

The key elements of the benefits in the Fund are summarised below:

» the normal retivement age under the Fund is 62 and Roy Twile may retire
from employment with IMI any time after age 60 without actuarial discount.

» on death after retirement, a dependant’s pension is provided equal to 50%
of the member's pension.

» should he die within the first five years of retirement, the dependant's
pension is increased to 100% of the member's pension for the remainder
of the five year pericd.

» ENsions in payment, in excess of any guaranteed minimum pension, are
increased each year in fine with price inffation up to a maximum of 5% in
respect of pension bullt up before 1 January 2008, and 2.5% in respest
of pension built up after 1 January 2006,

Agcrued pension Accrued pension
in the Fund as at in the Fund as at
31 December 2018 31 December 2017
£000pa £000pa

Roy Twite T4 Fa
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Annual Incentive Bonus

In setting targets and assessing performance the following process 15 adopted by the Committee:

1. Set performance 2. Set stretching 3. Assess
measures aligned performance performance

with strategy and targets
budget

4, Take account 5. Apply discretion
of wider if required
circumstances

As per the Policy, the Committee reviews and selects performance measures, 3.
targets and ranges annually, which take account of the ecenomic conditions.
strategy and the priorities of IMI at the time.

1. Set performance measures aligned with strategy
and budget

The Committee reviewed and selected performance measures that were
fully aligned to the business strategy and the annual budget, These
remain unchanged from prior year, The 2018 annual incentive bonus
focused on a number of financial metrics and non-financial metrics
considered central to strategy. These included:

» Group adjusted profit before tax (40%).
» Organic revenue growth {20%;.

» Gash conversion {20%).

» Strategic and personal ohjectives (20%}.

There was a health and safety underpin tc allow bonuses to be paid
only when minimum standards were achieved.

2, Set stretching performance targets

At the time of setting stretching performance targets the Committee
considered a range of influencing factors that included the strategic
plan, the annual budget, analysts' forecasts, economic conditions,

individuals" areas of responsibilities and the Committee’s expectations
aver the relevant period. 5

The performance target range was established based on the annuaf
budget, which required true outperformance for Executive Directors

to achigve the maximum. The Remuneration Committee has a history
of setting chailenging targets, evidenced by the average Annual Incentive
Plan pay-cut over the previcus five years of 59% of the eslablished
target maximum.

Assess performance

2018 has been a year of good progress for IME despite continued mixed
economic and market condiions;

» Group adjusted profit hefore tax increased to £251.2m in 2018 from
£224.1min 2017, representing a 12% increase;

» (Group revenug increased to £1,907m in 2018 from £1,751m in 2017;

» Cash conversion was 83% in 2018, compared with 92% in 2017,

» Adjusted Basic EPS increased 12% from 65.3p 10 73.2p;

» The total dividend for the year increased by 3% compared to 2017,
and

» Good health and safety performance and deiivery of measurable
benefits from Lean and other health, safety and environmental
initiatives.

. Take account of wider circumstances

The Committee helieves that the range of measures used 10 assess
performance of the annual incentive bonus ensures that performance
is assessed using a balanced approach, without due focus on a single
rmetric which could be achieved at the expense of wider inttiatives.
Given the performance noted above and wider operationat achievements
noted the Committee is comfortable that the annual incentive bonus
outcomes represent a fair reward for performance delivered.

. Discretion to override formulaic outcomes and te

apply malus and clawback

Depending on the nature of the measure e.g. health and safety, the
Committee may exercise judgement in assessing performance and
determining the leve! of achievement. The Committee has full discretion

to override farmulaic outcomes. As per the Policy, the Committee also
has the power to operate malus and/or clawback provisions in the event
that the Company misstated financiat results. The Committee alsc has
the authority 1o give such permission for recovery of awards in cases of
serious reputational damage, corporate failure and other circumstances.
No such discretion has been applied in respect of the financial metric
outcomes to the 2018 annual borus plan awards.
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Summarised in the tahle below is the achievement against Group targets for Mark Selway and Danigl Shock and a combination of Group adjusted profit
before tax and Divisicnal targets for Roy Twite.

Director Measure Maximum Performance Targets Actual Actual
opportunity (% of performance’ petformance

salary) Threshold Target Maximum {as % of salary)

Mark Selway  Group adjusted profit before tax- 80% £211.0m £248.2m £273.0m £257.7m 55 3%
Group organic revenus growth- 40%  £1.713.9m £1,778.5m £9.843.5m £1,844. 4m 40.0%

Group cash conversien® 40% TO.7% 83.2% 91 6% 84% 19.7%

Strategic personal objectives A0% See table on page 73 8ru 34.8v0

200%.: 149.9%.

Daniel Shook  Grougs profit before tax- 504 £211.0m L248 2m £273.0m £257.7m 34.6'
Group organic revenug growth’® 25%  £1,713.9m £1.778.5m £1.843.6m £1.844 d4m 25.0%

Group cash conversion’ 25% 70.7% 83.2% 91.6% 84v 12,3+

Strategic personal chjectives 259 See table on page 73 85%; 21.3%

12549 93 2%

Roy Twite Group profit before tax: 52 .54 £211.0m £248.2m £273.0m C2BT.m 36.3%
Divisional operatng profit” 22.5% £84.1m £99.0m £108.9m C88.7m 3.5%

I Divisional organic revenue” 22.5% r645.9m £672.3m £698.5m £G69.6m 18.7%
Divisional cash canversion? 22.5% 81.2% 95 6% 105.1% B4% 1.4%

Strategic personal chjectives 30.0% See table on page 73 849 25.3%

1504 85.24

" Actual performance Is stated at the exchange rates used in he targets,

< Adjusted Group profit before tax, as set out in Section 2.1.1 page 34, adjusted for the impact of fereign éxchange and acquistions.

“Growth of organic revenue as set oul in Section 2.1.1 page 94, adjusted for the impact of foreign exchange.

"This is calculated as management operating cash flow divided by management operating profit af the slated exchange rates used in the fargets.
Management divisional operating profit adjusted for the impact of foreign exchange.

“This is as set out in Section 2.1.1 page 94, adjusted for the impact of foreign exchange.
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Strategic personal objectives
As part of the strategic growth plan, the Committee sets each executive director a number of strategic personal objectives each year. Performance against thesc
objectives is assessed using a combination of quantitative and gualitative reference points 1o ensure a robust assessment process. Mid-way through the year the
executive is reviewad against their progress towards achieving the strategic personal objectives with a full review undertaken hy the Committee at the end of the
performance penod. As well as perfermance against strategic personal ohjectives, the Committee considers the wider perfarmance of the Group. A summary of
the strategic personal objectives set for 2018 and the performance against them s provided in the tatle below,

Dirgctor

Strategic personal objectives

Commentary

Mark Seiway

Strengthen organisation: Tranzition of IM| Hydronic Engineering
leadership and strengthen arganisational structure; continue to
Improve operational performance through Lean with addition of Policy
Deploymaent across the Group; and actively spoansor and support the
Group's diversity agenda.

Strategic growth; refine acquisition targets against clearly defined
ard disciplined critesa and build strong relationships with acquistion
targets: continue to build strong relationships with investors, and
ensure successiul execution of 2018 growth strategies.

Deliver projects: strengthen IMI capabilities through enhanced IT
Mmprovement plans; revised go-to-market strategies; new product
tortfohes and compellng customer solutions.

Secured the appontment of Phil Chfton as Managing Director of
IMI Hydronic Engineering and strengthenead the management team.
Lean mprovements continue to positively impact the performance
of all areas of the Grouo, and Folcy Deployment now embedded
threughout the organisation. Group and Divisions actively engaged
with Drversty plans

Acquisttion target hst is fully developed and relationships with key
targets continue to develor:, Significant progress made to continue
to butd strong investor relationstups with some notable successes.

Contnued successiul rollout of enhanced 1T systems in all three
dwisiong, and a signiticant upgrade of the Group's firewall,
autheritication and third panty providers completed on time and on
budgel. Supply chain mprovement plans in Precision Engneenng
now fully developed with addiional resources embedded across
the regions. Al three divisions have now established strong sales
and marketing plans to support go-to-market strategies.

Daniel Shook

Strengthen finance organisation: execute strong succession
Elanning, robust fransition arangements with clear visibty of
resources and capabilities around the Group; support the
achievement of best practice documentaticn for the divisional audit
teams, and deliver agreed oulcomes for Group Finance Contral,
Treasury and Tax.

Deliver projects: strengthen IM| capabiitses through enhanced
T improverment plans e.g. ERP; T loT advancements; deskton
Collaboration standards: and the security enhancement prograrmmea.

Strong succession planning n place at senior levels, with robust
transition plans established across the organisation. Divisional audi
tearmns' controls processes further enhanced through best practice
documentation processes, Inventory and fixed assets controls
processes further enhanced, Strong performance fram treasury
and tax functions.

Successful delivery of IT projects including ERP. Secunty
Enhancement Prograrmme and [0T advancernent. ensuring that
divisions continue 1o effectively develop focused nitiatives to
advance IMI's connected products.

Roy Twite

Strengthen division: ueliver raticnalisation projects in kne with the
approved busingss cases: further enhance team diversity when
oppertunities arise; improve Lean scores by the end of the year;
collaboraie with other Divisional Managing Directors {0 dnve
growth and technology agenda; and build strong relabonsfups
with acquigsition targels.

Daliver projects: develop plan to support continued margin
growth in 2019; delver 2018 ERP milestones; and develop
artificial intelligence sirategy.

Rationalisaton projects deiivered on time and on budget in ling wath
approved busness cages. Al dwisional diversity targets (ncluding
recrulment targets) met. Lean scores across the Crtical Engineerng
dwiston have increased sigrificantly to an average 74% from 70%:
in 2017, Strong relationships have been developed with key
acauisition targets.

Scenano plans have been developed to support budgeted margin
growth 1in 2019, New ERP instaliaticns delivered on time and on
budget, New artificial intefigence strategy now fully developed to
support growth agenda.

Based on the performance described above, the annual incentive banus cutcomes for 2018 are set out below:

2018 maximum Total bonus Total bonus Achievement of share Bonus delivered Bonus delivered

bonus opportunity awarded (£000) awarded ownership guidelines in form of cash in form of share

{% of salary) (% of salary) at 31 Dec 2018’ {£000) awards {(£000)

Mark Selway 200% 1,232 149.9% 114% 516 616
Roy Twite 150% 406 85.2% 253% 405

Daniel Shook 125% 409 93.2% 65% 204.5 204 5

' Details of the share ownership quidelines for Mark Selway, Roy Twite and Daniel Shook can be found on page 74.
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In March 2016, performance share awards were made to the exacutive directors under the P The vesting of the awards was subject to the achievement of
three independent performance cenditions as described helow, measured over the three-vears ending 31 December 2018. The 2016 IIP award wili vest in

March 20119 at 28.2% of maximum,

Initial award Value on date of Number of initial Additional dividend Total shares  Value of shares on

award! (£000] shares vesting equivalent shares vesting vesting? (£000}

Mark Selway 213,007 1.862 62,198 /1562 69,350 673
Roy Twite 98 553 a0z 28777 3.309 32,088 312
Daniel Shook 66,791 615 19,491 2,241 21,732 211

" The three day average mid-market price on the tate of award was 821,33 pence.

- The price on vesting is unknown &t this ime and o he total number of shares vesting 1s valued at the average price over the last quarter of 2018 {971.20 pence).

Return on capital employed (ROCE})

25% of the award was subject to the achievement of ROCE. This migasure 15 defined
as segmental operaling profit as a percentage of the capital employved during the
financial year ended 31 December 2018, Capital empioyed being Intangihie Assets
(excluding Acquired intangibles and Goodwill), Property Plant and Equipment and
Working capital. It compares the eamnings of the Company with the capita! invested.
ROCE was chasen as a measure as it raprasents haw well the Company has tsed
its investment made by shareholders and capital from creditors to generate a profit,

The portion of the share award that will vesl related to ROCE depends on ROCE in the
final year of the performance period. For ROCE of lass than 40% no award under this
element will vest, 25% of the award will vest tor ROCE of 40%. rising on a straight-line
hasis to full vesting for ROCE employed of 50%. At the end of the performance period
ratum on capital employed was 38.4% resulting in this element vesting at nil.

Total Shareholder Return (TSR)

25% of the award was subject to the achievernent of a rélative TSR performance
measure against a defined group of companies adjusled during the perfermance period
to take account of mergar and acquisition activity during the performance period in line
with the Committee's established guidelings. TSR is defingd as the movement In share
price during the performance period, measured in local currency, with adjustment to
take account of changes in capital structure and dividends, which are assumed to be
reinvested in shares on the ex-dividend date, TSR was chosen as a measure as it is

an external, relative benchmark for perfermance that aligns executives’ rewards with
the creation of shareholder value.

The portion of the award that will vest related to TSR depends on where iMi ranks

in the comparater group. For a TSR rank that is below median. no award under this
slement will vest, 25% of the award will vest for median TSR, rising on a straight-line
basis to full vesting for upper quartile TSR. At the end of the thres-year perfermance
period, the Company ranked in the lower quartile of the peer group. The resultant
vesting outcome for this element of the award is il,

Group adjusted profit before tax growth

50% of the award was subject 1o the achievement of the Group adjusled profit before
tax growth measura. This measurs is defined as the profit before tax before adjusted
items as shown in the audited accounts of the Group, adjusted to reflect changes

in the Company's capital structure and any adjusted items, at the Remuneration
Cormmittee’s discretion.

Adjusted profit before tax growth is a key measure for IMI as it gives an indication of
the sirength of the Company’s financial performance and shows the amount available
to reinvest into the business, and pay a return to shareholders thraugh dividends.

For growth of less than 2.5% per annum, no award under this element will vest.
25% of the award will vest for growth of 2.5% per annum rising on a straight-line
Basis to full vesting fer growth of 7.5% per annum.,

Over the three year performance period ending 31 December 2018 IMI detivered
a compound annual growth rate of 4.7%. The resultant vesting outcome for this
alement of the award is 29.2%.

Deferred bonus share awards

in March 2018, deterred bonus share awards werg alse made under the IP which
vest in March 2019, These are the form of share award used for mandatory bonus
deferral into shares of up to 50% of annual bonus payable where the executive
director is yet to reach their shareholding guideling.

Discretion to override formulaic outcomes and to
apply malus and clawback

The Committee has the discretion to override formulaic outcomes and may
apply discretion to adjust the number of shares which weuld otherwise vest o
effect recovery in circumstances where it sees fit. and it has the authority to
give permission for recovery of awards in cases of serious reputational damage,
corporale failure and other ¢ircumstances. No such discretion hias been applied
to the 2016 IIP award outcome for executive directors,

Share ownership guideline

Itis a requirement of remuneration policy that executive directors are subject to
guidefines which require them to build a sharehelding in Ml worth at least 250%
of salary for Mark Selway, 150% of salary for Daniel Shook and 200% of salary
for Roy Twite. The Palicy permits the Cammittee discretion 10 determine that 50%
of any annual bonus earned is deferred into shares until the share ownership
qguideline is achieved together with 50% of any vested share awards. Each
executive is then required to maintain this share ownership guideiine {subject to
allowances for share price fluctuations and changes in base salary thergafter).
When assessing compliance with this guideline the Commitiee reviews both the
level of beneficial share ownership and vested but unexercised share incentive
awards on a post-tax basis. Although Mark Selway and Daniel Shook continue

to make progress towards this guideling, and have a material interest in the
Company's shares, the Committee has detsrmined that half of the annual bonus
payable to Mark Selway and Caniel Shock as outtined on page 73 wili be delivered
in the form of deferred bonus share awards which must be held for a period of at
least three years and until the share ownership guideling has been met. Further,
the Committee has determined that half of the performance share awards made to
Mark Selway and Daniel Shcok in March 2016 and due to vest in March 2019 must
also be retained until such time as the share ewnership requirement is met, At the
end of the year Poy Twite significantly exceeded the share cwnership guideline.
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Share interests granted to executive directors during 2018 (audited)
Grants made under the liP The following performance share award grants were approved and made

Performance share award grants under the IIP were made on 12 March 2018 in in2018:
the form of nil-cost options. Awards are due 1o vest on 12 March 2021, subject |

. ) R IIP shares Value on date Award as a
to performance in t.hree core areas aligned to ogr \onger-tefm strategic priorities: : awarded of award' percentage of
ROCE (25%!, relative TSR (25%} and Group adjusted profit betore tax (50%). {£00D) salary
‘ ! 5 Py
The: performance targets and vesting scale that apply to the 2018 P awards | Mark Selway 181,644 2,055 2507
are as follows | Roy Twite 83,871 850 200%
Daniel Shook 58,205 658 1504,
ROCE Relative TSR Group Level of
adjusted vesting " The three day average mic-market price on the date of av/ard was 1,131.33 pence.
profit before
tax growth' The IIP is also used to grant deferred bonus awards exercisable after
Threshold 404 Mechian 2.5% 25% three years to satisfy bonuses delivered in the form of shares. Details of
Maximum 507 Upper guartle 7.5% 1005 these additional IIP awards made in 2018 are shown in the table on page
Weighting 257 257 50 . 77 under the ‘without performance conditions’ column, Na performance
conditions apply to these awards,
' Annualised Compound Annual Growth Rate over 3 years.
Further details of the above performance targets can be found in the awards
vesting under the IIP section on page 74.

For share awards granted in 2018 the TSR group included 17 companies to ensure compiete alignment with our peers and comparison to companies with
similar products, customers and globai spread. The 2018 peer group includes the following companies and these have been adjusted to take into account
merger and acquisition activity during the performance period in line with the Committee's guidelines:

TSR comparator group companies

1. ArTAC 7. Ingersoll-Rand 13. 8MC

2. Betmo g 17T 14. Smiths Group
3. Curtiss-Wright 9. Morgan Advanced Matenals 15. Spectris

4. Eaton 10, Parker-Hanrifin 16. SPX

5. Emerson Electric 11. Rockwell Automation 17. Weir

8. Flowserve 12. Rotork

GKN has been removed from the TSR comparator group following its acquisition by Melrose Industries PLC in May 2018.

All-employee share plans
Executive directors are eligible to participate in the all-employee share plans ¢n the same terms as other eligibie employees at IMI, In 2018, Mark Selway.
Roy Twite and Daniel Shook received free share awards under the Employee Share Cwnership Plan,

All Employee Share Ownership Plan SAYE
Number of shares Value of free Number of options Value of SAYE Total value under the
awardesd share award' awarged options Dividends all-employee share
{£000} (LO00) (E000) plans (£000)
2018 336 4 4
Mark Selway
207 278 4 813 1 5
2018 ; 4 . R 4
Roy Twite 330
2n7 278 4 - 4
2018 304 3 - - 3
Daniel Shook
2n7 235 3 - - 3

"In 2018 free shares were awarded at & share price of 1,071.00 pence {1.292.00 pence in 2017).
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Directors’ Remuneration Report
Annual Remuneration Report

Payments to past directors (audited)
It is the Committee's intention to disclose any payments to past drectors, including the vesting of share-based awards post departure on a basis consistent
with the continuing execuiive directors. There were no paymenis to past directors during the year.

Chairman’s and non-executive directors’ single figure table (audited)

The following table summarises the total fees and henefits paid to the Chairman and non-executive directors in respect of the financial years ending
31 December 2618 and 31 December 2017.

Director 2018 {£000) 2617 {£600)
Base fees Additional Taxable Total Base fees Adaitional Taxable Total
fees beretits’ tees bensfits’
Lord Smith of Kelvin 320 5 325 312 5 317
Cart-Peter Forstert 64 i 8 83 62 i 3 66
Birgit Nergaard® o4 16 8 88 62 1 8 Ia|
Robert Stack’ - - - - 62 26 3 91
Ross Mclnnes® - - - - a7 12 5 64
Isobel Sharp? 64 16 5 85 62 4 2 68
Thormas Thune Andersen® 32 . 5 37 - - -
Katie Jackson® 32 - 1 33 - - - -

" Includes fees for being Chair of the Remuneration Commitiee and Senior Independent Director until 7 December 2017,
“ Includes fee for being Chair of the Audit Committee,

‘Resigned &s Dector stfectreg 30 September 2017,

4 Inchudes fer fnr Seninr Infiependent Director effective from 11 Decemier 2017,

"Includes fee for being Chair of the Remuneration Commitiee effective from 11 December 2017,

" Pio-rata fee from date of appointment on 1 July 2018.

*Taxahle henefits includes travel and hotel expenses plus tax costs associated with Board meelings held at IMIHO.



Directors’ shareholdings and share interests {audited) Z
The following fable summarises the share interasts of any director who served during the year as at 31 December 2018 or at the date of lzaving the Board. §
During the pericd 31 Decernber 2018 to 28 February 2019 there were no changes in the interests of any current director from those shown save for E
purchases within the IMI All Employee Share Ownership Plan on 8 January 2019 of 13 shares each on behalf of Mark Selway. Roy Twite and Daniel Shoox at
865.00 pence per share, and 12 February 2019 of 13 shares on behalf of each of Mark Selway, Roy Twite and Daniel Shook at 963.50 pence per share,
Director Total Beneficial Scheme interests
interests interests Nil-cost options All-employee N
With performance conditions Without performance conditions share plans ;:_,?
Unvested' Vested but Unvested Vested but ‘c!:
unexercised unexercised o
Mark Seiway 784,787 8,800 503,573 15,271 139 581 24,334 2,128 %
Roy Twite 405,316 123107 274,514 - - - 7.695
Daniel Shook 241,524 7.507 187,295 - 45.424 - 1,298
Lord Smith of Kelvin 14,300 14,300 -
Carl-Peter Forster 2,625 2,625
Birgit Nergaard 2,625 2,625
Iscbel Sharp 3,000 3.000
Thomas Thune Andersen 2.625 2.625 - - - -
Katie Jackson 2618 2618 - -

"'Vestinig oates of share awards are shown in Section 4.11 on page 130.
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Relative importance of spend on pay

The following informaticn 1s intended 1o provide additional context regarding
the total remuneration for executive directors,

2018 207 Change
{Em) (Em)
Dividends 107.9 106.5 2%,
Total employment caosts for Group 6158 578.7 62

{see Section 2.1.3.1 on page 97)

In 2018, the total dividend for the year of 40.6 pence represented an increase
of 3% over last year's 39.4 pence,

Refative percentage change in remuneration for
Chief Executive

The Committee actively considers any increases in base pay for the Chiet
Executive relative 1o the broader IMI employee population. Benefits and bonus
payments are not typically comparable given they are driven by 4 broad
range of factors, such as geographical persuasion, local practices. eligibility,
Indivigual circumstances and role,

Chief Executive Employees’
Base salary 2.6% 3%
Benefits 6% 4°q
Annual bonus -18% -24%

Al UK head otfice employees. This comparisen excludes our international workforce which
we believe would not provide a true comparison given differing iocal market factors.

Historical performance and remuneration

In addition 1o considering executive remuneration in the context of internal
comparisons, the Committee reviews histarical cutcomes under the variable
pay plans.

The graph below compares IMI's total shareholdar return (TSR) to the
FTSE100 over the last ten years. We compare performance fo the FTSE100
as IMI has been included in the index in the past and it is a position where IMI
aspires to be. TSR measures the returns that a company has provided for its
sharehalders, reflecting share price movements and assuming reinvestment
of dividends {source: DataStream), with data averaged over the final 30 days
of each financial year. As the graph below illustrates, iMI’s absolute and
relative TSR performance has been strong over the last fen years.

Value of a hypothetical £100 investment
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The foligwing table summarises the total remunaration for the Chief Executive over the last ten years, and the outcomes of short and long-term incentive plans as

& percentage of maximum.

Financial year-ended 31 December 2009 2010" 2011 2012 2013' 2014¢ 20157 20162 20172 2018*
Total remuneration {single figure, £000) 2.647 4,439 12.289 7,954 6,688 1.567 1.667 1.901° 2773 3.047
Annual variable pay (% of maximum) 919% 5%, 85%: A47% 629 36" A40% 50% 95% 75%
Long-term variable pay (% of maximum} 644 97 95% 100% 100% - -

- Share Matching Plan

Long-term variable pay {% of maximum) 454, 100% 100%: 100% 82.6% - N 3.5% - -
- Performance Share Plan

Long-term variable pay {% of maximum) - - - - - 6.55% 29.2%

- IMI Incentive Plan

* Represents remungration for Martin Lamib who was Chief Executive from before 2009 until 31 December 2013,

< Represents remuneration for Mark Sehway who was appointed Chief Execlitive on 1 January 2014,




Application of the Policy in 2019

Executive director fixed pay

Mark Sefway will retire from the Board effective 31 July 2019 and will not
receive a base salary increase for 2019. Mark will receive a payment in
lieu of notice, representing twe months' hasic safary. Roy Twite is appointed
Chief Executive from the conclusion of the 2019 Annual General Meeting.
from which date his salary will increase to £720,000.

The base salary for the Finance Director was increased by 2.2% consistent
with the average increase for 2019 awarded to employees.

Te align with the pension contributions of the majority of the glebal
workforce, the pension opportunity for Roy Twite will be reduced from the
current ievel of 35% of salary to 11% from the date of his appointment
as Chief Executive,

Incentive pay

Annuai bonus
in accordance with the Policy, the annual bonus plan will be operated
as follows in 2019

» Ag in 2018, the 2019 maximum bonus opportunity is set at 200% of
salary for Mark Selway and will be pro-rated for time served and paid
wholly in cash,

» Roy Twite will be eligible for & maximum benus epportunity of 200%
as Chief Executive and pro-rated in respect of 2019. The maximum
bonus opportunity for Daniel Sheok is 125%.

» Target bonus is set at 50% of maximura bonus epportunity.

» As in 2018, the annual bonus for Mark Selway and Daniel Shook will
be subject to performance in Group adjusted profit before tax (40%),
organic revenue {20%), cash conversion {20%) and strategic and personal
objectives (20%:}. Health and safety wi!l serve as an underpin tg ensure
honuses are only paid out when minimum standards are achieved.

» As in 2018, the annual bonus for the Chief Executive (both outgoing
and incoming) and Finance Director will be subject to performance in
Group adjusted profit before tax (35%), IMI Critical Engineering operating
profit (15%j, IMI Critical Engineering organic revenue (15%), IMI Critical
Engineering cash conversion (15%) and strategic and personal
objectives (20%).

» The Commitiee has determined that the targets associated with the
performance measures will be disclosed retrospectively on the same
basis and to the same exlent as for 2018 targets (see annual bonus
metrics table on page 72).

| Performance share awards under the IIP
In accordance with the new remuneration policy, the lIP wili be operated
as follows in 2019;

» No award 1o be mads to Mark Selway in 2019,

= As Chief Executive. Roy Twite will be eligible for @ maximum oppoertunity
of 250% of salary. The maximum opportunity far Daniel Shook wiil he
set at 150%.

» Awards will vest subject to performance in three core areas aligned to
our longer-term strategic priorities: ROCE (25%), relative TSR (25%)
and Group adjusted profit before tax growth {(50%?.

» Awards will he suhject to a two year post-vesting holding period, extending
the total time horizen to five years, As per the Policy, vested awards which
are suhject to a holding period will not normally be forfeited on termination
and the holding period will continue to apply 1o such awards {although
the Committee may release awards early from the holding peried in
appropriate cases).

» The performance targets that will apply to the 2019 IIP awards are as follows:

RCCE Relative Group Level of
TSR adjusted vesting
profit before
1ax growth'
Threshold 40% Median 2.5% 25%
Maximum 50% Uppet 7.5% 100%,
guartite
Weighting 25% 25% 0™

" Annualised Compound Annual Grovah Rate over 3 years.

Service contracts
The unexpired terms of the nen-executive directors’ service contracts can
be reviewed in the Board's Corporate Governance Report on page 55.

Fees for the Chairman and non-executive directors

The Chairman and non-executive directors’ remuneration increased by
2.2%, with effect from 1 January 2019. This is in line with the executive
diractors and compares with an 3,0% increase acress the wider workforce.

Birgit Nergaard
Chair of the Remuneration Committee
for and on behalf of the Board

28 February 2019
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Financial Statements
Finance Director’s Introduction

Annual Report and Accounts 2018

Introduction from Daniel Shook

Dear Shareholder,

Welcome ic the financial statements section of our Annual Report.

My financial review commentary is set out in this section alongside the primary statements, These financial statements are
presented with the primary statements first, followed by five sections: 'Basis of preparation’. 'Resufts for the year’, ‘Operating
assets and liabilites', ‘Capital structure and financing costs’ and ‘Cther notes’.

Daspite mixed market conditions, IMI delivered solid resuits for the year, with revenue, profits and operating cash flow all
growing in 2018,

The company has further mitigated the risks asscciated with the defined beneiit pension schemes through the buy-out of
£409m of liabilities during the year. IMf continues to improve its overall control environment and risk management procedures
in 2018 through the implementation of a co-sourcing model for internal audits between Group Assurance and the divisions.

In 2018 IMI completed the acquisition of Bimba Manufacturing Company, which is contributing in line with expectations.

Danie! Shook !
Finance Director '

Notes to the financial statements provide additional information reguired by statute, accounting standards or the Listing Rules
to explain a particular feature of the financial statements. The notes that follow will also provide explanations and additional
disclosure to assist readers’ understanding and interpretation of the Annual Report and the financial statements,
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Consolidated income statement

For the year ended 31 December 2018
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Finance Director’s commentary on
the consolidated income statement

Resulls summary
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 December 2018
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Finance Director’'s commentary on the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income and the
consolidated statement of changes in equity
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 December 2018
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Consolidated balance sheet
At 31 December 2018
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Finance Director’s commentary on
the consolidated balance sheet
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Consolidated statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31 December 2018
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Finance Director’'s commentary on
the consolidated statement of cash flows
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Section 1 - basis of preparation

1.1
Introduction
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Section 2 - results for the year

What you will find in this section

This section focuses on the resuits and performance of the Group. On the following pages you will find disclosures
explaining the Group’s results for the year, including segmental information, adjusting items, taxation and earnings per
share. You will also find a summary of the Group’s alternative perfoermance measures, including the definition of each

and the rationale for their use.

2.1
Segmental information and alternative
performance measures

Organic ievenue growln and operating profi are the two shoit-term key
perfarmance ndicators or measures that 1eflect the way the performance
of the Group 1s managed and monitored by the Executive Committee,

In this section the key constituents of these two KPL's, being the Group's
adjusted revenues and segmental operaling profits. are analysed by
reference (o the performance and activties of the Group’s segments

and their operating costs.

2.1
Segmental informaticn
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Section 2 - results for the year
(continued)

[T FTE I B A BTN Sy A I T P B L N R U W SN E} PSSR SN IR (N L R PO FaCUER B T RIS BN RN T TR R FO Rt
Revenue Operating profit Operating margin
2018 | 2017 2018 2018 | Zok
7 £m 11 m | 'm % |
Continuing operalions ) —’
A Dl Bl o 682 G 88.3 12.9% T
IV e g g emne 916 - F3 153.2 16.7% |
S b b e g 309 515 52,0 | 16.8%
gl cosds o ) .‘ 77”(727.2] o J
Total adjusted revenue/segmental operating profit and margin 1,807 1000 266.3 | 14.0% !
U P PR [ T R Pr G LA TR T U I R N (0.8) :
Total adjusted revenue/operating profit and margin 1,907 Lo 265.5 ‘f 13.9% ' 13,
T T
Flervesma ol mot e oot bty Conti o, e \ 1.9 i
et e toneg o o S ‘ (12.4} . i
(s Ol o S e Lo 6.8
AR oD e ctinr and oihen Baoun e fens . (28.8),
Cranrhose o d sy o siibearbon e 0.6 \f [
iz oot sposal o oo b \ 3.2
I o ose-e } {2.0) ‘
refiec s > o eopgaiie o (32 ;
Statutory revenue/operating profil o187 [~ 2316 ! T
R ol fagn s . (18.7} 11 R |
. . e . Rl !
Statutory profit before tax from continuing operations ! 2129 ¢ TEi '
P et entrep E e Pt 0T B re e T P T nET e Lo iy o tooh i, men cmiente AT | A E (R T L TR T C TR Y NN PPR T
Year ended 31 December 2017 Year ended 31 December 2018
taovement
As I foreign As Adjusted Organic
. adjusted exehange ihisposals Organig agjusted  Acquisitions Organic  growth (%) growth (%}
Adfusted revenue
I e £ g o [ s e 682 - 682 5% 7%
AL Brecisinn b og neennyg Bl 81 916 (88} 828 16% 6%
IMEE chonies ey w1 . - o o309 - 309 -1% ] 9_“_/@_
Total 1,001 1Te L LY 1,907 (88) 1,819 9% 5%
Segmental operating profit
1AL St al Enegineeen g xS 88.3 - £8.3 5% 6%
[RAL S or s Ll necana 153.2 6.7) 146.5 15% 11%
INAT EE sl 1c ot et g [R] = 52.0 - 52.0 5% 6%
Corpoaile cos1s RNt (27.2} - (27.2) B
Total ) 2863 {687} 2586 11% 9%

Segmental operating profit margin (%) 0. &8 14.0% 14.3%
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. N . vt [ Dt - . . . o .
L £ ek [tes
2018 | N 2016 | 2017
i ‘
£m i PR £m i fre

723.7 186.6 e
- . 669.7 s 135.8 Lo
Prics or e B sy 2158 Lo 66.8 P

Total segmental assets/labilities 1,609.2 R 388.2

Tine At oeen 1.4 e 43.3 4

T N 27.8 S 801 B3

IS 3.7 T -

N et e s 132.2 & 536.7 300 =

NEt st o and winer 18.5 - B7.3 oo
i

Total assets and liabilities in Group balance sheet 1,802.8 T

IR LTI

R A O B D T e e R I ] B OO T FT P T T S A B 0 P A I S [ I L I S TR
[4ex-trier T rnay Canintial
LOSTR’ expendiue Anortisaton Denrecian
2018i dUtT 2018 N 2018 | 27 2018 | 017
m ! £ £m m £m £m £m | £
1 ! ! e
I vl Frcge ee iy 9.2 . ey 18.5 ! L7 16.7 i S 13.5

1 P

Al eeen g 1.5 B 2B.6 : 2o 164 S 206 |
2.5 11.2! e 33 ! =5 8.2
13.2 AL 58.3 e 36.4 e 42.3

; e 0.5 0.5 |
goe 369 ] e 428

urnstale Lost -

Total BTV an

B goad g ot Ladde ot ety aeed een e sy e
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Section 2 - results for the year
(continued)

B N I Y R LR L A L R St WA S NI R LTSN ERN R LT SRV RS L) SERI BRI R CH
! .
2018 | (IR
Revenue | Fieorue
m | Vim

UK 90 ' o
Gl N
Othie Veeston LLoope ) 392
Western Europe 681

[BR 427
Cal a0 _ ) ) ,,,ﬁ_24
North America ' o 451

Emerging Markets 608 |
Rest of World 7 B 7 o 7T e
Total slathtéry revenue B ST 1,907 TS

Adjusted revenue by destination {2018} Lol de Ten e bl Ly 20

| -

i Vet b e Fooveegras PUTRN CT B
St o Rnleis

A Ko

MNe o ey, Nt e o

UGN i

Foan Ormap:! e e Lt e e B e et 1 TalEE Coloe Frn et ot P [ T ninc s Gy IO TR (0 W T DR e ST [T e el

to Sechion b 4 C

2018 L2617

Revenue Rovenan
Sector £m &‘n_l_

Floews Corsmiuc i 361
Aflerneeet 321 RER|
Critical Engineering 682 O
e dustiml Aotorr fon 525 A4

Comme cal Veticie 196 . 155
gy 77 G
lite Scwnees 77 (-

lal ) 4 3
Precision Engineering ' N ) B o 916 | .
TA 151 1
Heomerer 98 10
Presumate 43 1
Ot 7 it
Hydronic Engineering ' 309 | 31

Total revenue 771",56'7' \ 1701




2.1.2
Operating costs by function

The following tabte is included 1o show how much of the operating costs
deducted trom revenue 1o arnve al the Graup's statutory operaling prof,
relate to cost of sakes, selling and dishibution costs, administrative
experses and adwsting items.

2018 | o7
£m m

a7

2018 | iR
£m

Adjusted revenue

1,907 M
_(1.089.9)
817.6
(242.2) e
(309.1) i b
) v
2665

| @ag)
Toa1s

et of ey
Segmental gross profit

¢

Sepammanoer abono et

AN Lt e O

R S AT TP I
Adjusted operating profit
ity toe T

Statutory operating profit

e b ey st e s et S dabal o Sec ey 0

cee bt g Lol e Al s nenarale e s S ot Iee [ bl the Dt

[RATRNAT PO N BT S TR U RTR S P ELITS BT S TR [

2018 =7
£m Crn

K 76.6 !
261.1 |
2197
263.5 |

60.4 | G
19.8 |
8911

‘.’n(“‘(lﬂ‘,

e ol Europae

P

Jotat

M

1.5
Specitic elements of operating costs

Certain specific iterns of operating expenses are disclosed 1o provide the
reader of financial statements with more information regarding these costs.
This section provides this analysis.

2.1.3.1 Employee information

Phas sy zoge ror ber o paccple croples oo byt oo dhonming T e e

2018

3,274 RIS
5,933 | Srre
i Hyedronie Drgiv oo g 1,790 1,820
Croporate ) - 109 105

10670

ML Criticar Eoggmiee g

IMI FPsecisann £ ng neenng

11,106

Total Group

T i oo 2 was e to e acgeastion of By Preceion Toaonnsesg
{ 4

519.4

877 L

2.1.3.2 Operating lease charges and operating lease commitments

The Group enters into leases for property, plant and eguipment assets
when doing so 1epresents a mare cost-effective or lower sk option than
purchasing them. This leads to an income statement charge for the year
and future commitments for the Group in respect of these leases.

Dt o) ey

A I PR R YRY A

g b ge s

[ NS E

Tedd b oo Ll

oot b ey Th o RN RN PRGN AN

R I R e N L X I N S TS I RTINS T O (R O SR T S ST

2018 201

Land and | and and
buildings Others Huddinge CRhes
£m £m tm im

VAt e o

216
54.2

123 -1

11 e e o il ye

Al trog years

88.1 37.9

2.1.3.3 Research and development expenditure

Dbt b copRy ert il ads s g e, o dhe
MRS INCAUR I T R W

hih ot de

Thee cor T g oss

wendesb e et e aarnon

Dot slateennt e 8
K RS TRIC ORI

el nt Lo

e e intancatale
scroms the Croogn g foerthor ©0 10 im0y

1 RS2 (TR N T (5 1T A LR LT e I

2.1.3.4 Exchange on operating activilies net of hedging arrangements

¢y
HEAr

TS S RN N FR R RS R S R TR B AR SN FIRNS T

ERSETACRSI RN

2,1.3.5 Audit fees
e Ut ongs ong e ks et nden, SY lennce fonn ot L
2 it g then atadotary don s cubes whero e exene e fapeHEnT e L

e bge ot 1ha Canny <Bcalo eribie ther, foopeeforn rer as agnrrnes

AT e S gt

e CHICE Ot Ban other wmidar enice pronidens,

Ll by ra S B et Bt an

i

Lrtge F07 Foes onrnedd Dy BY nnonbs i son stes drapng e vean are st ot peto,

LA™ Oy O el SR DO S

2018 2017
£m m
Feer corad by e Comnany's aucltor for the aucdt
at the Company's ariual acccunts 0.2 RS
The auoil of the Sompany s subodigres,
rresant to lagslahon 2.6 Db
O csmhb el G SOTseos 0.1 A

Total 29 e
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(continued)

2.2
Adjusting items

The adjusting tems category in the income statement includes those items
which are removed from slatutory measures to provide insight ss to the
performance of the Group. Accerdingly. adjusling items are included in a
separate column on the face of the income: slatement.

They include restructunng costs, special pension avents, gainslosses on
aisposals of subsidianes and roperties, imparment losses, the reversal o
gains/losses on economic hedges, acquisition costs, the release of inventory
uplifts recognised on acquisition and acgured intangitle amortisation,

2.2.1
Rastructining costs

Pl v tr o e g B atered s o st il Ul !

e et et o e el et et e
Corerge e 0 ke ot
vinedernn g inh ¢

ey than
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cree o] e Lo gt Badreney e

AR NS N TR
weTLHbe At o L
}—-.c;: et o e

SN T U ] S e T
Sore o Gataos Diegneenneg sie, o Begann S0 80 don b e e
e Svvterlua DO antal Sl oo Dosang=s o0 O o Brag e EEEE

RSP SN TTRTTRTES S|

R R NI RN U

VA e o T el g e ko B B op e e
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e ot el opersting el Coorea e eeouds

s Gt by B beor Cleegond Dietany segrare e © e ating
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o sgeipanion ]t e il e fowinaee o e Cironi,

2.2.2
Gains on special pension events

AN
ERTRIURH
v it ke occur pa e Dkt b sesodea i ne: aans of 1
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Ponsions Gams on pess a0 pension events in e LIk aee Soercerandg of

VTR e ecugnined a2

anaeeg fonn the oo

1

2.2.3
l.osses on disposal of subsidiaries

Mo subidanes B becn dispesed or i 20718, A gaire ot T s been
et d 0l ety The ety o sy oaoer nenly provided ona bl
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z2.2.4
Reversal of net economic hedge contract
losses/gans
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2.2.5
Acguired intangible amortisation and other
acauisition lems
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2.2.7
Inpairment losses
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2.2.8
Indirect {axes arising on reorganisation
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2.3

Earnings per ordinary share

99

Earnings per share ' TPS | is the amount of post-tex profit ambutable to each shase fexcluding those heid in the Employee Benefit Tiust or by the Company).
Basic EPS measures are calculated as tne Group profrt for the year attnbutable to eguity sharehclders dwided by the weighted average number of shares in

issue during the vear. Diluted EPS takes into account the diutive effect of all outstanding share options priced below the rmarket price, in arriving at the

nurmiber of shares used in its caiculauon,

Botn ot these measures are also presented on an adusted bass, 1o assist the reader of the financial staternents 1o ger a better understanding of the
nerformance of the Group. The note below demonstiates how this calculation has been performed.

2018 9477
Foy million il
. T CILOn seothee Lo e BAGC Baryn e A 271.0 S
[vocncorrctof ool oo e 0.3 ]
gl de bt e b e B T pebpaea gt i T e iy b 271.3 AN
Koy £m i
Statutory profit for the year 169.4 | i
Morepant ollinge Pl - l O
Statutory profit for the year attributable to owners of the parent 169.4 ;
Shatiarory paehl from e dh- el sgn Cahn e 34 -
Continuing statutory profit for the year attributable to owners of the parent L3 160.4
RSN TP VTR AT PR NI TR TS INTR PR R RN I (RT e 38.3
Tt Loty b cread s e b e e i Llaodion 7@;3)
Earnings for adjusted EPS = 198.4 ! 17
_ _ L 2017
Statutery EPS measures B ,,,,,,,j
i
Stabture tasn ERS (oS 62.5p | SIS aT
Sttty wilated [PS CE 62.4p | 54 )
Stataca, nime centena E B 62.5p !
stodaloy cihrenhcaontinneg o S e 624}3 :
Adjusted EPS measures
Sulpsted b BR o 73.2p £,
Adatoddacted 0P8 EE 73.ip G Ty

Discontinued earnings per share

Stavatar, base a o anced e o

porebaare

Tk
el A

V CUEC T T e e I R e

KRR TRR I
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(continued)

2.4
Taxation

IMI operates through subsidiary comparies all around the world that pay many
different taxes such as corporate ncorme taxes, VAT, payroll withholdlings. social
securty contributions. cusioms Impor and excise duties. This note aggregates
oty those corporale income taxes that are or wall be levied on the individual
profits of iMI plc and s subsidiary companies for periods leading v 1o and
inchucing the batance sheet date. The profits of each company are subect 1o
cortan adivstrments as specified by appicable tax aws in each country to amve
at 1he tax habifty that 5 expected to result on their tax returns. Yhere these
adustments have future tax impact then deferred taxes may also be recorded.

2.4
Tax governance. risk and stralcgy
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2.4.2
UK corporation tax
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T " ' | sob g fi [EF v
’ I I | 1 ' H
_ »-jm,-.‘; 2018 ek
’ om ! o
FETR hl Current tax charge
g It 41.8 .
244 LT . ’
N, : e . . . 41.8
Recougnised n the income statement S
e Deferred tax charge )
o e R AT E T NI LSt B PO S S TS L AL (I N R T AL 1.7 P
Con e R TN s STRE A B E ST

201a| a017 em | i
Em| om

Total income lax charge

Current tax charge

it 1) ¢ T

46.1 |
=T 4.3),
48]

Dt g 08 . , ; A
Dioesr i oy et - T

Al tamg

Deferred taxation
Ot ol and re e LI ey s eret i g 1.7 s

Total income tax charge 435 AR

2.4.5
Reconciliation of effective tax rate

LM bt o Tedee L0 10 DIED it ot oo fdte, e prle Ol frsy el peas st ol

T L etor s e ey
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2018 2017

Adjusting Adiugtiog
Adjusted items Statutory Adjusterd tems Statutory

Sectian £m £m £m PR £m £

Profit before tax from continuing operations 251.2 (38.3) 2129 ped
Profit before tax from discontinued operations i e
Profit before tax , , R -1 (38.3) 2128 oraa IRLEE

I vt s e ire g the Sonvpory's donveoe e rade o 1ot gr Y9 L o 27 12 20 47.7 (7.3) 404 | =0 T ol
[ (A |
o cenong ol nerm s 0.7 0.7 i4 1o G0 8.5
Po bl i vt eent T o dhinpoeal o s e O - 0.3 0.3 ; [ 0.1
il of wr b o elerred Taxoaad Deen récognived (0.4) - (0.4) ET 12.8i
Crarent year losces o voneh na defonen tax cosct has Reon re ogriscd 3.0 - a0 6.5 - Ha

>

Cobmgn- e itire i rate onelodearen T - - -~ | ;
[oarfonngg tas rates 5.2 (3.0) 2.2 5
Ot prGaded in pror years {3.4) - 34) 2l

Total tax in income statement 528 ""_(9:3_} T 435 IO
nenme Enx‘ rx;'\m'fsr, mhonvd ‘n t-f!-’; [Hel} Lr,o,uci”lt"('-drn‘:( oime ‘.éhim W }1t 7 o _52_8 T (é.é} o 4@% ] il ‘“.71
Effective rate of tax - continuing operations’ 21.0% 20.4% 21.0%
ncame tax altabutal e to diccontinued operations 20

Effective rate of tax - discontinued operations:
Total tax in income statement 52.8 (9.3} L 713;57

Effective rate of tax - total Group: 21.0%
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2.4.6
Recognised outside of the income statement
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2.4.7
Recognised deferred tax assels and liakilities
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Recognised Recognised
inthe outside the

: ncome income Balance at

T ie statement statement Exchange 31 Dec 18

e, £m £m fm m

Bt O 0.2 - {1.1) {33.9)
ey . 0.6 - {0.2) 14
4 ST s 0.2 - - (2.9)
T I B {1.8) {3.6) 0.5 21.7
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2.4.8
Unrecognised deferred {ax assets and liabilities
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25
Discontinued operations

When the Group has assets and liabiities that have been soki in the year or are likely to be sold rather than being held for continuing use, these assets and liabiities
are included in current assets and liabilities and denoted *held for sale’ rather than in their usual categories. They are recognised at the lower of camying amount and fair
value less costs to sell. Impairment Iosses on the initial classification of assets as held for sale are included in the income Statement, even for assets measured at fair
value, as are impairment losses on subsaquent remeasurement and any reversal thereof. Once classified as held for sale, assels are no longer depreciated or amortised.

if they represent a significant enough proportion of the Group, they are also treated as discontinued operations. A discontinued operation is a component of

the Group’s business that represents a separale major line of business that has been disposed of, is held for sale or is a subsidiary acquired exciusively with a
view to re-sale, This means that their trading performance, i.e. their revenues, cosls and other ltems of income and expense, are no longer reported within the
headline figures in the [ncome Statement and are instead reported in a separate line, net of tax, called 'discontinued operations’. These amounts no longer form
part of continuing earnings per share. Comparative figures are restated to be shown on the same basis.

This enables the Income Statement for the current and prior year to be presented on a consistent basis and to convey a more ferward-looking version of the
resuits for the year,
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Section 3 - operating assets and liabilities

What you will find in this section

This section shows the assets used to generate the Group’s trading performance and the liabilities incurred as a result,
Liabilities relating to the Group’s financing activities are addressed in Section 4. Deferred tax assets and liakilities
are shown in Section 2.4.7. On the following pages there are sections covering working capital, non-current assets,
acquisitions, other payables due after more than one year, provisions and pensions.

3.1
Working capital

Working capital represents the assets and iabilitizs the Group generates
through s trading activities. The Group thergtore defines working capita! as
trade and other receivabies. Inventory and trade and other pavaldes. Working
capital is managed very carefuilly to ensure that tre Group can meet its trading
and fnancing ohfigations within its ordinary operating cycle.

o provide the Executive Cormimittas with insight inta the management

of working capital, an important measure monitored is cash conversion,
Cash conversion i defined as the operating cash flow {as defined in the
commentary on the cash flow staterment) divided by the seumental operating
profit which thercfore represents the proportion of segmental onerating profit
gengrated during the year that has been converled info cash.

3.1.1
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3.1.2
Trade and other receivables
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3.2
Intangible assets
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The followirg section shows the non-physical assels used by the Group 1o genarate revenues and profits. These assets include goodwill, custorrer relationshios.

order books, paterts, development cosis and software development costs. The cost of these assets 1s the amolrt that the Group has pard for therm or, when
they have arisen due o a busness combinaton, the far value of the specific intangible assets that could be sold separalely or which arise from legal rights.

In the case of goodwill, 45 cnst is tha amount the Groun has paic n acquinng a business over and above the far value of thie individual assets net of the habiltes
accured. The value of the goodwili can anse from a number of sources, but n relation 10 our more recent acquesitions, it has been represented by post-acquishion
synergies and the skills and krowledge of the workforce. The value of the Group's ntangibie assots, vath tne exception of goodwel, reduces over the number of

years over which the Group expects to use the asset, the useful Ife, via an annJa! amortisation charge to the income statement.

The Group splits its intangibie assets between those ansing on acquisilions and those wihich do not, because the amortisation of acquired intangibles is recogrised

as an adiusting item in the income statemont.

Where there are indications that the value of intangiole assets 15 no longer reptesentative of ther vaiue 1o tne Group. for example whete there is a custome:

relationship recognised but revenues from that customer are reducing. or where goodwill was recognised on an acquisition but the performance of the business
acquired is below expectations, the directors review the value of the assets to ensure they have nol fallen below their amortised values, If this has happened,
a one-off impairment charge is recognised. This section explains the overall carrying values of the Inangible assets within the Group and the specific judgements

and estimates made Dy he direclors i armving at these values.

3.2.1
Analysis of intangible assets

Men-acguired

Acgured Other Total Giher rion- mtangibles
customer ACHLINEd aCgdves acqured undet
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Transiers from assets in the course of construction - - - - 21.4 (21.4) -
Disposals - - {2.2) {2.2) (1.9} - (4.1}
As at 31 Decembar 2018 4755 236.6 122.3 8344 1436 17.3 995.3
Amortisation
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Impairment 2.0 - - 20 1.2 - 3.2
Amortisation for year - 16.2 89 251 11.8 - 36.9
As at 31 December 2018 38.3 1805 1 99.4 318.2 T 3886
MNet anok vale m 31 Dacember 2017 3843 344 130 2T 55.2 o5 509.0
Net book value at 31 December 2018 437.2 56.1 229 5162 732 173 606.7
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Section 3 - operating assets and liabilities
(continued)

3.2.2
Goodwill impaitment 1esting

Goodwill 1s net subject Lo an annual amorbisation charge, inslead, its caryng value is assessed annually by comparnison 1o the tuture cash flows of the business
to which it refates (the cash generating unit o *CGLL Y Thase cash flows are discounted 1o reflect the ime value of money and this ciscount rale. together with
the growth rates assumed in the cash flow forecasts, are the key assurnphions in this rmpaimert testing process.
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3.3
Property, plant and equipment

The following section concerns the physical assets used by the Group 10 generate revenues and profts. These assets include manufactunng. distribution and
ofiice sites, as well 2s equipment used in the manufacture of the Group's products. The cost of these assets represents the amount initially pa d for them,

With the exception of the Group's land and assets under construction which have not yet been brought into use, & depreciation expense 1s charged to the

noome statemant 16 reflect the annual wear and tear and the redustion in the value of the assel over time, For detalls on the periods over which assets aro
deprecialed see Section 5. Depreciation 15 calculated by reference 1o the assels’ useful ives, by estimating the number of yoms over which the Group expects
the asset 16 be used. As we do for our mtangibie assets {see Section 3.2), if there has been a technological change or decline in business performance tne
directors review the value of the assets 1o ensure they have not falien below ther depreciated value. If an asset's value faiis below 1ts depreciated vaiue,

a one-off impairment charge is made against profit,
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Section 3 - operating assets and liabilities
(continued)

3.4 3.5
Acquisitions Disposals

The following section discusses husinesses acouired by the Group, which et et i ol b L e
have gven rise to the additions 1o the acquired intangitle assets including
goodwill) reported in Section 3.2 and which contributed 1o the Group’s profits,

working capital and other batance sheet assel and labllifics.
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3.6
Provisions

109

A provision 1s recorded nstead of a payable (see Section 3.1.3; when the:e 18 less certainty over how much cash will be pa-d and when the payment might be made.
Prowsions are recognised wheh: the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an outtiow of resources will be
reguirec: 10 settle the obligation. and the amount can be relably estimated, Provisions are valued al management’s best estimate of the amount requred 10 settle the
nresent obligation at the balance sheet date,

A provision for restructunng 1s recagnised when the Group has approved a detailed and formal restructuring plan. and the restructuring has erther commenced o
has been announced publich.

The recognibion of a provision requires estimation. The principal estrmates made in respect of the Group's provisions concern the timing and amount of payments
reuired to:

= cover the costs of known restructuring projects;

* 1eimburse customers for potentiai product warranty clams,

= ensure that curent and former manwfacturing sites meet relevant envronmental standards:

= reflect the estimated outcome of ongoing legal disputes: and

= provide against indemnities followang the disposal of subsidiaries.

Analysis of the Group's provisions:
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Section 4 - Capital structure and financing costs

What you will find in this section

This section outiines how the Group manages its capitai and related financing costs. The directors determine the
appropriate capital structure for the Group, specifically, how much cash is raised from shareholders {equity} and how
much is borrowed from financial institutions (debt) in order to finance the Group’s activities both now and in the future.
The directors consider the Group’s capital structure and dividend policy at least twice a year ahead of announcing results
in the context of its ability to continue as a going concern and deliver its business plan.

The Board is mindful that equity capital cannot be easily flexed and in particular raising new equity wouid narmally be
likely only in the context of an acquisition. Debt can be issued and repurchased more easily but frequent changes lead
to high transaction costs and debt helders are under no obligation to accept repurchase offers.

4.1
Net debt

Net debt is the Group's key measure used to evaluate total outstanding debt, net of the current cush resources. Sorne of the Group’s borrowings (and cash)

are held in foreign currencies. Mavements in foreign exchange rates affect the stering value of the net debt. Cash and cash cquivalents comprise cash balances
and call deposits. Bank overdrafls that are repayable on damand and form an integral part of the Group's cash managerment are included as a component of
cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the statement of cash fows,

a) Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents

2018 |
- o em |
Cerl and cash erpd clent i cuiront cenels 132.2 .
B3an< ey e el ikt e (82,6)‘} G n
Cash and cash equivalents 49.6 | i
h) Reconciliation of net cash te movement in net borrowings
2018 207
£m vy
FIET e i aier e 1 sheand cashridpe i) Farein oxchanige {18.7} s
Iet LPusve payment of Long cing foregn et An0 et aehl g opones AT (86.0) o
(Incease)/decrease in nel debt before acquisitions, dispesals and foreign exchange {105.7) 3
Mot el acoquated {15.0)
L, SNLEShor Gilterene o (18.6) 151
Movement in net borrowings in the year {139.3} e
Nt honoeangs At the skl of The eom (265.2)

Net borrowings at the end of the year “(404.5)° i
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c} Analysis of net debt
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4.2
Interest-bearing lcans and borrowings

Fhe Group borrows rmoney frorm financal institut:ons n the form of bonds and other financial nstuments. These generaly have fixed imerest rates and are for
a fixed term o are drawn from committed borrowing facilities that generatly have floating interest rates.
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Section 4 - capital structure and ﬁnancing costs
(continued)

4.3
Net financing costs

This section details the ncorme generated on the Group's financial assets and the expense Incurred on bonowings and other financial assets and labilties.
The finance Income and expense taken iNto account I arnving at adiusted earnings only noludes the income and expense arising on cash balances,
borrowings and retirement benefit obligatons. The finance income or expense on mark-to-market movemenls on interest and foreign exchange derivatives
and other financing costs are excluded from adjusted earnings.

Recognised in the income statement
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Recognised in other comprehensive income
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4.4
Financial risk management

The Group's activities expose it to a vanety of financial risks: interest rate,
foreign exchange and base metal price movements in addrtion to funding
and liquidity riske, The linancial instruments used (o manage these rsks
themselves introduce exposure 1o credit nisk, markat risk and liquidity risk.

This section presents information about the G oup's exposure 10 each of
these risks: the Group's objectives, polices and processas for measuwring
and managing nsks. including eact of the above nisks: and the Groun’s
management of captal,

4.41
Overview
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4,42
Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or
counterparty to a financial instrurment fails to meet its contractual obligations,
and arises principally from the Graup's receivables from customers. cash
and cash equivalents held by the Group's banks and other financial assets.
At the end of 2018 these totalled £503.4m (2017: £442 5m),

4.4.2.1
Managing credit risk arising from customers
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Exposure to credit risk in respect
of financial assets
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Section 4 - capital structure and financing costs
(continued)

4.4.2.4 4.4.31
impairment provisions for trade receivables Foreign exchange risk
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; of s global business in other currencies, As a result 1L is subject o the nsks
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4.4.3
Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in markel prices, such as foreign
exchange rates, interest rates and commedity prices will affect the Group's
income and cash flows or the value of its financial instruments. The chjective
of market risk management is to manage and controt market risk exposures
within acceptable parameters,

Under the management of the central treasury function, the Group enters
info dervatives in the ordinary course of business and also manages financial
liabilities in order to mitigate markel rigks, All such ransagtions are carried
out within the guidelines set by the Board and are undertaken only if they
relate to underlying exposures,



d) Currency profile of assets and liabilities

Other
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Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed 1o a number of global interest rates through assets and kabilities denominated in jurisdictions 1o which these rates are applied, most
notably U8, Euroszone and UK rates. The Group is exposed to these because markel movements in these rales will Increase or decrease the nlerest charge

racognised in the Group income slatement.

a) Management of interest rate risk
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b) interest rate risk profile
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Commodity risk

The commadity inpuls to the Group's production process typically consist
of base metals. Commaodity risik for the Group s the risk that the prices of
these inputs could rise, thus reducing Group profits.
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4.4.4
Liquidity risk

Liquidhty risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet 1ts financial
obligations as they fall due.

a) Management of liquidity risk
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4.5
Capital management

Capital management concerns the decision as to how the Groupy's activities
are financed and specifically, how much of the Graup capital is provided by
borrowings {or debt) and how much of it is financed with equity raised from
the issue of share capital.

The Board's policy is 1o maintain a balance sheet with a broad capital
base and the strength to sustain the future development of the business
including acquisitions. This section discusses how the Board views the
capital base of the Group and the impact on leverage, distribution policy
and investment policy.
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Overview

Capital base
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Dividend policy and share buy-backs
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4.6
Debt and credit facilities

This section provides details regarding the specific borrowings that the Group
has in place o satisfy the debt elerments of the capital management policy
discussed above.
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Section 4 - capital structure and financing costs
(continued)

A4.6.2
Terms and debt repayment scheadule
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4.7
Fair value

Fimancial instruments included in the financial statements are measured at either fair value or amortisec cost, The measurement of this fair vaiue can in some
cases be subjective, and can depend on the nmputs used in the calculetions, The Group generally calculates its own farr values using comparable observed
market prices and a valuation model using the respective and relevant market gata for the instrument beiny valued.
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As at 31 December 2018
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4.8

Market risk sensitivity analysis on financial instruments

This section shaws how the fair value of financial nstrurnents presented can change for a given change in market rales.

The values shown in the table below are estimates of the impact on financial instruments only. The nisks that these financial instruments have been acguired

to hedge will move In an opposite direction.

4.8.1
Overview
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Section 4 - capital structure and financing costs
(continued)

4.9
Retirement Benefits

IM! offers a number of defined henefit arrangements to employees that wilf not be paid until more than a year after the period 1n which they are earned, for
example pension benefits, jubilee plans, post-employment and other fong-term employee Denett arrangements,

There is a significant degree of estimation invalved in predicting the utimate benefits payable under these defined benefit arrangemenis in respect of which
the Group holdls net jiabllities on its balance sheet. This section explains how the valus of these benefits pavable and any assets funding the anangements
are actounted for in the Group inancial statements and gives delails of the key assamptions upon which the estimations are based,

Assets and liabilities for defined cortribution arrangements are runimal a5 they relate solely to short-tern timing differences betwesry the period during which
benefits have accrued and when contributions sre paid Mo schemes.

Detined contribution {DC): Arrangements where the employer pays fixed contributions nto an external fund on behall of the emyployee fwho is responsible for
miaking the investment decsion and therefore assumes the risks and rewards of fund perormance). Contributions 10 these arrangements are recognised in the
ncome statement as incurred.

Defined benefi (DB} A defined Denefit pension plan is & pension arrangement in which the employer promises a specified annual benefit on retirement thal
is predstermined by a formula based on the employea’s earnings history, tenure of service and age, rather than depending directly on individual investmeni
retlrns. I some cases, this benefil 1s paid a8 & lump sum onleaving the Comipany or while in the senvice of the Gompany rather than as a penson. The Group
underwrtes one or more risks in meeting these obligations and therefore any net tabilty or surplus i these arrangements is shown on the Group balance sheet.

4.9.1
Summary information

Ned pension deficit: £52.3m (2017: deficit of £77.9m)
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Asset profile of schemes
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Section 4 - capital structure and financing costs '

(continued)

49.2
The UK and overseas pension funds
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The UK Funds
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4,931
Cash flow imp:acts
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Section 4 - capital structure and financing costs
(continued)

Lite expectancy al age 65 (UK Funds only)
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Overall reconc

iation of changes in the net surplus/{liability) for defmed benefit obligations
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Section 4 - capital structure and financing costs
(continued)

4.10
Share capital

The o:dinary shareholders of the Group own the Company. This section shows how the total numbes of orcinary shares in ssue has changed duwing the
year and how many of fiese ardnary shares are beld as reasury shares or in Employee Benefit Trusts, to be used to satisty share options and awards to
drectors and emptoyees of the Company, as part of employee <hare ownership programmas. This section also sets out the dividends pait or praposedd

1o bie paid 1o shareholders.

4101
Number and value of shares
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Dividends
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Section 4 - capital structure and financing costs
(continued)

4.11
Share-based payments

The Group uses thare ophion schemes 1o eward and retan its emplovees. The estmated cost of awarding these shaie options is charged 1o the income
statermient over the perod that the Group benetits from the employees’ services. This costis then added back 1o retained earnmgs, to reflect that there s
ne overall inpact on the Group's balance sheet until the shares are issued to the empioyces when the options are exercised.

The individual share option schemas, the nomiber of options outstanding under each of them, the estimatad cost of these aptions recoghised in the ncame
staterment and the assumplions used in arrving at this estimated cost are described i this secuon.
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Qutstanding share options
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4.11.3
Otner share-based payment arrangemenis
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(continued)
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Options granted during the year
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4.11.6
Share-based payment chaige for the vea
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4.11.7
Share-based payment valuation methodology
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Section 5 - other notes

5.1
Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability 1s a labibty that = not sufficiently certam 1o qualfy for
recognition as a provsior because significant subjectivity exists regarding
its outcome.
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5.2
Related party transactions

Related partes are solely the key management personnel. The Board 15
considered to be the key managernent personnel of the Group
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5.3
Subsequent events

Events that ocour in the period between 31 December and the date of
approval of the annual report can be categorised as adjusting or non-adjusting
depending on whether the condition existed at 31 Decernbior, If the event is an
adjusting event, then an adjustment 1o the results is made. If a non-adjusting
event after the year end is matenal, non-disclosure could influence decisions
that readers of the financial statements make. Accordingly, for each material
non-adjusting event after the reporting period we disclose the nature of the
event and an estimate of its financial effect, or a stalement that such an
estimate cannot be made.
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5.4
Significant accounting policies
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Impa rment of non-firancial assets
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The directors present their report, together with the audited financial statements, for the year ended 31 December 2018,

Strategic report
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the Annual Report and the financial statements
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Overview of our audit approach
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Risk Qur response to the nsk
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An overview of the scope of our audit
Tailoring the scope
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Invelvement with component teams Performance materiality
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Other matters we are required to address
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Company balance sheet
at 31 December 2018

2018 | ot
Hae £m ‘ i
e —— ! i
Fixed assets
I
i e s O . 173.2 ¢ 1.0.0
[T ERTI A R P [
et fone s 418.1 ‘,
petenen T et i 22
o al nne e Gy B Oii / A
420.6 L

Greditors: amounts falling due within one year
RHEERTIETINE [ {4.3) R

Net current assels o _4E€i
Totaf assets less current liabilities ) ) 5895
Net assets 589.5 |

Capital and reserves 1
Sl g i =) 81.8 ¢ R

-

S R SO SN TR STRLON 13.3
Cnl ot s ree 174.4
Pt cen bont, e Lonatit 320.0 ;

Equity shareholders’ funds _ 5895 |
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Company statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 December 2018

Share Reder ot

[IEMmuT SLIENE Ty
i ] L A
1 P (R
g
"
, ,
2 3
! L ARV |

(Rt o ' 1o

s heteruer I Wt . e T Tk

Retained profit for the year 237.5 237.5
Dividends paid on ordinary shares” {167.9) (107.9)
Shares issued in the year - 0.6 3.6
Share-based payments 7.0 7.0
Shares acquired for':

employee share schemae trust (6.0} 6.0}
At 31 December 2018 R 133 174.4 3200  589.5
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Company notes to the financial statements

C1. Signmhicant accounting policies
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2018 ! ~1
£m L
68.3 '
JCOUR I FE 39.6
107.9 :
' AL R R TAS | t S F R e ~ i 3
st e b Bt P i A e R N A L H SR VA B FobaEe
2018 | 2017
£m o
CERTLY ST I T 704 [
R T, ORI P R B P [P S N B TIORY [ S IR R  N TR T SR & S| I T I BT A B S AN T BRTENE L RIS TS TS
[SHHAEENE (TH At UTAINS IR TRV LR P D E S R A o S Ly
C5. Fixed assets - investments
Subsidiary undertakings
2018 2017
£m f'm
At 1 January 2018 and 31 December 2018 cost and net book value 173.2 157
Detiala on b, neriabaigs s b S e eanbaer BT are e L pogne 1o ol
C6. Debtors
2018 ‘l 207
Em | £m
Falling due for payment after more than one year:
ARG~ e by w0l vnay D dertakang, o _31%9_{ 100
Failing due for ayment wathin one year:
ATt e b sdany ndertab g )
C7. Deferred tax
2018 ! 2017
) £m £m
The deferred tax included in the balance sheet is as follows: :
Fng oy burehits st slaoe Ligsed payneenls i i 2.24} 2.0
Jefearedd te amsc b i oo i o alaee whoot L g_' o7

Reconciliation of movement in deferred tax asset:
AT Jarary 2018

Dieferred tax credd o ihie aoft and loss account
Detetred tax crecht v ety

At 31 December 2018

27 | 11
©.4) | 1

2.2 |

oo
s

Changes o he rale of UK carpo-alion 1x wele subs antec [y orge iesdbn 2006 o vedues thoale to 16 from 1 Annl 701

The detcared Tax Pianc e 1as nesn COUoulEear basend on e 1etes cilic anle shien the boiane &5 e expecten to jeversd

sehieh e el Y 12017

At 1 s hom 1 Apnl 2620
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Company _notes to the finahcial statements

(continued)

G8. Other craditors tallng due within ane year

2018 | vOiF
1

£m im
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1.5 . [
4.3 !
C8. Shate capital
2018 [ 21
'm { £
lssued and fully paid ;
TEG BT CEG P onanfey chanee ol Ze ol TS 81.8 ot A
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. Subsidiary undertakings

(continued)
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Subsidiary undertakings

(continued)
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Geographic distribution of employees

Total 10.967
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Five year summary

Adiusted revenue £m Adyusted profit before tax™ £m Adjusted Groun revenue by geography 2018
Jie
~
8 3
8 £ )
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z ® @ . » z 2 é 5 e Lot A
s = g = z = = z g 5
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hov ol e
Income statement
2017 2018
NS rm
S Uy e 1,807
AU 1A hun 1,907
Adnsted speratag piott 285.5
Acpstnr Pt B toie tas 251.2
Shewal penson evpirs 6.8
Rt tarmg eouts (12.4)
Acauirec infangible arwfsabon sod ingsn e 27.1}
R mIon er (3.7}
Cron/tos s om insnos 2 uf sbsas e o 0.6
Frrviarie rahwe v omients exehidnag oo omon o biedge s ol s (e ks ] e (G (2.5)
Profit before tax from continuing operations sl tae ool 2129
Arfiusion EBT LA G A 320
Group sales by destination
2014 Suls 2016 2018
£fm £ __Em £m
LK 95 o o ao
Wesiorn e ope 681
Pt A o 451
broergneyg Moarhe!s 608
et of Word R ot 77
Aljuste! Rovene 1.G8G 1557 1.619 1751 1.807
Feaeesal of nel econemie hesdge conbaod Lo sgs tgaie 5 e 8 - -
Statutory Revenue 642 1,00, 16hr 1001 1,907
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